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SHOULDER TO SHOULDER-Over 400 people turned out to march for 
peace in Alexandria Sunday. Organizers were overwhelmed at the turnout 
which was larger than the crowd which participated in a similar march in Cor
nwall the same day. Several individuals and organizations made signs for the 

event. The banner in the lower photo reflects the bilingual nature of the march 
and subsequent program held at Sacred Heart Church Parish Hall. 

Staff Photos-Phil Rutherford and Bob Roth 

aniarch 
by Bob Roth 

The parish hall overflowed with 
bodies. the coffee urns ran empty 
and veterans of the peace move
ment wept openly. · 

Over 400 people turned out in 
Alexandria Sunday to make the 
community's first peace march a 
resounding success. 

Organizers themselves were 
caught off guard as the huge 
crowd shoe-horned its way into 
the basement of Sacred Heart 
Church hall. filling the room to 
capacity. 

Members of the coffee brigade 
had to rush out during the 
program and pick up an extra 
supply. 

"Wow!" was the way Mar
guerite Deschamps expressed her 
joy when the whole crowd had 
assembled inside the hall. 

Deschamps, as president of the 
Catholic Church's Development 
and Peace organization. was a key 
organizer of the event. 

"There's a new pacifist mental
itv developing," she told The 
News afterwards. She noted that 
during the 1960s the peace 
movement was basically a youth 
movement. 

"But yesterday all the genera
tions were present. as were many 

nationalities and religions ." 
The march was co-sponsored by 

, the United Church and Unitarian 
Fellowship whose ministers par
ticipated fully in the program. 

But perhaps the most touching 
scene was that of older peace 
movement veterans who were 
moved to tears at the size of the 
crowd drawn to this small muni
cipality. 

Cornwall. with 12 times the 
population. drew about 300 
people to its march held the same 
day. Deschamps said. 

Even the elderly and bedridden 
whp could not join the Alexandria 
march phoned in to express their 
support. Deschamps said. 

"They were saying ' Wherever 
we are. we'll be thinking about 
peace while you march'." 

She said bringing the United 
and Unitarian religions together 
to work on a common problem 
with Catholics was a rewarding 
experience in itself. 

"It was really something, 
bringing us all together. We 
worked very well together ." 

People are realizing that they 
must try to exert some pressure 
on government. Deschamps said, 
and "it 's only through these 
movements that we can sensitize 

our governments to the need for 
peace." 

Heavy emphasis was placed on 
peace in the Third World where 
millions live in poverty and 
tyranny . 
. "Peace, which is a gift of God, 

has to be manifested like you 
have done today by walking in 
solidarity with the oppressed · 
people of the world and in 
particular the Third World," 
Deschamps told the gathering. 

In addition to a film presenta
t ion and slide shows. the program 
included a "Chant of the Mart
yrs." a common occurrence -in 
"i.atin America where · a crowd 
remembers its dead martyrs by 
replying "present" when the 
name is called. 

At the end of the chant, candles 
were lit for the martyrs and the 
lights dimmed. 

The crowd then pledged itself 
to peace during a litany of 
commitment and prayed to
gether. 

Marchers were also buoyed by 
posters placed on homes by 
residents living on the march 
route. 

A poster contest was also held. 
Adult class winners were (first to 

(Continued on Page 2) 

Funding sought for new 
Glengarry newspaper 

A fund-raising effort for a 
second. English-language news
paper is underway in Glengarry 
County. but few people are 
talking about it; not publicly at 
least. 

A Jetter seeking financial con
tributions for a monthly publica
tion was forwarded to some 
county residents, including 
Margo MacRae of RR3, Dalkeith. 

The letter expressed support 
for Glengarry News reporter Bob 
Roth in a labor dispute with 
management of the established 
newspaper and praised him for 
his "investigative reporting," 
said Mrs. MacRae. 

She said the letter went on to 
sav Mr. Roth would be actively 
involved in writing and organiz
in_g the new publication, should 
adequate funding be found to 
m;ikc it a reality. 

011 Tucsda~• Mr. Roth declined 
;ill comment on the matter, 
following .previous legal advice. 

The letter carried several names 
of ,upporters. but The News was 
11<'1 successful in getting solid 
comment from several it attempt
ed In cont:Jct. 

Bn11m· Cappuccino of Maxville 

said she was not sure if her name 
had been used in the fund-raising 
letter. "I know there has been 
some talk ." she said. "but I don't 
kno'w if it has happened. 

''I'm not sure what the situa
tion is." 

She said she had not signed any 
letter concerning a new paper. 

Kitty Ewaschuk, whose name 
also appeared on the letter. told 
The News she was not directly 
involved in the effort. 

"There has been a little 
discussion. qut that is as far as it 
has gone, .. she said. "It's just in 

the discussion stages." 

She said a meeting to discuss 
the profect was to have been held 
o·n Frid av. March 11. but she did 
not atte~d due to other commit
ments. "I don't know what has 
happened." 

Contacted Tuesday morning, 
Rhoda MacDonald of Kirk Hill 
would not comment and referred 
The News to her husband, 
Kenneth MacDonald. who did not 
reply to a phone message. 

.Joseph Boyer of Williamstown 
cnuld not be reached. 

Charter finally 
for Chamber 

• arrives 

The Alexandria and District 
Chamber nf Commerce has its 
federal charter in hand. 

Complications arose over the 
issuin_g of the legal document 
when it was discovered that a 
1CJ14 charter issued to a Lancaster 
_group was still on the books . 

On behalf of the new chamber. 
law\'er Pierre Aubry determined 

that there was no one left 
representing the old organization 
and paved the way for the issuing 
of a new charter . 

The next general meeting of 
the Chamber of Commerce will be 
Apri l 6 at 7:30 p .m·. in "the town 
council chambers. 

Members of the general public 
are welcnme. 

Stephenson officially opens_ Char-Lan addition 

PAYING STRICT ATTENTION-How students should pay 
attention-We don't know if this was the example being set at 
the official opening of the Char-Lan High School addition last 
week, but the seriousness of the job at hand evidehtly war
ranted due attention. From left: Trustee Art Buckland, Direc-

·tor of Education Roger Leblanc, The Honorable Bette 
Stephenson, •minister of Education in Ontario who was the 
special guest for the occasion and the chairman of the SD&G 
Board of Education, Wes Libbey. 

Photo-Rod MacDonald 
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CAN STILL PERFORM THE JOB-Two 
former principals of the high schools in 
Williamstown, Wellington J. Barrett, left and 
D. M. C. Shaw were on hand to unveil the 

plaque installed at Char-Lan High School last 
week when the official opening of the new 
school extension took place. 

Photo-Rod MacDonald 
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Meeting for Green VaUey servicing 
Old Mill Stream 

by Anna Margaret 
may be clnsed to public 

-... - A joint meeting of Lancaster 
)jjl(,x,&K~)i'ICl(::illlll()SIG~~ and Charlott en burgh Towri,s hip 

Pro-Life officials will be visiting local churches on Sunday 
to distribute the rose symbols. 

• • • 
The campaign for the Heart Fund in the county has already 

exceeded its objective by $3,500 and the final results will not be 
tabulated for a few weeks, reports Campaign Chairman Dun
can Morris. Already in hand is $11,500. This speaks well of 
your generosity, folks. 

••• 

cnunci15 tn discuss propo!>ed 
water and sewer services for 
Green Vallev will be held in North 
Lancaster. March 24. 

But the two cnuncils have not 
agreed on whether the public will 
he admitted to the meeting, 
during which Ministry of the 
Environment officials will report 
on problems in the area and make 
recnmmendatinns for improve
ments. 

Previouslv. Charlottenburgh de-

cided the meeting sh!':Jld be 
open. follnwing the precedent of a 
similar meeting held recently to 
discus~ proposed servicing for the 
Purcell Subdivisinn in Glen Walt
er. 

Charlnttenburgh also stated its 
preference that the upcoming 
meeting he held in Green Valley, 
where affected property owne~s 
reside. Lancaster. however. pre
ferred the meeting be held in 
Nnrth Lancaster . where its offices 
are lncated and Charlottenburgh 
r-""IPntPrl 

As nf this writing. Lancaster 
cnuncil was still firmly of the 
npinion that the meeting should 
he r insed to the public. The 
question remains. since it is to be 
a joint meeting for two townships 
and the councils can ' t agree. will 
the public be admitted or not? 

Will Charlnttenburgh residents 
he admitted with the blessing of 
rheir council. but Lancaster tax
pavers turfed out at the insistence 
,,f theirs? As host of the meeting. 
rn be held in tlieir township, 
l ... ,, ,'",c: • ~ .. f"'f'1'f'tr1t1,,r~ rnay be seen 

to have the final say. 
"An open meeting is not 

preferable at this time because 
there ;s no final report," Lan
rnc;tcr clerk Mike Samson told 
The News nn Tuesday. 

An npcn meeting is not a good 
idea. he said. because "we don't 
hnve anything to discuss yet." 

L.incaster councillors were to 
dic;ruc;c; the matter during their 
regular meeting Tuesday night . 

Green Valley straddles the two 
townsh ips . 

If you are planning ahead for a summer holiday we have 
learned from Malcolm Dewar that the Sixth Festival of Scot
tish Fiddling will be held at the Gaelic College in St. Ann's, 
Cape Breton on July 9 and 10. Our own fiddlers will be joining 
in the afternoon and evening contests there as well as groups 
from Ontario, P .E.I. and Scotland. 

Industrial hockey Manny's win two games 
• • • In the Seaway Valley Industrial 

Hockey . League, Wednesday, 
March 9. at the Sports Complex in 
Maxville. Dave Hanson snapped 
the tvinP gnal anci W~vnP 'Kirmen 

scored the winner as Maxville 
Mannv's Auto Body downed 
Pentagnn Insurance 4-3. Han
snn 's gnal came in the second 
period with nne second remaining 

Have a good look at the handsome face featured in the 
Toyota ad in The News this week. The ad running nationally 
features Garry Smith, Maxville proprietor of John Deere Sales 
and Service. Ah, how interesting it is when hidden talents are 
brought to light! 

••• 
Mansel Hay is celebrating a 25th anniversary this week. Yes 

sir, it's a quarter of a century ~ince Mansel first got his diploma 
in auctioneering. And a lot of goods have gone under the ham
mer since then. 

Poirier gets award 

• • • 
While some of the spots in Alexandria are featuring legs, 
Priest's Mill has issued an out-and-out ban on their waitresses 
featuring their fair gams. It's skirts-to-the-floor from now on. 

• • • 
The South Lancaster Fish and Game Club is donating the 

funds from its annual fishing derby for an unusual project. 
The club has handed over $5,000 to the Raisin Region Conser
vation Authority to develop a viewing boardwalk in a 300-acre 
marshland area in the St. Lawrence. 

• • • 
Easter Seal Campaign Chairman Richard Ranger wants you 

to know the seals are coming. Since two other campaigns are 
now running he just didn't want to throw too much at you at 
once. But he has the posters up all over town and wants vou to 
keep the little crippled kids in mind. 

-• .. 

The third annual Canada Pack
ers Award of SSOO was presented 
on Friday. February 25 to Colette 
Poirier. 

Colette, a second year animal 
care technology student received 
the award in recognition of 
showing high academic achieve
ment. leadership and contrifiution 
to the college. 

The company gave a presenta
tinn nf careers within Canada 

Tax by instahnents 
If you are no longer working 

and having income tax taken off 
your salary, you probably should 
be paying tax by quarterly 
instalments. If you meet all the 
following conditions you must pay 
quarterly instalments or you will 

Packers which was attended by 
animal care students from all 
vears. after which she was 
hnnored at a buffet in the student 
lounge. 

As well as a cheque. a 
handsoi;ne award plaque was 
presented to St. Lawrence Col
lege. suitably inscribed with the 
winners of each year. 

Cc,lette is a graduate of GDHS/
ESRG in Alexandria. 

be charged interest. First, your 
federal income tax for last year 
was more than $400. Second, your 
estimated federal tax for the 
current year is more than $400. 
Finally. tax is not being deducted 
from al least three quarters of 
your current year's net income. The 66th Annual Meeting of the Victorian Order of Nurses, 

Eastern Counties Branch will be held on March 21 at 7:30 p.m. 
ir Trinity Anglican Church, 105 Second SL West, Room 2, 
Cornwall, Ontario. The guest speaker will be Dr. Dorothy Pr
ingle, Research Director for V.O.N. for Canada. Dr. Pringle is 
currently working on an Ontario Ministry of Health (Strategic 
Research and Manpower Planning Branch) research grant to 
study health maintenance programs in Senior Citizens' apart
ment.complexes. 

Pea,ce ,narch 

Rosaire Leger, the former director of education with the 
SD&G County Board of Education will be returning to the 
post he left before he went to Germany for a two-year stint in a 
similar position with the Armed Forces Base. Roger Leblanc 
who replaced him is expected to return to his former position 
as board superintendent. 

(Continued from Page I) 
third) Jacques Levert. who re
ceived I he bnok. "L 'Eglise et le!: 
mnuvements": Aline Bard who 
received the bonk. "Together in 
Christ" and Michel St. Pierre 
whn received the bonk. "Why the 
Churches Can't Sta_v Out." · 

* * • 

Tn the 14 to 18-year-old class. 
winners were Denis Chabot. who 
received the poster. "Desider
at.i": Sdvie De Angelis who 
received the bnok "Les etablis
c;cmentc; humains": and Trudv 

I• 
Employment and 
Immigration Canada 

Canada 
Fc1rm Labour Pool 

I ' 

Emploi et 
Immigration Canada 

Les Services de main-d'oeuvre 
agricole du Canada 

Annual Meeting and Elections 
Local Agricultural Manpower Board 

The annual meeting of the Advisory Board to the 

EASTERN COUNTIES 
CANADA FARM LABOR POOL 

will be held at 
SOUTH PLANTAGENET TOWNSHl°P HALL 

Monday, March 29, ,1983 
Guest Speaker: Guy Lessard-The Workmen 's Compensation Board 

The public is welcome. Coffee and doughnuts will be served. 

GLEN GARRY 
ANTIQUE ARMS FAIR c-· 

Sunday, March 20) 
9:30 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. 

at 

The· Bonnie Glen 
Highway 43 Alexandria 

Antique guns, swords, 
military items 

Bought, sold, traded 
and appraised 

Modern -guns~ hunting and shooting supplies also available. 

11·2C 

Admission $2.50 Children under 12/ree 
Lunch available-Everybody welcome 

For more in ormation Call 525-3840 

Ladc>uceur who received the book. 
"Whv the Churches Can't Stay 
Out." 

In the 10 to 13-year-old class. 
winners were Julie Secours who 
received the snng book. "Sing 
i1 ": .Jacques Goulet who received 
the poster. "Peace starts with a 
smile": and Alain Ladouceur who 
recewed 1he poster ... Peace 1s 
nt1\\·ine, . .. 

Organi7erc; alsn report one 
("hild'c; co.it was found following 
the march. The red and vellow 
,lre\'elesc; incket can be obtained 
h,· contacting The Glengarry 
New,. 

• 
MacGillivary's 

Outfitters 
315 Clark Avenue, Cornwall 

Tel. 933-4867 
BAGPIPES 

HIGHLAND 
SUPPLIES 
TARTAN 

BY-THE-YARD 
Anything Scorrish 

We have it! 

EVERYTHING 
IN GENERAL 

by Bruno Lalonde 
• Psychologist: One who, 
when a beautiful girl enters 
the room, watches everyone 
else. 

• The best poems about 
Spring were written before 
the introduction of the in
come tax. 

• Nowadays, when oppor
tunity knocks, you have to 
unlock the deadbolts, re
move the chain, and discon
nect the burglar alarm to let 
it in. 

• Time may be a great 
healer, but it's a lousy 
makeup artist. 

• Life must be worth living. 
The cost keeps doubling 
and we still hang on. 

• Let us double your eating 
pleasure with a fine selec
tion of quality foods. 

See our Spring Sale 
on Paint and Wallpaper 

in our 
Home Improvement 

Supplement 

LALONDE 
General Store 

117 Main St. South 
Alexandria 
525-1424 

Open 9 a.m. to JO p.m. 
Everyday including Sunday ~-----------

and later in the third, Kippen 
added his goal to lift the Manny's 
tn their first 'A' final game 
triumph. 

Other scorers were Brian Wen
c;ink and Dnn Blaney. 

Pentagon pulling out Alain 
Giroux from his net in the last 
minute of play in third . couldn't 
put the puck by Manny's goal
tender Rick Villeneuve. 

Fnr Pentagnn . Rndney Shep
herd scored two and Claude Roy 
had one. 

At the Sports Palace on Mon
d:w. March 14. Maxville Manny's 
Dave Hansnn scored his second 
goal at 11:18in the third period to 
defeat Pentagon Insurance 6-4. 

Tt wac; a big night for Ian 
MacDonald when he managed to 
pac;c; three goals through Pen
tagon 'c; gnaltender Alain Giroux. 

Dc,n Blaney replied with a 
5ingle fnr Maxville in the second 
perind. Rodney Shepherd and 
Yvan Desautels each scored two 
goals for Pentagon Ins_ 

Mannv's nnw lead the A final 
c;erie,; 2-1. 

Dunvegan Wings took a 3-0 
lead in their B ft nal series. 
Mnndav night . after a close 5-4 
victnrv nver Green Valley Jets. 

With a scramble in- front of 
Green Valley goaler Jacques 
Massie. Victor Denobriga scored 
the winning goal at 0:17 seconds 
oft he third perind. 

Other scores- for Dunvegan 
came frnm Kennie Macleod, 
Andre Paquette, Kerry Cameron 
and John MacSweyn . 

Daniel Giroux got things going 
fnr the Jets scoring two goals in 
the first period with one minute 
apart . In the third period Green 
Vallev jets managed to tie the 
game at 2:05 when Mike Bray 
c;urprised Dunvegan goalie Alain 
I alnnde with a hard lnw shot from 
1hc point. 

Lennard Seguin added the 
nther goal for Green Valley . 

The A final resumes Wed
nec;dav. March 16, at 7:30 p.m. in 
Maxville and on Monday, March 
21 at 8:30 p.m. in Alexandria. 

The B final at 10 p.m. Monday, 
March 21. and Monday, March 28 
at !Oifnccessary. 

~ PENTAGON-RAYMOND 

COURTIERS D'ASSURANCES INC. 
INSURANCE BROKERS INC. 

1-311 

BOB MENARD - 48 KENYON WEST 
ALEXANDRIA - OFF. 525-4944 - HOME 525-3203 

Lansdowne Park 
OTTAWA 
Admission: Adults $2.00 
Children under 12 $7 _00 

• Championship Seed, Feed and Forage Show 
• Farm Machinery and Equipment Show 
• Educational and Commercial Exhibits 
• Sim mental Sale - Tues. March 22, 1 :00 p.m. 
• Talent Show - Tues. March 22, 8:00 p.m. 
• Hereford Show - Thu rs. March 24, 10:00 a.m. 
• Hereford Sale - Thurs. March 24, 1 :00 p.m. 
• . Fashion Show - T_hurs. March 24, 8 :00 p.m. 

Glen Walter 
break-in nets 

$200,000 
Provincial Police at Lan

caster are seeking information 
tn help solve two major cases 
of break-in and theft which 
occurred this past weekend. 

In Glen Walter on Saturday 
evening thieves entered a 
residence on Rae Road and 
made off with a really worth
while scoop-approximately 
$200.000 in jewellery. 

There was no evidence of 
the manner of entry. reports 
Constable Gerry Gillissie, who 
ask5 residents to report if they 
remember seeing anything or 
anvbodv in the area which 
m(ght 1·ead to recovery of the 
stolen items. 

ln Snuth Lancaster some
time on the weekend a mobile 
hnme belonging to Korsh 
Investments was completely 
~tripped of its contents. 

"It must ha e taken one or 
two trucklnads to remove all 

that furniture and applian
ces." surmises Constable Gil
lissie. "there was at least a 
$12.000-$15.000value taken in 
tntal." 

Again the police would 
appreciate any tips that might 
help. 

In other police news, a 
28-year-old transport driver 
was taken to hospital with 
minor injuries when the 
tractor-trailer he was driving 
failed to negotiate a curve 
right east of Lancaster Village 
nn old Highway 2. 

James Tran of RR 2, Ux
bridge was driving the van
tvpe unit westward about 7 
p.m. on Monday night when it 
rnlled over resulting in $95,000 
in damage. 

The transport was owned by 
Janton Truck Leasing, Scar-• 
borough. 

Wl-llTE PINE LUMBER. 
Dressed Pine Boards 

for shelving, flooring, wall panelling, 
wainscotting, board and batten 

IN OLD STYLE PATTERNS 
WIDE WINDOW CASING (ROSETTES) 

AND BASEBOARDS 

Tel. 525-3040 

l 

9-tf 

• 
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Parents' information meetings 
planned to combat drug abuse 

Laggan School vOte delayed 
Laggan School parents will not 

be asked to vote on new French 
immersion programs for their 
children for at least six months. 
following a decision by their 
school committee. 

Laggan school committee chair
man Peter Steiche, March 10, 
parents were advised of a meet
ing the sub-committee held 
March 7 with the director of 
education for SD&G and two 
school trustees. 

be room for improvement, the 
sub-committee is satisfied that 
children leaving Laggan's Grade 
8 have covered the same French 
curticulum as other Grade 8 core 
students. 

In reference to late immersion, 
in Grades 7 and 8, the committee 
told parents the school board will 
allow additional teaching staff 
only during the initial two years. 

• 
by Velma Franklin • 

Concerned about the drugs and 
alcohol available to their children, 

beginning at 8 p.m. 
Confused and frightened by 

statistics that indicate drug and 
alcohol abuse have reached ·stag
gering proportions in Eastern 
Ontario, with drugs available in 
unlimited quantities in rural areas 
as easily as in the cities, the 
parents decided direct action was 
needed. 

a group of Maxville and area 
parents is initiating a program 
aimed at better educating adults. 

Ji. Spearheaded by Bonnie Cap
'r puccino and Chris Campbell. the 

-' parents group has arranged a 
series of information nights for 
successive Wednesdays in April. 
Knowledgeable guest speakers 
will be featured for each session, 
which will be held in the Maxville 
and District Sports Complex, 

Convinced they had ,no way of 
stemming the flow of drugs into 
the community, the parents de
termined the widespread distri
bution of informatil)n on the 

•· 

• 

Maxville 
ALARM SYSTEM BEING 
INSTALLED IN SCHOOL 

Some news from the Maxville 
Public School-the yearly regis
tration of little ones for kinder
garten is coming up in April-a 
form has gone out to parents, and 
there will be further notice in this 
newspaper. 

almost complete. This will moni
tor heat. fire and also indicate 
intruders-causing a phone to 
ring in Cornwall when triggered. 
The T.A.S. people in Cornwall 
will then immediately phone the 
appropriate person-Fire Depart
ment, ciiretaker, police, etc. 

The winners in the Royal 
Canadian Legion Poster Contest 
Glengarry Branch #312, Category 
3-Junior Division, were Wanda 
Bender, Karen Lamarche and 
Clint Brown. 

During the month of April the 
school will be participating in a 
Drug and Alcohol Abuse Aware
ness program. to assist parents 
and students to better understand 
this topic. 

The installation of an electronic 
alarm system at the school is 

Holidays coming up for the 
kids-there will be no classes the 
afternoon of Thursday, March 

EASTER; 
SAi E 

News Update on 
VIMI SHOES 

Easter Super Sale! 
SALE ENDS MARCH 31st 

HOURS 

MEN'S FLORSHIEM AND DACK'S 
SHOES ALSO AVAILABLE AT A 
SUPER SAVING PRICE .. . .. $55.00 

MON. & TUES. -9-6 
WED. & SAT.-9-5 

,HURS. & FRl. - 9-9 

lit-

JARMAN SHOES, TOP QUALITY, 
OUR BEST STYLES .......... $49.95 

VIMI SHOES 
VISA 

MOOSE CREEK MALL - 538-2475 

Information on 
The Canadian 
Cancer Society 

for your 
community 

PATIENT SERVICES: Every new patient referr
ed to the Society is visited by a Public Health 
Nurse from an o(ficial or voluntary agency. 
She assists in determining the needs of the 
cancer patient and explains the services of the 
Society to the patient and family as well as ac
quainting them with other "community ser
vices". This visit is made with the doctor's 
permission. There is no charge to the patient 
for this visit. There are "lodges" operated by 
the Ontario Cancer Treatment & Research 
Foundation • .Admission to and accommoda
tion is free through the Foundation Clinics. 
Volunteers of the Canadian Cancer Society 
provide comfort and companionship to pa
tients who are in residence at these lodges 

CANADIAN CANCER SOCIETY 
GLENGARRY COUNTY UNIT 

HOUSEKEEPING: Society funds are available 
for a Homemaker Service to a family in ex
treme need for a period of four weeks. 

DRUGS: Upon request of the patient's physician, 
the Canadian Cancer Society will pay for cer
tain specified pain relieving drugs for patients 
in financial need. 

DRESSINGS: Free dressings made by volunteers 
are available to all cancer patients. 

HOME VISITING: Carefully chosen volunteers 
help to cheer the patient by making home 
visits if this is requested. 

For more information on our Patient Services 
c o n t a c t : Mrs. Isabelle MacDonald, 

Patient Services Chairman, 
525-2880 11·1c 

J 

subject might offer some hope of 
coping with the problem. 

The information will be aimed 
at the parents of the community, 
the adults with the money and 
influence. The schools and police 
have difficulty directing afflicted 
children. who remain the respon
sibility of the parents. however 
unconcerned or uninformed they 
m~y be. 

No approach has been made to 
the adults of the community. 
Children already know much 
about the problem. The OPP have 

17-not in honor of St. Patrick, 
but the staff will be at a computer 
workshop. This is the beginning 
of the March Break. 

School will re-open on Tuesday, 
April 5 at 9 a.m. 

PRAYER SERVICE 
The World Day . of Prayer 

Service at St. Michael's Anglican 
Church was very well attended, 
with about 60 people coming out. 
Rev. Duncan Kennedy of St. 
Andrew's gave a serious and 
thought-provoking address, and 
readers took part from all the 
village congregations. A collec
tion of $67 was sent to the World 
Day of Prayer Association. 

MANOR HELD PRAYER 
SERVICE 

Approximately 70 residents of 
the Maxville Manor attended 
their World Day of Prayer service 
which was held in the auditorium, 
with Mrs. Ann Leroux in charge. 

The following residents took 
reading parts-Neil D. Macleod, 
Hazel MacCallum, Hughena 
MacKinnon. Isabel MacRae, An
nie Kincaid, Dan Campbell, Haz
el Coleman. Bill Docksteader. 
Flossie Cameron. Belle Grant, 
Harriet Campbell and Everad 
Helmer. 

Thelma McConnachie led in the 
Lord's Prayer. and Lily MacKil
lican gave the benediction. 

Rene Carriere sang a lovely, 
solo and Marie Campbell was: 
guest soloist. Isabel MacLeodl 
played the piano for the singing of 
six favorite hymns. 

Tony Poulin introduced the 
guest soloist and thanked all 
those taking part in the ~ervice. 
Refreshments were served after
wards. 

HUNGER MEAL 
The parishioners of St. James 

Cathollc Church have organized a 
hunger meal for this Sunday. 
March 20 at 11 :30 a.m .. after the 
10:30 mass. Participants will 
gather at St. Bernard's School for 
a simple meal of soup and bread. 
There will also be a film and a 
speaker. The diners contribute 
the price of a regular dinner and 
proceeds go for Peace and 
Development in the T~ird World. 

BROOKDALE 
CINEMAS 

938-8414 
OPENS FRIDAY 

with TOM SELLECK 

0 HIGH ROAD 
TO CHINA 

Warning: Coarse Language. TBO 

-~ - -- - .. 7 and 

9:15 p.m. 

BACK BY POPULAR DEMAND 

.EJ E.T. 

9 Academy Award Nominations 
including Best Picture 

7 and 
iQ'AIIHTAL 

~!'JPANCE 9: 15 p.m. 

0 
3RD WEEK 

WITHOUT 
A TRACE 

7 and 

9:15 p.m. 

FRIDAY NIGHT ONLY 
SNEAK PREVIEW 

at 9:15 p.m. of Neil Simon's 
MAX DUGAN RETURNS 

ALSO 

SUNDAY MATINEE 1 P.M. 
ALL CINEMAS 

completed a film directly aimed at 
students in Grades 4, 5 and 6, 
where they feel the problem 
begins. 

Teachers. clergy and youth 
leaders have had access to this 
information, but not the general 
public. 

The parents' information nights 
will follow a format similar to the 
"Focus on the Family" film 
series that was so well attended 
last year. 

First speaker in the series, on 
April 6. will be Peter Barkway of 
the Addiction Research Founda
tion, Cornwall General Hospital. 

As the introductory speaker, 
Mr. Barkway will present an 
overview of the, series, and 
provide facts and figures for the 
district, before opening up the 
whole area for discussion. 

The speaker on April 13 will be 
Alfie Lee. whose emphasis will be 
on alcoholism. He is well known 
from his work at Mount Carmel 
House and his talks to school 
groups and service clubs. 

On April 20 Cornwall's Roger 
Caron, author of the book "Go, 
Boy." will focus on prison life. 

Garry Lalonde of the Seaway 
Valley District Health Council will 
be the speaker on April 27. ' His 
interest is in communication 
between parent and child and 
how breakdowns can lead to 
isolation and addiction. 

Following the speaker's ad
dress each Wednesday. there will 
be a short coffee break. during 
which written questions can be 
submitted by anyone in the 
audience. These will be used for 
an informal question and answer 
period. providing more specific 
information on the topic of the 
even ing. 

In a,ddition, evaluation sheets 
will be made available at the end 
of each evening, so that the 
general public can criticize and 
comment. 

The decision was taken during 
a meeting March 9, during which 
the committee reviewed informa
tion presented by a sub
committee on French language 
programs and a recommendation 
from the director of education 
that no final decision be taken 
until the CRRESP (Committee to 

. Review and Rationalize Existing 
School Programs) report is com
pleted sometime next fall. 

In an open lettet' signed by 

The school board officials were 
presented with an in-depth report 
on what the sub-committee had 
learned about the school's exist
ing Core Program, Kindergarten 
50-50 programs and later French 
immersion programs. 

Presently, students in Grades 3 
to 8 receive the same core 
program as offered in other 
elementary schools in the tri
county :rrea and, while there may 

Judge commends Deveau 
Judge Reginald Levesque gave 

a high commendation to Alexand
ria Police Constable Paul Deveau 
Thursdav. 

stable Deveau was very straight
forward in the evidence." 

Levesque noted that the officer 
made no attempt to "jostle" the 
evidence or "spar" with Rudden 
during cross-examination. 

In the committee's view, the 
Kindergarten .50-50 program has 
been encouraged by the school 
baard only because it is believed 
to encourage good attitudes to
wards the learning of a second 
language. 

Surveys have shown, states the 
committee's letter, that in order 
to maintain French conversational 
ability. the immersion experience 
must be maintained. 

The committee also referred to 
a study completed in Toronto 
which concluded the age at which 
a child begins French is not as 
important as the total amount of 
time of exposure to French. 

"At Laggan. the only way late 
Frenclil immersion programs can 
be offered, without jeopardizing 
the educational value of the 
regular program, is always to 
provide the French immersion 
teacher in addition to the present 
staff.'' stated the Jetter. 

"An analysis of projected en
rolment and classroom organiza
tion at Laggan demonstrated that 
late French immersion; where the 
teacher was not an adu-on, would 
lead to the loss of valuable 
programs, the loss of valuable 
teachers, increased clas~ siz:e for 
those who opt out. s-:~,eduling 
problems and the possibility of 
triple grades." 

Deveau had given evidence in a 
dangerous driving case and al
thou,1~h he appeared as a prosecu
tion witness. the evidence he 
gave resulted in the charge being 
reduced to careless driving, a 
much less serious offense. 

"I was impressed by Constable 
De~eau_." Levesque said. "Con-

Levesque said it was only "the 
second time in my career on the 
bench" that he· had publicly 
commended an officer for his 
testimony but "that type of 
manner of giving evidence by a .a, , 
police officer should be com- .,. 

The Station, Alexandria 

mended in open court." ~ 

TRI COUNTY " 
CRAFTS ~ 
Welcome to our 

Easter Craft Sale 
March 25, 26, 27 

" ~ 
" 

Monday to Saturday 
March 14 to 19 

Joyce Varley 
For all of you who are Irish 

(and those of you who wish you were) 
Come spend St. Patrick's Day, March 17 

with us at the Atlantic 

Cornwall Civic Complex 
Salon B (Downstairs) 

Coming next week ... 
~ March 21 to 26 

" Guiness Friday: 12 noon - 10 p.m. 
Saturday: 10 a.m. - 6 p.m. 
Sunday: 12 noon - 5 p.m. 

For more information 
please call 

932-1064 or 932-7564 

Top Notch Entertainment from Nova Scotia 

~ 
4 ~4~4~4~4 

"NOTHING RUNS LIKE 
A DEERE. EXCEPT MY 

TOYOTA TRUCKS!' 
- Garry Smith 

John Deere Dealer, Maxville 

~~-- . 
-·~ ~ 

' ...... \. 

'We've got 3 Toyota trucks 
for deliveries and service 
work. They just keep on 
running. In fact, they make 
money for us in our business. 
Economical. Good load 
capacity. l highly recommend 
them " 

i -, ... : 
•· r 

i -;· F 
/.- '. : • . ' _?; -l ~ ·\, 
#, . 1·, .. ,i • : 

' . : 
, . I) : ·., •. 

= 

WE'RE THE OTTAWA VALLEY lOYOTA DEALERS 
ASSOCIATION AND WE KNOW TRUCKS. 

Highland Motor Sales 
Maxville 
(613) 527-2735 

Cornwall Toyota 
1515 Pitf St. 
Cornwall 
(613) 932-1106 

1000 Islands Toyota 
590 King St. West 
Brockville 
(613) 342-91 11 

Mendes Motors 
1811 Bank St. 
Ottawa 
(613) 523-8666 

Jackson Motor Sales 
327 Stewart St. 
Renfrew 
(613) 432-3748 

Tony Graham Motors 
1971 Base Ii ne Rd . 
Ottawa 
(613) 225-1212 

S.C. Automobiles 
93 Boul. Greber 
Pointe Gatineau , Que . 
(819) 568-0066 

·eel-Air Automobiles Petawawa Toyota 
450 McArthur Rd. 421 Hwy. St. 
Ottawa Petawawa 
(613) 741-3270 (613) 687-8171 

Auger & Freres 
270 Victoria 
Thurso, Que. 
(819) 985-2218 

Gateway Toyota 
659 Princess St. 
Kingston 
(613) 546-177 4 

TOYOTA 

OH 
WHAT 

A 
FUN BUNCH 
OF GUYS! 
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Peace march success 
Sunday's peace march in Alexandria 

was an overwhelming success by any 
standards. At least 400 people, from 
infants to seniors, took part in the slow 
march, stopping at the Church on the Hill, 
St. Finnan's, Elda Rouleau and Sacred 
Heart Church. 

Under warm, sunny skies the marchers 
walked peacefully, singing songs of peace, 
compassion and love. At each stop, 
leaders spoke of the cold facts of life 
concerning the threat of war that hangs 
over our heads and over our children. 
They drew attention to Canada's contribu
tion to the escalating arms race and spoke 
of what individuals can do to lessen the 
threat of devastating war. 

And they prayed; for compassion and 
understanding among the world's peoples 
and their leaders; for common. sense to 
rule over insanity; for an end to the arms 
race; for peace. 

lt wasn't a loud protest, though the 
soft words, gentle songs and prayers 
roared with sincerity and concern, echoing 
the fears and hopes of kindred millions the 
world over. 

No, by itself Sunday's march will not 
result in a turn-around in the world's 
frightening path to the ultimate war that 
truly will end all wars; a war that will 

destroy mankind. lt will not resl\lt in a 
policy change in Ottawa, refusing aid in 
testing ever more lethal American weap
ons. Canada's export trade in armaments 
will not decrease. 

Hut if Sunday's march is taken as just a 
beginning, leading to larger and more 
frequent protests throughout Eastern 
Ontario, in turn joining similar efforts 
from coast to coast in Canada and the 
United States, individuals like those we 
watched on Sunday can collectively have a 
real effect. 

H public opinion becomes united and 
strong, opposing all contributions to war 
preparation, world leaders will have to 
take notice. They can be forced to toe the 
line with the wishes of the people they 
.represent. 

No, Sunday's march was no waste. It 
was a positive contribution to peace, a new 
world order all sane people desire. 

To the organizers of the march, and all 
the volunteers who supported them, we 
offer our congratulations. They did a 
superb job and we hope they continue. 

The fight for peace cannot be 
abandoned; the survival of the human race 
rests on its success or failure. God help us 
all if we fail. 

Editorial Page 

ALEXANDRIA FIRE DEPARTMENT 1915: Alexandria has long been serv
ed by a capable and hard-working volunteer fire department. This was certain
ly the case in 1915 when this photograph was taken in front of the old fire hall 
on Main Street. The building has since been demolished. We're not sure of the 
order, but we do have names of those pictured. Shown in business suits are 
Mayor J . T. Hope (third from left), fire committee chairman William Rowe, 
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Sales Manager 
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and committee members R.H. Cowan and D. Courville . Shown in the centre 
of the picture in his white helmet is Fire Chief Max M. Christian Seger. Sub
chief William Kemp. The others are Ulric Lalonde, Fred Chevrier, Archie 
Gauthier, X. Labelle, Alex Grant, Hilaire Lalonde, George Lalonde, D. A. 
McDonald, James McDonald and A. P. McDonald. 

Photo-Courtesy of Helen Kaufmann and Marguerite Seger 

Divorce out of control 
• The results of • two-year Statistics Men and women ace .divorcing a: a Se CO nd lo Ok 

Canada study, released last wee~, confirm vounger age than ever before; about hve 
by Phil Rutherford 

what we have known for some time; the years younger. 
i1;stitu!ion of _marriage is falling apart in · Although there are 15 grounds for 
Canadian society• divorce, most Canadians rely on only 

Nearly 40 per cent of Canadian three-adultery, cruelty or separation for 
marriages now end in divorce, a 500-per- three years. 
c~nt in~rea~e over the rate in 1968 when What has changed in society that so 
Canada s divorce laws were relaxed. many people can take a disposable 

Divorce is now almost as common as attitude toward marriage'? The fact that 
marriage itself and occurs equally in divorces have become easier and faster, 
nearly all age, education and social obviously contributes. But the real 
groups. problem exists the day the ~ride walks 

"Two decades ago, to know of down the aisle to her groom. 
someone divorced, or better, to have been Too often people who marry are not 
divorced, was rare indeed," wrote the ready for marriage. They're immature and 
report's authors. "Today, it is co:r_nmon- basically irresponsible. They do not 
place to have some personal first-hand appreciate their own strengths and 
knowledge of divorce." weaknesses. They do not have a realistic 

Ninety per cent of divorces are not view of the responsibilities and difficulties 
contested, needing only the court's that will inevitably be theirs in the years 
"rubber stamp." ahead. 

The study involved 500,000 divorce Marriage is simply taken too lightly. 
cases between 1969 and 1979 and found, Marriage courses are available and 
although the rate of divorce is still 10 per some clergy insist on them before 
cent lower than in the United States, it has consenting to conducting the wedding 
risen continually in Canada since the ceremony . Hut too many young wives and 
current Divorce Act was enacted by husbands to be do not avail themselves of 
Parliament in 1968. Previously, adultery the sound instruction and advice readily 
was virtually the ~nly grounds for divorce ~vailable. 
in most Canadian provinces. Perhaps such courses should be a legal 

The rate of increase has slowed since requirement. That might help. 
1975, but only because the courts reached Hut the problem would still remain. 
the limit of their ability to absorb and And again, it stems back to the 
process the growing backlog of cases, "throw-away" concept of marriage. Give 
according to the report. it a try and if it doesn't work, divorce and 

Marriages ending in divorce today try again• 
~ave lasted less than nine years, 1f marriages are going to last, they will 
compared to 13½ a decade ago. havP to start on a much firmer footing. 

· ~~)Glll(),. c;,.i,_~~):,J·, .,,~~--n~•-••11,",iE -----•• ri:i:)a(a< :,a(;~-)j· IID<:MIIIIIU-OGIIIG-fGHIIK)mcr<~~'>(C'~·· 

Every year more people are maimeo driving due to the lack of independent convince them to leave the cars behind 
and killed on our highways by impaired witnesses. and hail a cab or walk, then maybe the 
drivers. The cost in human lives over the Provincial Court Judge Jean-Marie threat of cold steel bars will. 
past 10 years exceeds the death toll from Bordeleau rejected the recommendation, . Society is too willing to accept 
World War Two, according to one survey. determining a jail sentence was in order. impaired driving and refer to those 

The financial costs total billions from The driver was sentenced to 30 days in convicted as "unlucky" or the victims of 
the economy, with medical and hospital jail, to be served on weekends. "miserable cops" instead of condemning 
expenses, lost income and lost man hours The convicted man was ordered to them as the criminals they are. 
from industry. perform 100 hours of community service, The courts and society often treat bum 

Perhaps most tragic of all is the plight placed on probation for 18 months during cheque artists and petty, unarmed burg-
of families , left to cope following the loss which he is not allowed to consume alcohol lars more harshly than they do impaired 
of parents or children. No financial or enter a licensed establishment. His drivers, who often seem to wind lethally 
settlement could ever come close to driver's license was suspended for 18 through streets and highways at will. 

months, one year more than the six There has to be a priority system that compensating. 
Impaired drivers are far more -dang

erous than the cruelest murderers. They 
kill far more often. 

Yet our courts too often treat the crime 
as if it was a minor offense. 

The Ottawa Citizen headlined such a 
case on Thursday. A young man, severely 
intoxicated in January, 1982, proceeded to 
drive his car on the Leitrim H.oad. ije fell 
asleep at the wheel, his car went over the 
centre line and collided with another 
vehicle head -on. 

A 63-year-old man, the innocent driver 
of the oncoming car, was killed. Mirac
ulously, two passengers in his car were 
!10t injured. lt could easily have been a 
triple fatality. . 

Hoth the Crown and defense attO\"neys 
requested the 20-year-old man at fault in 
the accident not be sent to jail.' 

He was charged with criminal neg
ligence and dangerous driving. The 
charges were dropped in favor of impaired 

months required by statute. makes more sense than what is now 
Sympathy was shown partly because practised. lf our courts are meant to 

the accused was severely scarred by the protect society, then it stands to reason 
accident and will carry the guilt with him that killers-and impaired drivers are the 
for the rest of his life. Compassion may be most prolific of all-should be dealt with 
a respectable virtue in a judge, but what most harshly. 
about deterrence'? The threat of spending And when police officers stop and 
30 days in jail, on weekends no less, and charge motorists for impaired driving, you 
then only if you manage to kill someone in won't hear any squawking from this 
a drunken stupor, will hardly scare off corner. We can only praise the effort and 
many potential motorized killers. beg for more. A police officer will never 

How valuable was the victim's life? It know how many lives he has saved by 
could not have been given much weight stopping drunk drivers. He can only regret 
when a judge will not even consider t!10se he has missed. 
inconveniencing his killer beyond off-work And in our court coverage, The 
weekends. Glengarry News will continue to pririt the 

How do the victim's family and friends names of those convicted of impaired 
feel? I'd be afraid to ask. driving for all our readers to see. As time 

Penalties under the Criminal Code for goes on, we hope more and more of our 
impaired driving are grossly inadequate. readers will come to recognize these 
Convicted impaired drivers should be people for what they truly are: criminals 
placed behind bars on the first and every and potential killers, all. And therein lies 
offense. lf respect for human life will not the best deterrence. 

From the old rail fence by Anna Margaret MacDonald 
·~ JI m• i~ 11 !)'-2511 r/la.rn:.u 11 !~}S()N(;)a(;~~-<ll!al!(>.WIGi).31JK;~~~~,;;,~X~~§IIRi ·~·r Ill {)!'.,.e-r.,c>.~ f~Y~~'d I ZHlilOi-ill 11 .11 11 11 11 .-z:we.~,)1*-&)a{)al{~ 

"What's going on at St. Finnan's?," people ask on Heartache is no ct1tterent. There is a problem own centre of worship rather than disperse and annex The old order had its merit at that time. 
Wednesday afternoons as they line up to wait for The present. And because people like to think of their in i1;_r,oups to surro_unding parishes. The proposal at the cathedral has been put before 
News. Seldom have we seen a local issue cause such church as an area of solace, hurts go deep and are },hey worked it out gradua!ly. . , . the people to discuss and already there has been one 
concern. lt would appear the "Bad News Gremlins" got long-lasting. It re~!ly upset~ ~e to th_m_k t~~ B1s?op ~ Pal_ace open meeting held "on the spot" to do just that. 

, afoot and spread the word that the cathedral is going to At heart is the "history, heritage and tradition" "."as sold , 0?e panshwner. ot ~t. hnnan s said, as a Good follow-ups that have already come are new 
be desecrated, mutilated, pillaged and plundered. deep-rooted in the lives of many of the parishioners, lew,~ere tal_kmg abo~t 1?e situatwn. ,, awareness of church design, awareness that St. 

These fears of course are not entirely unfounded. who look on the old church furnishings with a sense of . Hut of ,~our~e- it is put to _good use,. a??ther Finn an 's should be a focal point of tourist interest, 
Other churches in the area have been stripped to the protectiveness that has grown in intensity since the pomted out. lsn tit much better for our semor citizens s that people do care about their church. . . . 1. bl h h 1. . b awarene s 
walls and their parishioners today regret these changes discussion on cathedral renovation began. to enJoy it as a m~e co~ orta ~ ome_ 1• an. or. 11 ~o ~ The only problem with even "open" discussions is I 
were made so quickly and without their participation, That, we can understand, all too well. Parishioners almost empty, with only the bishop livmg m it hke 11 that sometimes the meek who also have great ideas do 
on the whole, or without reasons being made public at St. Raphael's in August 1970 gazed at the smolder- use?}? b~?" . ,, . . " not get a chance to expre~s them. ' ' 
why these had to be in the first place. ing ruins of their old church and thought their church . , 1 hat s not the y~i~~ , came the reJomder. We lt would be a good idea for all the parishioners, 

So many people are hurting as they speak of the old devotions would never be the same again. rlirl~, t ha~e ai:iy say m it. . not just those who have forefathers in the graveyard, to . 
cathedral. We have interviewed more than one, no Hut they learned in rhe months immediately L herei~ hes the problem. People of !he modern writ e letters to their pastor revealing their inner f 
cry-babies they, whose eyes welled up with tears as following, as they crowded shoulder to shoulder in the ~ongregat10ns no longer accept decrees without some feelings about the issue. 
they, perhaps as never before, realized the importance little lona Academy chapel that accommodated them rnrut. . 

1 
of This way, no one could say he was overpowered or 

of the building in their lives. until the new church was built, that all that really Hack in the first quarter 0 ~ our century a coup e_ unrler undue influence to vote a certain way. 
Hurt is an everyday part of living. It is one of the mattered was the people who made up the parish and in priests with an eye !o ~duca~10n a?nounced that high What is really important here, is not the building, 

defences that protects us from bodily harm; it warns us their adversity they grew closer than ever before. c;;_rho_ols would be bmlt m their parishes and that _each hut what happens to the people themselves as they 
of areas that require action to prevent a greater There were plenty of heartaches and problems that family would be assessed an amount to pay for them. exchange ideas. 
problem, an ache that informs us a tooth needs narl to be solved at that time, chief among which was to Thus Maryvale Abbey at (;!en Nevis and Iona Academy May they grow in faith, because that is all that 
attention, a leg is broken or a tumor is at work. convince the bishop that they needed to rebuild their at St. Raphael's came into being. matter~. 
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Letters 
Had adventure I • 

I 

• while holidaying 
I 

The editor. 
The Glengarry News: 

I thought I would let you know 
of a comical incident that happen
ed to me lately. My husband and I 
are spending the winter in 
Florida . Two of my husband's 
sisters. (Mrs. Jack Reid of 
Alexandria is one of them) are in 
the same trailer park as we are. 

The six of us decided to go and 
see the Strawberry Festival in 
Plant City, FL, last Thursday. 
When we got there my husband 
gave a car key to one of his 
brothers-in-law in case we would 
be separated by the crowd and 
needed something in the car. 

Real and I went our way after a 
while and they took another 
direction on the fairgrounds. 

.' After supper I told my husband I 
would go and get his sweater in 
the car because since he had a 
heart attack last summer, he is 
not able to walk very far. 

That is when my adventure 
begins . I looked high and low, one 
street down the other to locate the 
car but could not find it. After an 
hour I was exhausted, so when I 
saw an empty police car parked at 

an intersection. I said to myself. 
"I will go and ask the trooper if I 
could sit in. his car to rest a 
while." He was in the middle of 
the street directing the traffic. He 
told me I could and that is when 
the fun begins. 

I got in the back seat and closed 
the door. After 15 minutes I felt 
rested and ready to join my 
husband. 1 looked for the door 
handle but there were no handles. 
Then I started to get warmer and 
warmer until 1 thought I was 
going to suffocate. There was an 
iron grill in front of me dividing 
the two seats and I felt caged in. 
Then I realized I was trapped in 
there. 

I never suffered from claustro
phobia before but I know what it 
is now. I started to have aches 
and pains I had never experienc
ed before in my life. The hour I 
soent in there was like a month. 
Cars that were stopped by the cop 
to give a chance to the cars on the 
other street to go by, would 
sometimes stop right beside me. I 
would see somebody pointing at 
me and everybody in the car look 
at me. Lord knows what kind of 
criminal they thought I was. 

The trooper had forgotten 
about me or he thought I had sat 
in the front seat where I could 
have gotten out. Finally he came 
to the car. He asked me if I was 
rested. I replied. " I do not know if 
I'm rested but I think I'm fit for 
the looney house." · 

One of my brothers-in-law had 
moved the car closer to the 
fairgrounds and had called for us 
on an intercom, but we never 
heard it. When we were in the 
entertainment tent the intercom 
could not be heard . That is why I 
could not find the car. Now I 
realize what it must be like to be 
locked in a prison cell-horrible 
in the superlative degr~e. 

Maybe Glengarrians would like 
to know what is happening to 
another Glengarrian holidaying in 
Florida. 

We wish you could all be with 
us enjoying the won4erful temp
erature, flowers and attractions of 
this state. 

Smile, God loves you and so do 
we! 

Mrs . Eva Larocque, 
Bainsville and Florida. 

Reports poll on young 
The editor, 
The Glengarry News: 

With so many changes taking 
place in regard to our Roman 
Catholic Church, it seems a good 
idea to reflect before going any 
further on one aspect at least, 
that of our young Catholics, 

Let us consider the results of a 
recent McCready opinion poll. It 
sampled religious attitudes of 
4,000 Canadian and American 

_. Catholics from 11 to 30 years of 
~ age. This is what it revealed: 

Artificial birth control is wrong: 
10 per cent agree, 90 per cent 
disagree; 

.,_ Divorced Catholics may not 
"!" remarry without Church ap-

proval: 17 per cent agree. 38 per 
cent disagree; 

The pope is infallible in matters 
of faith and morals: 25 per cent 
agree, 75 per cent disagree; 

There is life after death: 64 per 
cent agree; 36 per cent disagree. 

Finally. since the loyalty of a 
true believer is shown by how he 
or she practices one's faith , what 
percentage of these young people 
attend mass every week? Answer: 
37 per cent. 

These are the results of a 
"modernist" take-over in Cath 
olic schools since Vatican II. 
according to Christian Order 
Magazine, December 1981. 

The McCready poll confirmed 

what critics of religious education 
have been maintaining for a long 
time. "It is destroying belief, not 
teaching it." 

A relatively 'short while after 
the closing of Vatican II. Pope 
Paul VI made this profound 
statement, "The smoke of Satan 
has entered our Church." 

The changes since then help 
one to recall what John Jacob 
Astor. a passenger on the Titanic 
reµorte dlv said immediately after 
the ship hit the iceberg, ,;I rang 
for ice. but th is is ridiculous." 

Pat Wheeler, 
St. Andrews West. 

Reader wants ·dollar value 
The editor, 
The Glengarry News: 

Let me make some comments 
through your good paper. Is 
inflation really being reduced? Or 
is the buying power of many 
Canadians being reduced in
stead? 

In my opinion there are about 
one-third of the working force in 
Canada with no real income. By 
this I mean those people who are 
forced to accept unemployment 
insurance and welfare. 

What about those small self
employed people whose income is 
reduced to the point where they 
have no purchasing power either? 

Now let us take a look at the 

other side of the coin. Those 
people who work for governments 
of anv kind or boards have not 
exper.ienced any recession what
soever. Jn fact because of a 
slowing down of the economy 
they have actually gained. Be
cause they have not experienced 
layoffs or ~low-downs. But rather, 
h~ve kept up very well by getting 
sufficient annual increases and 
because of reduced prices their 
money is going farther. 

The big problem in Canada 
today is the wealth of the country 
is going into so few pockets. And 
if this situation does not change I 
see very little improvement of 

Canada's economy. 
Because those people who are 

continually digging into the big 
pot which by the way is empty, 
are with all respect non -producers 
as such. 

What Canada must do. and I 
am not just talking about the 
Federal Government. I am talking 
about all governments. boards, 
commissions. etc., this spending 
must be controll ed. and the work 
force . the producing sector. must 
be put to work. And above all we 
have got to start getting dollar 
value for money spent. 

A.drian Gadbois. 
RR! Cornwall. 

Canadians need nuclear 
The editor, the pressurized-water reactor sys-
The Glengarry News: tern made under licenses granted 

Canadians are being asked to by Westinghouse of the U.S.A. 
oppose the generation of elect- Canada changed from an ag-
ricity by nuclear power plants rarian society to a largely indust-
without being told of Canada's rial economy prior to World War 
place in this field and the IL Generated electrical power and 
potential effect of such opposition machines displaced the muscle-
on our national well-being. Often power of people and animals 
the appeals are from those who, allowing us the standard of living 
for various reasons, choose to we have today. In the last 20 
ignore available data on the world vears the world economy has 
status of commercial nuclear ~ oved to even higher levels of 
power. industrial efficiency. with mach-

In 1982 Canada ranked eighth ines taking over more and more 
in the world in installed nuclear jobs. Additional electrical power 
power plant capacity as shown in has been necessary. 
the following table { behind the We are fortunate that the 
United States, France, Soviet planners for Ontario Hydro start-
Union, Japan, West Germany, ed us on the nuclear power plant 
Great Britain and Sweden. pathway some 30 years ago. With 

Twenty-five other countries the province, as we have come to 
have nuclear power plants oper- know it, totally committed to 
ating or under construction. Ad- being a world-competitive in -
ditional countries have plant sites .- Aiustrial society we need large 
in the planning and negotiation amounts of inexpensive electrical 
phase. During the 1980's Canada power , with a reliable fuel supply 
will move up to sixth place behind such as our native uranium 
West Germany. resources. Since the province is 

France is most committed to not blessed with adequate sup-
nuclear energy; it expects at least plies of waterpower or fossil 

, 55 per cent of its electricity needs fuels . the nuclear power plant 
to be supplied by nuclear re-actors program was the obvious course 
within three years. She has 13 to take. The rising costs and 
sites operating and seven under shortages of supply of imported 
construction. fossi l fuels starting in the 1970's 

• 
France has emerged as one of adds to this point. The writer is 

1 the strongest contenders for not affiliated with Ontario Hydro 
world supply of nuclear power in any capacity and as a private 
plants . Their large domestic citizen has no hesitation in 
market for standard units allows congratulating them on their good 
the French nuclear . industry, judgment. 
-which has undisputed skills in At present, the United States 
nuclear technology and project has 59 nuclear power plants 
management, to offer a well- under construction and by the end 
proven design of the most widely of 1990 some 135 plants will be in 
adopted reactor system. The operation for a total of 122.000 
excellent French approach uses megawatts. On the !.ame bas is 

Canada has one plant under 
construction and by the end of 
1990 is expected to have five in 
operation for a total nuclear 
power plant capacity of under 
17.000 megawatts. 

On a' world basis the outlook is 
even more dramatic. Today nine 
per cent of electrical require
ments come from nuclear powe~ 
plants. By the year 2000 some 25 
per cent of the world's expanding 
e lectrical energy needs are to 
come from nncfear power. 

The Soviet Union and its 
adjacent satellites have a huge 
expansion of nuclear power cap
acity scheduled to come on 
stream about 1990. With the 
Soviet Union controlling 30 per 
cent of the world's known uran• 
ium supply. their program con
tinuity is assure d. The Russians 
have led the world in some 
aspects of nuclear power genera
tion . The world' s first commercial 
nuclear power station began 
operating in June of 1954 at 
Obinsk. 

Smaller countries are becoming 
efficient industrial product com
petitors through their ability to 
generate electricity by nuclear 
means. Increasing com~etition 
for our industrial goods in coming 
our way. Taiwan and South Korea 
have nuclear power plants operat• 
ing and more are being built. 

It will be an economic tragedy 
in Canada if our nuclear power 
electricity generation program is 
curtailed through political pres
sures based on misinformation. 

George Elliott , 
member , Institute of 
Electrical and Elect
ronic Engineers . 

----~---~~~-----~-----------~--.~ 
• J , 
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Reader won't support another newspaper 
The editor. 
The Glengarry News: 

The "News" has been a 
welcome visitor in our home for 
generations and we want that 
relationship to continue. 

1t is disturbing that there is 
support for a third local news
paper. How much fragmentation 
can the failing community spirit 
of our county withstand? Organ
izers of worthwhile activities find 
it more and more difficult to get 
people in volved. The pursuit of 
another public platform will lead 
to self righteousness and nitpick
ing. 

Experience with the " Glen-

garry'News" and with ' 'Le Point" 
has proven that any signed 
submission is publi!,hed even 
when the content contradicts the 
viewpoint of the editor. 

Investigative reporting for pub
lic analysis is certainly necessary 
as long as there are people who 
will take advantage of the weak
nesses and igno'rance of others. It 
is necessary as long as we have a 
cou rt system that protects the 
criminal better than the victim, a 
system l'n which money buys a 
"better" lawyer. It is needed as 
long as there are public repre
sentatives and employees who 
become greedy, arrogant and 

irresponsible once the seat of 
public office Becomes comfort
able. It is needed to keep straight 
the accounts and management of 
the public purse . 

However, all investigative re
porting must be done with 
sensitivity, a characteristic very 
few so,called journalists practice. 
If a _journalist is satisfied with 
rocking the boat or embroiling the 
public so that the social environ
men t becomes polluted with 
suspicion. hatred. and bickering, 
then the journalist does not 
deserve the title of a professional. 
A journalist isn't necessarily the 
public's savior in any given 

situation. Perhaps it is this lack of 
sensitivity that has questioned 
th e cred ibility of journalism 
throughout tht: world. (So few 
readers check out the sources of 
an article or accept it as one 
person's opinion.) 

Openness among citizens in 
any social activity is the result of 
vears of interaction. Mutual trust 
is a val uable relationship that is 
not achieved overnight. Only a 
fool tells all to a casual acquaint
ance e~pecially if the acquaint
a nce is going to publicize the 
conversation and has the ability to 
exa.~.~erate the conversation and 
or misuse the details. Baring 

oneself leaves a person vulner
able . 

The " Glengarry News" is not 
the work of one person. To 
discredit the faithful service, 
creative writing, and community 
interest of several employees for 
the sake of one doesn't jive with 
personal ideas of foresight and 
discernment. Besides, changing 
one's loyalties doesn't necessarily 
bring about an improved, open 
and fair. social environment. 

So l remain, a faithful sub
scriber, 

Margo MacRae, 
RR#3. Dalkeith . 

FOR A LIMITED 
TIME ONLY ' 

FREE 
Installation of GM 
Exhaust Systems 

and Snock Absorbers 

' ' 

This offer includes 
1 year warranty 

on all 
Exhaust Parts 

Also from our body shop: 
any repairs in excess of $500 

including accident or insurance claims 
receive a choice of: 

- Free body side molding, includes 
installation 

- Free mud guards, includes 
installation 

• Free pin striping, includes 
installation 

GUARANTEED SERVICE 
GUARANTEED GM PARTS 

GUARANTEED PRICE 

GARAGE (GREEN VALLEY) LTD. 

We treat you,:!gSally 
SERVICE DEPARTMENT 

Green Valley, Ont. Tel. 525-2300 

This offer includes 
Life Time Warranty 

on all 
Shock Absorbers 

i ' 

Also from our body shop: 
any repairs in excess of $500 

Including accident or insurance claims 
receive a choice of: 

• Free body side molding, includes 
installation 

- Free mud guards, includes 
installation 

- Free pin striping, includes 
installation 
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Letters 
II a 

Praises peace march, questions 

political statements 

The editor, 
The Glengarry News: 

Peace in our hearts, peace in 
the world. A large group of 
people from Alexandria and sur
roundings responded to these 
words which for centuries have 
inspired countless men and wo
men. 

The size of the peace march 
and the silent reverence of the 
marchers made it clear that these 
words have lost nothing of their 
power and inspiration. We must 
be grateful to the organizer, 
Development and Peace, to have 
given the citizens of this area the 
opportunity to express their de
sire for peace in a communal and 
public way. 

Peace in our hearts. These 
words remind us of the words of 
Christ : "Peace I give unto you." 
The peace that comes into our 
hearts as a result of these words 
is the only peace that can save 
this world from a nuclear holo
caust, poverty and injustice. No 
laws. no social organizations, no 
matter how perfectly thought out, 
will be able to replace the peace 
that comes from our obedience to 
Christ's teachings. 

We are well aware of the 
attempts by totalitarian govern
ments in the past and at present 
to impose their "peace" and 

"justice" on subjected people. 
These attempts have brought 
death and misery t,o untold 
numbers of people. Political 
systems may promise a heaven on 
earth. but we know they cannot 
do this, and I fear anybody who 
tries to impose one. 

As far as justice is concerned, 
Christians are obliged to strive 
unceasingly and determinedly for 
justice in their relationships with 
other people, in their responsib
ilities as citizens, and in the 
organization to which they be
long. But it does not oblige them 
to espouse one particular political 
party, or to embrace cer:tain 
ideologies. Any attempt by one 
group or another to do so should 
be met with great concern, and it 
is in this spirit of concern that I 
write the following words. 

Although we must be grateful 
to Development and Peace to call 
the people of this area to pray for 
peace, I feel they have done a 
great disservice to the church by 
politicizing part of the meeting. 
Development and Peace should 
not presume that church mem
bers must automatically agree 
with their political biases, or that 
their view of the world is that of 
the church. I feel that the 
opinions given by this organiza
tion and the groups that support-

Our Competitors 
told us we couldn't 

• even give our 
Product A way 

So we at 

~-<\ffllt~').;~ 

ilf:lt 

48A Kenyon St. W. / 
525-4173 

Decided 
To let you, the consumer, be the judge of that. 

That's right 
Just in time for Easter, starting March 21/83 through 

the week of March Break till the 25th 
all studt:nts and children, the age of 12 and under 

can walk in our establishment and demand 

we give them a FREE haircut 
and for you mom and dad, Happy Easter! 

11-lc 

t 
f 

I 
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ed need careful scrutinizing. 
For example, why shoµld an 

anti-American banner be allowed 
in a peace march? Why should so 
much space be given to organiza
tions which are hostile to the 
West, especially the United 
States? Why are countries which 
are under some sort of Marxist 
(communist) regime exempt from 
criticism? 

Even a totalitarian and repres
sive government such as that in 
Nicaragua, which is hostile to the 
thurch and insulted the Pope 
during his visit, is acceptable to 
the organizers. 

Why is there no mention of the 
military presence of Cuba in 
Africa, where mercenary troops 
of that country are used to 
suppress the natural aspirations 
of emerging countries? I cannot 
believe that justice and peace are 
the prerogatives of Marxist coun
tries. 

If the organization Develop
ment and Peace is part of the 
Catholic Church, I am frankly 
puzzled. I don't think the opinions 
expressed are those of the 
majority of the church. They 
belong more to the ideology of a 
political party far to the left of 
centre. For centuries the church 
has as part of its missionary 
efforts helped people_: to educate 
themselves. build schools, hos
pitals. encouraged sanitation and 
supported peace and develop
ment. Why is there a need for a 
secular organization such as 

-

Development and Peace which 
often seems more eager to spread 
revolution than the Word of God? 

It seems to me that a statement 
of the bishop (s) in this matter is 
long overdue. If Development and 
Peace has official recognition of 
the church to the extent 1~t it is 
allowed to collect money· and 
spread propaganda, do the bish-

, ops also officially 1rndorse the 
political views of the organiza
tion? If they do, would they 

'expect the members of the church 
to support such political parties as 
hl'lve the same views? It would 
follow that such political parties 
might be endorsed by the bish
ops. 

If Development and Peace is 
not part of the church , why should 
it be allowed to operate therein? 
Why shouldn't other organiza
tions be allowed the same priv
ileges? 

There may be parties with 
peace programs and views on 
social justice which in their 
opinions are just as valid. It would 
be a matter of elementary justice 
that all parties be treated equally. 

In the near future, many people 
in Glengarry County will be called 
upon to contribute t0 Develop
ment and feace. I hope this letter 
will help to make people think 
about what is involved in such a 
do11ation . 

-lmtt'erely, 
John van Nooten, 
men Robertson. 

I 
!°'We're the no~oifyJ!iil Undemlls evaryooay•' 

H"DUSE OF LJGHTING 
Wholesale and Re~ain Lighting_ f!xtures 

Also Evening Appointm~nts 
Tel. 534-2912 

16 Johnson Crescent Long Sault, 0nt.1 
--1 

• Cushion Floor 

- • Carpet 

• Ceramics 

• Wallpaper 

Tapis 

Richard Ranger Carpet 
Inc. 

400 Main St. N., Alexandria Beside CNR Tracks 

Tel. 613-525-2836 
Specialists in Home Decorating 

Cushion Floor - "No Wax" 

$8.90/m~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . now on sale at $ 5. 901m2 
* Decorative Mirrors * Eureka Vacuum 
* Bathroom Accessories * Dreco Blinds 

ENDS OF ROLLS 
NOW 30% - 50% OFF to-tf 

HIGH TECH is a fact ... 
at St. Lawrence College! 

MicrocQmputer 
Engineering Technology 
The first of Its kind, the Microcomputer Engineering 
Technology program Is an up-to-date HIGH TECH 
3-year program with emphasis on hardware and 
software. The program features three co-op work 
terms which place students In the heart of the HIGH 
TECH Industry, earning while they are learning. 

Instrumentation Engineering 
Technician (Process Control) 

Are you Interested In computer-controlled systems? 
This two-year program Joins computers to process
control to teach both conventional and modern 
technrques for an efficient plant operation. This 
computerization of production processes deflnltely 
puts this program In the fleld of HIGH TECH. 

The HIGH TECH industry in Canada needs Qualified people! 
For more lnformetlon, phone or write: 

Information S.Vlces 
·st. Lawrence College 

Wlndmlll Point 
Cornwall, Ontario, K8H 4Z1 

Telephene: 933-8080 

· S7-. LAWRENCE COLLEGE SAINT-LAURENT 
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Competitive swimmers want support 
The editor, 
The Glengarry News: 

We are the Upper Canada 
Swim Club or the Cornwall Sea 
Lions. We are the only competi
tive swim club in the Three 
United Counties-34 swimmers 
from six to 18 years old. 

Apart from physical develop
ment (our nine-year-olds will 
swim three miles in two hours) 
our program encourages self
discipline, achievement and 
trains young adults to help serve 
their community as lifeguards, 
swim instructors and recreation 

supervisors. 
These swimmers are coached 

by three dedicated people
Martha Anderson, Jack Clifton 
and Allan Lister and we are 
funded by fees and volunteer help 
from coaches and parents. 

Our only public fund-raising is 
a part of the Canadian Amateur 
Swimming Association's annual 
Swim-a-Thon, held here in Corn
wall on April 10. This appeal to 
you is part of that fund-raising 
campaign. 

Without your financial help, 
these young athletes will not be 

able to continue improving. Most 
swim meets are held outside 
Cornwall, with provincial and 
national meets as far away as 
Vancouver. Last year our ex
penses were $24,000. 

Our goal this year of $7,500 
must be met to keep us in 
operation, and we can't do it 
without your support, so please 
be generous. 

You might also be helping to 
put our area more firmly on the 
map, by helping develop a future 

national or international swim
mer! 

. For further information, please 
contact: President Mn. Lorraine 
Lafrance at 933-2690; Treasurer 
Mr. J. G. Poulio( busines~ 
932-3971, residence 938-7841. ' 

Cheques should be made pay
able to Upper Canada Swim Club 
and sent to: J. G. Pouliot, P.O. 
Box 1762, Cornwall, Ontario. 

Pat Lumley, co
chairman. 

How about protecting 
' GLEN~J!14QLACE 
our other languages? SUNDAY 

AFTERNOON 
The editor. 
The Glengarry News: 

A political opponent of the 
national Progressive Conserva
tive Party has recently asserted 
that we are opposed to enhancing 
the role of languages other than 
English and French. 

In fact, members of our caucus, 
pushing in precisely the opposite 
direction, are far more represent
ative of the one-third of Can
adians whose cultural background 
is neither English nor French 
than for any other political party. 

The issue surfaced recently 
when the Official Languages 
Committee of the House and 
Senate considered whether some 
amendment to the Official Lang
uages Act could be made which 
would improve the position of the 
many other languages spoken 
across Canada. The matter will 
arise again at future meetings of 
the committee. 

A suggestion was made by Max 
Yalden. the commissioner of 
OfficiaLLanguages. to the effect 
that an existing provision of the 
Act be replaced by one specifying 
that "the Official Languages Act 
shall be interpreted in a manner 
consistent with the preservation · 
and enhancement of Canadian 
languages other than English and 
French." 

As an MP from a province 
where numerous languages are in 
use, I expressed concern that his 
proposal did not appear to add 
anything substantive to the cur
rent reality in the federal juris
diction. which provides very }jttle 
in the way of acquired language 
rights for languages other than 
English and French. 

On further reflection , it strikes 
me that an amendment along the 
following lines might provide 
greater protection for other lang
uages: "Nothing in this act shall 
be interpreted so as to affect 
adversely the use , preservation, 
or enhancement of any other 
language in use by Canadians." 

Other members of the Langu-

Get the most 
out of your 
business 

insurance. 
Federaied Insurance can make sure 
that you 're getting real insurance 
value. Because our security survey is 
geared to put your Insurance dollars 
where they 'll count the most. 

FEDERATED 
INSURANCE 

It 's our business to protect yours. 

Les 
Christensen 
1m Liltl.ane 
Gloucester, Ont. 

733-2313 
11· 14·17·20c 

ages Committee and I would be 
very interested to hear from any 
concerned individual or group on 
the subject. Comments could be 
sent stamp-free to the chair
men of the committee, Senator 
Lowell Murray and Jean-Robert 
Gauthier, MP, in care of the Clerk 
of the Official Languages Com• 
mittee , House of Commons, 
Ottawa, Ont. KlA OA6, or to 
myself at the House of Commons. 

Yours sincerely, 
David Kilgour, MP 
Edmonton Strathcona 

® ·®© 

Full-time 
Part-time 
Daycare 
Phone. 

525-3163 

March 20 
at 1:30 p.m. 

14 Regular Garnes at $25 
6 Specials, ~50 

1 Replar Game $250 
Guaranteed $500 on last game 

3 door prizes 25-15-10 
Admi11ion $1 ...,. WSGR 

NOW 
OPEN 

GLENGARRY DAYCARE ACTION: 

.. 

Where your child plays and learns. 

1ms AD COULD BE 
ALL 'lllAT'S Sf ANDING 

BEIWEENYOU 
AND A FOSfERCHILD. 

On the surface, it's not difficult to have a mis
taken impression about foster care. 

And if you never take the time to crack the 
surface, and find out the facts, you might very well 
be denying yourself, and a foster child, a very 
rewarding experience. 

Your willingness to care may be all the qualifica
tion you need to be a foster parent. Financial 
assistance, guidance and support are available to 
foster parents. 

The personal rewards of sharing your love with 
a child or young person who really needs you 
are very great. 

Please contact your local Children's Aid Society 
or Family and Children's Services, and find out 
more about foster care. 

The children need you now, more than ever 
before. And maybe you need them too. 

Ministry of Community 
and Social Services 

®Ontario 
Frank Orea, Minister 

Wi lliam Davis, Premier 

•• 
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McDonald to advise Caribbean wolllell formulate theine for service 
Alex McDonald, chairman ot 

the Cornwall and Area Housing 
Authority, has been appointed to 
a new advisory council to Ontario 
Housing Corporation. 

new policies. 

The Lochiel Township council
lor will sit on an 11-member 

, -council which will advise OHC's 
• board of directors on a wide range 

of public housing issues. The 
council meets in Toronto on May 
17. 

Members of the council will 
draw on their experiences at the 
local level to recommend new 
ideas. better approaches and 
cost-saving measures to the OHC 
board of directors. 

McDonald will serve as a 
member of the advisory council 
for a period of one year. He is a 
former reeve of Lochiel Township 
and former chairman of the Rural 
Ontario Municipal Association. . The advisory council was form-

• 

.. ed this year as a communications 
link between OHC's local housing 

' authorities and its board of Engagement 

announced 

• 

directors. 

DICK-CUMMING 

The OHC portfolio is managed 
by 61 local housing authorities, 
which administer public housing 
in their communities on a day-to
day basis. OHC currently pro
vides low-rent housing for some 
200.000 people in more than 300 
municipalities in Ontario. 

McDonald was one or" 11 
chairmen of local housing author
ities who were selected to form 
the new advisory council. The 
council will meet at least four 
times a year to review OHC 
policies and make suggestions on 

Mr. and Mrs. Kingsley A. Dick 
of Kent Bridge are pleased to 
announce the engagement of 
their daughter Mary Letitia to 
Alexander Graham Cumming. 
son of Mr. and Mrs . MacNaugh
ton Cumming of Lancaster. The 
wedding witt take place at Botany 
Howard Road United Church, 
Kent Bridge, March 26. 1983. at 4 
p.m . 
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KenyQn . 
Presbyterian thurch I 

Dunvegan, Ont. 
Minister 

The Rev. Gordon H. Fresque, B.A., B.Th. 

Easter Day 
Sunday, April 2 

11 a.m. 
Sermon - "A New Tomorrow" 

Music 
Organ Prelude - "Prelude in F" Dornault 
The Introit · 'Hallelujah What A Savior" 

Anthem · "Jesus Christ is Risen" 
lntermediat and Senior Choirs 

Anthem · "Hallelujah, He is Risen" 
Senior Choir 

Organ Postlude ''The Strife is Oer'' Dalestrund 
Everyone Welcome 

Wheelchair Entrance 
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MacDONELL-MERKLEY 

Wedin 

St. Raphael's 
The marriage of Lois Merkley 

and Glenn MacDonell took place 
in St. Raphael's Church on 
Saturday, January 15, with Rev
erend Gary Ostler officiating at 
the service. Brian McDonell was 
soloist and Malcolm Cumming 
was org11nist. 

The bride is the daughter of 
Julia Merkley of Smiths Falls and 
the late Lloyd Merkley. The 
groom is the son of Allan and 
Anna MacDonell ' of RR2 Gre'en 
Valley. 

Earl Merkley gave his sister in 
marriage. The matron of honor 
was Carolyn Jones and Ron Jones 
was best man . Ushers were Bruce 
MacDonell and Ed Merkley. 

A reception followed at the K of 
C Hall in Alexandria. 

The couple are residing in 
Smiths Falls. 

by Loma Chapman 
' The World Day of Prayer 

Service hosted by the women of 
Glen Robertson in their beautiful 
church, St. Martin of Tours, was 
held on March( ·4_ There were 
more than 100 people in the pews, 
and the women were delighted to 
g~ -~<l many men in the 
group. 

Berthe Larocque welcomed the 
guests, and was assisted in her 
leadership by Moira Van Nooten, 
who is also choir director. 

The bilingual aspect of the 
service w'as used to the utmost in 
readings, prayers and song. The 
women of the Caribbean drew up 
the program, taking the theme of 
"New Persons in Christ." 

Readers taking part for the six 
invited churches were: for Lochiel 
and Dalkeith. Rita Clement, 
Father Dumoulin ; Lochiel was 
represented by Henrietta O'Neil, 
Imelda McDonald and Beverly 
Vander Byl: East Hawkesbury 
and Glen Sandfield joined for 
their part. readers were E . H. 
(Stella) Fraser. Isabel Fraser, 
Enid MacDougall and Leona 
Fraser: for Glen Sandfield, Eliza
bet h Maclennan. Sarabet Nixon, 
Della MacDonald and Lorna 
Chapman: St. Columba was re
presented by Mrs. Ray MacGil
livrav: Kirk Hill United by 
Leon.ora MacMittan , Greta Mac
Donald. Chris Urquhart, Helen 
Macleod and Enid MacNaugh
ton: for Glen Robertson , the 
readers were Claire Massie, 
Margaret Gauthier. Claire Rick
erd. Rita Hurtubise and Florence 
Montpetit. 

The Lord's Prayer, sung with 
alternating French and English 
verses. to the West Indian tune, 
was sung by Lorna Chapman with 
the Hallowed be Thy Name parts 
sung in harmony by membtrs of 

Adrien Menard Electric Inc. 
ELECTRIC MOTOR REPAIRS 

11 Mill Square Tel. 525-2173 

• Service of water pumps 

• Repair of Sunbeam cow clippers 
• Sales of Jacuzzi and Beatty jet pumps 

51-11 

Summer Expe1ience '8:3 positions 
are open LO persons between the' age's of 
l S and 24 and eligible to work in Canacl.L 

HOW TO APPLY 
The Summer Experience '8:3 Guidebook 
and application f<lm1s are available at 
all college and university placement officPs, 
all secondary schools, and all Canacta 
Employment Centres in Ontario. 

Study the pn~ject descrip tions in thl' 
Guidebook and apply to projects which 
appeal to you - and for which you feel most 
qualified. 

We expect to receive mahy more applica
tions than the number of jobs available. 
You are strongly urged to explore all other 
potential jobs in case you are not hired 
through Summer Experience '8:1. 

DEADLINES 
Unless otherwise stated in the Guidebook, appli
cation cteacUines arc-: F'or Post Secondary: 
April 518:3. For Secondary & All ( >the rs: 
Ap1il l,') 8:3. Apply Now. 

Secretariat for Social Development 

®Ontario 
Margaret Birch. Provincial Secretary 

Wilham Davis. Premier 

NOW OPEN 
FOR THE 
SEASON 

TRIPLE 
FEATURE 

the Glen Robertson and Lochiel 
choirs. Elizabeth Maclennan ac
companied the anthem. 

Royden Lar(\<'que, vrganist in 
Gien Robertson , played for the 
rest of the service. 

The guest speaker was Sister 
Jeanne d 'Arc of Vankleek Hill. 
Her topic was the wonderful work 
done by the Holiday Community 
Volunteers. 

They work with young people, 
17 years and up. supplying camps 
in which the emphasis is on 
prayer and tededicatiori to the 
vows of confirmation and bap
tism. Bible study forms a good 
part of the program, but there are 
regular camping activities includ
ed in the camp day, swimming, 
sports. hiking. etc. 

Pledges must be made to 
abstain from alcohol and to abide 
bv the rules. 

. Siste r Jeanne d' Arc has been a 
missionary and teacher to black 
vouths for over 32 years. She also 
had some interesting facts about 
her stay in the north, working 
with the Indians and Inuit people. 
She told of hunting and fishing 
trips with the native people, and 
on one trek. they took a grey 
whale and ~ ~,.,.1 

. 
Personals 

She went on to tell about the 
charming churches she knew of in 
Manitoba and Saskatchewan. An 
Eskimo lady. leaving on a hunt, 
with manv children. knew the 
sisters wo.uld be gone when she 
returned. She presented each ~ne 
of them with a soapstone carving 
of a seal. as a memento of their 
friends up north . • 

The guest speaker was bi
lingual. and delivered her talk in 
both languages. 

Berthe Larocque thanked her 
warmly and presented an en
velope. 

The hostesses invited everyone 
downstairs to their hall for 
refreshments. Lorna Chapman 
invit ed everyone to Glen Sand
field next year for the World Day 
of Prayer service. and thanked 
the Glen Robertson ladies for a 
wonderfully uplifting service. -- -

Father Vaillancourt said grace, 
and the guests had a great time 
renewing old friendships, and 
making new friends during the 
fellowship hour. 

* * * 
Sincere sympathy to Georgette 

ICN~&la'ilO IWWU,-~~~~»...,<:XC.<X.-...-s:~"C:~-~~~ 
' 

by Marguerite Seger 
Mrs. Lucille Andrews of Win

nipeg. Man .. and her daughter 
Miss April Andrews of Calgary, 
flew east to spend a few days with 
Mrs. Andrews' mother. Mrs. 
Donalda MacDonald. resident at 
the Palace in Alexandria. While 
here they were house guests of 
Mrs. Bessie Clingen. They enjoy
ed visits to Cornwall. Massena, 
N.Y .. Montreal and Ottawa while 
here. April Andrews will be 
married in Calgary on Saturday, 
March 19. 

Mrs. Isobel MacDonald and 
Karen MacDonald. Glen Nevis 
and Angus and Helen MacDonald 
of Alexandria were in Rexdale 
last week to attend the funeral of 
l~nbel and Helen's brother-in
l11w. Gordon Ascah . 

Dianne Dawson and Edna 
MacMillan were guests of Mrs. 
Andre Collette for afternoon tea 
last Wednesday afternoon, at> 
Lochiel. Prior to the tea party. the 
ladies called on Mrs. Lorne 
Milne. Lochiel West. 

Mr. and Mrs. Tony McMen
amin of St. Laurent. Que .. were 
visitors to Alexandria on Satur
dav. 

Mrs. Svbil MacPhee. Dunve
gan. spent a few hours w'.•h Edna 
MacMillan last Friday. 

FRITZ FINE FOODS 
AND DELICATESSEN 

8th Concession 
Charlottenburgh 

Call us for your custom meat cutting needs . 

Fritz Leicht 46-tf Tel. 525-2909 

LANCASTER MEDICAL CLINIC 

DR.DONALF.CONWAY 

The office will be closed from Fricjay, March 4 
for 2 weeks, re-opening March 21, 1983. To ob
tain medical services in my absence call the 
telephone answering service, 933-5454. 

9-Jc 

LANCASTER 
INN 

SUNDAY BRUNCH 
11 a.m. to 2 p.m. 

Salmon Patties, Bcirbeque 
Chicken, Macaroni Casse
role, Leg of Ham, Scram
b I e d Eggs, Sausages, 
Homefries, Salad Bar. 
Dessert: Chocolate Cake, 

Jello 
Coffee, Tea 

5.45 per person 
Children under 12 112 price 

ALL YOU 
CAN EAT 

WEEKEND LIVE ENTERTAINMENT 
Friday and Saturday, March 18 and 19 

Enjoy our pleasant atmosphere and fine music. 

For reservations - 347-3084 
Hwy. 2, 2 mi. west of Lancaster 

IUIIT lllYNOLDS 

PATERNITY 

Paiement. who recently received 
a call from the States informing 
her of the death of her cousin, 
Ellis Lafave in Glen Falls, New 
York. He is survived by his wife 
Yvonne. 

* * * 
The women of Glen Sandfield 

UCW and guests have participat
ed in two quilting course sessions 
given by leaders Margo MacRae 
and Sarabel Nixon. 

Auxiliary to convene 
by Marguerite Seger 

The Ladies Auxiliary to Branch 
423 Alexandria l'>eld the regular 
monthly meeting in the club 
rooms on Wednesday , March 9 at 
8 p.m. Twelve members were 
present. 

Comrade Bernice McDonald 
presided. Alt are very pleased 
with the resul ts of the euchre 
parties and the coverage given by 
the media. 

The next meeting will be held 
on Wednesday, April 20 at which 

,time Zone Commander Ethel 
Wallace and Zone Sports Officer 

(SALE ENDS 
MARCH 31, 

1983) 

Celina McCormick will be the 
guests. All members are asked to 
attend. At present there are 30 
members. 

-The annual Auxiliary cqnven
tion will be held at the Apple Hill 
Branch on May 25. Auxiliary 
branches included in this area: 
Apple Hill. Alexandria, Cornwall, 
Lancaster. Long Sault. Hawkes
bury and Finch. 

The next card party will be held 
on Wednesday, March 16 in the 
club rooms at 8 p.m . Everyone is 
most welcome. 

SUPER 

® 

There's no mistaking the genuine 
comfort of these world famous 
Clarks® casuals. Classic style 
in hand-sewn 
moccasin 
construction. 

Sizes 7½-13 

The shoes 
you get 

attached to! 

AV AILEABLE IN BROWN 
AND BLACK LEATHER, 

BROWN & SAND SUEDE 

VIMI 
SHOES 

MOOSE CREEK MALL 
538-2475 

' ~, T • '• •• :, ~ ,.. ........ •\, - o 

A story about 
soccer 

I 

·I .. 
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Coming Events Coming Events 
MAXI Bingo, March 22, 8 p.m., Vankleek CARD party on March 22 at 8 p.m., spon
Hill Community Centre, under the sored by Club 65 at the Recreation Centre 
auspices of Vankleek Hill and District in Glen Robertson. Prizes and lunch. 
Lions Club. 9-tf Everyone welcome. 11 -1 p 

IF you can't stop drinking when you want I EUCHRE party on Wednesday, March 23 
to, visit Alcoholics Anonymous Friday · at 8 p.m. at the United Church, Dalhousie 
nights at 8:30 p.m., Church on the Hill, Mills. Sponsored by the U.C.W. Everyone 
Kincardine Street, Alexandria. Write for welcome. 1 H p 
confidential information to Box 383, Alex
andria, KOC 1AO, orcall 938·1984. 42-lf 

IS alcohol a problem in your family? Al
Anon can help you. Call 525-4109. 
Meeting Mondays, Church on the Hill, 
French and Englist,, 8 p.m. 5-lf 
VARIETY concert and quill draw, Tues
day, April 7 at 8:30 p.m. at Laggan Public 
School. 9·4c 

LEO and Bertha Theoret and Jean Paul and 
Lilianne Frappier invite you to a wedding 
recepliOn in honor of their children, 
Francois and Denise Frappier. on March 
19, 1983 at 8:JO p.m. Fur more informa
tion call 525-3600 or 525-1049. 10·2p 

MIXED PARTY 

in honor of 
MANON CHARBONNEAU 

daughter or Mr. & Mrs. Paul Emile 
Charbonneau. Green Valley, Ont 

and 
BRENT VACHON 

son or John Paul Vachon, North Lan
caster and Joan Vachon of Alexan
dria. 

SATURDAY March 26, 1983 
Chez Paul Hotel Dalhousie, 
P.Q. 

11·2p 

CHARLOTTENBURGH 
RECREATION 

CENTRE 

Bingo 
Eyery Tuesday, 8 p.m. 

Jack~t $500 
plus $25 until won 

· Good hall rental 
dates available 

347-2411 

Green Va lley 
Pavilion 
Tel. 525-1079 

SATURDAY,MARCH12 
Mixed party in honor of Diane 
Moore, daughter of Mr. and 
Mrs. William Moore and 
Pierre Ouellette, son of Mr 
and Mrs. Alexandre Ouellette 
Music by Sunset Express Or 
chestra. 

FRIDAY, APRIL 8 
I BLUE ROOM 
Mr. and Mrs. Mike Gibbs and 
Mr. and Mrs. William Van der 
By! cordially invite everyone 
to a wedding reception · in 
honor of Mr. and Mrs. Tony 
Van der Byl (nee Jo-Anne 
Gibbs). Music by Mike Gibbs 
and the Blue Jeans. Lunch will 
be served. 

SATURDAY, APRIL 9 
BLUE ROOM 

FRATERNITE ALEXANDRIA INC. 

BINGO 
EVERY.FRiDAY 

• at 8 p .m. 

JACKPOT $400 
5 numbers 

CARD PARTY 
Thursday, March 17 

Everyone Welcome· 

MIXED PARTY 
in honor of 

MAUREEN MURPHY 
daughter of 

Mr. and Mrs. Leo Murphy and 
BRUCE DUBEAU 

son of 
Mr. and Mrs. Deiard Dubeau 

SAT., MARCH 26 
9 p .m. to 1 a.m. 

Brown Sugar Band 
Everyone Welcome 

For information call 
347-2411 or 347-3302 r 1-2p 

Maxville & District 
Sports Complex 

Tel. 527-5659 
Public Skating 

Mondays, 3 to 5 p.m. 
~others and Tots 
' Skating 

Mondays, 1 to 3 p.m. 
Shinny 

Mondays, 5 to 6 p.m. 
Fridays, 3 to 5:30 p.m. 

Good dates still available 
for social events 
in banquet hall 

9·1C 

ST. PADDY'S DAY 

DANCE " 
Friday, March 18 

Chez Paul 
Dalhousie, Que . • 

sponsored by 
Hearts of Glengarry 

Soccer Club 
.._ Admission Discount .a. 
9" for ~ 

Wearin' of the Green 
(excluding overcoats) 

BENEFIT DANCE 
on 

Friday, March 18 
at the 

Caledonia Township Hall 
in 

St. Bernardin 
for 

Theo and Rita Willems 
and Sons 

·, 

Mixed party in honor of 
Joanne Cholette, daughter of 
Mr. and Mrs. Germai n 
Cholette and Ronnie Pattyn, 
son of Mt. and Mrs. Marcel 
Pat.tyn. Music by Dude 
Discotheque. 

who lost their home and pos
sessions by fire. 

r 
. SATURDAY, APRIL 9 

CENTENNIAL ROOM 
Wedding reception, invited 
guests only. 

A few good dates still 
available for the summer 
special occasion. Avoid disap
pointment, book now. 

Church Services 

UNITED CHURCH 
OF CANADA 

Services of Worship 
Sunday, March 20 

Alexandria 10:30 a.m. 

Combined service for all churches 

Rev. Janice Stevenson 
Rev. Gordon Saville 

525-2858 
,mo,, Tapes loaned free to shut-ins 

Alexandria Community 
Christian Fellowship 

132 Dominion St. North 

Thursday: 8.p.m. 
Bible $tudy and Prayer 
also Young Peoples 

SUNDAY 
9:45 a.m. Sunday School 
11 a.m. Morning Worship 
8 p.m. Evening Service 

"Christ is faithful" 
Pastor Gilbert Dube, 525-4900 

Music by The Ghost Riders 
and also 

The Old Time Fiddlers 
Lunch will be served. 
Everyone Welcome 

GLEN GARRY 
SPORTS 
PALACE 

Tel. 525-3600 
ALEXANDRIA 

LIONS 
500 CLUB DRAW 
Friday, March 18 

8 p.m. to l a.m. 
Glengarry Sports Palace 

DRAW FOR 3 CARS 
and 50 x $100 Prizes 
Also Club Richelieu 

10·2p 

d 'Alexandria 
FOUR-SEASON DRAW 

FOR $1,000 BILL 
Ticket holders for both draws admit
ted Free with escort. Up to a max
imum of 440 people admitted in hall. 

Music by the Brigadoons 
St. Patrick's Day Favors 

Held under LLBO Special Occasion Permit 

BINGO EVERY THURSDAY 
8 p.m. 
BINGO 

EVERY SUNDAY 
at 1 :30 p.m. 

GOOD DATES AVAltABLt 
for your 

SOCIAL EVENTS. 
Tel. 525-3600 

Births 
SAMSON._ To Rosaire and Micheline 
Samson of North Lancaster. in Hotel Dieu, 
Cornwall on Monday, February 28. a 
daughter, Andree-Anne, a sister for Marie 
Josee, Anik and Maryse. Baby weighed 7 
lbs. 7114 ozs. 

SHERREN-To Louise and Anthony' a 
daughter. at the Royal Victoria Hospital on 
Saturday, March 5, 1983. A grand
daughter for Mr. and Mrs. Lionel Ouimet 
of Glen Robertson, Ontario and Mrs. 
Miriam Sherren of Laval, Quebec. 

Deaths 

MacMASTER, Donalda-At the Communi· 
'ty Memorial Hospital , Port Perry on Satur· 
day, March 5, 1983. Donalda MacGillivary 
Mac Master, in her 95th year, beloved wife 
of the late James D. MacMaster V.S. Dear 
mother of Campbell and Archibald, of Port 
Perry and predeceased by Glenn and Gor· 
don. Loved grandmother of Muriel, 
James, John, Susanne, Mary Lynne, Bel· 
ty, Scott and Dean, and 9 great grand· 
children. Service in the chapel of 
McDermott-Panabaker, Port Perry, on 
Tuesday, March 8 at 2 p.m. Interment 
Pine Grove Cemetery. 11-1 p 

GIBSON, Orban-At the Ottawa Civic 
Hospital on Sunday, March 13, 1983. Or· 
ban St. Clair Gibson of R.R. 1, 
Williamstown, former employee of Air 
Canada. Beloved husband of Eleanor 
Dawson, formerly of Montreal . Dear son of 
the late Aemont Richard Gibson and Lybil 
Norris of Montreal, Quebec . Beloved 
father of Ian of Montreal, Quebec; Patricia 
and Debra both of Toronto. Dear brother of 
John, Glenn, Newland, Noreen and Ira. 
Dear grandfather of Todd and Keith. 
Friends called at McArthur Bros and 
MacNeil Lid. Funeral Home, Oak Street, 
Lancaster on Monday from 7 to 9 p.m. and 
Tuesday 2 to 4 and 7 to 9 p.m. Funeral 
service will be held in St. John's 
Evangelist Church , Lancaster, on 
Wednesday, March 16, 1983 at z p.m. In
terment in St. John's Evangelist Church 
cemetery, Lancaster. Donations to the 
charity of your choice would be ap· 
orec1ated bv the familv. 1 H c 

Coming Events 

JUNIOR Farmer's annual banquet, Satur
day, March 19, 1983, Bonnie Glen at 
7:30. Banquet $10; dance $3. Nowickyj 
Orchestra. 11 ·1c 

ST. PATRICK'S DANCE 

Caledonia Community Centre 

on 
SATURDAY,MARCH 19 

Brigadoons Orchestra 

Adm. $5 includes lunch 

Door Prizes 

(Wear green if possible) 
10·2c 

Cards of Thanks 
·SANGSTER- We wish to express our 
sincere thanks to relatives, friends and 
neighbord for their messages of sym· 
pathy, floral tributes, donations to the 
Heart Fund and Diabetic Association, 
cards and food received during our recent 
bereavement of a beloved father and 
grandfather, C. Gerald. Special thanks to 
Rev. D. Shepherd, McArthur Bros. & 
MacNeil Funeral Home, Sister Valade and 
the ecumenical choir. 
-Jim, Margaret, Charles, Carolyn and 
their families. 11-1 p 

MacDONELL-We wish to express our 
sincere thanks to all our Glengarry friends 
and relatives for their spiritual and floral 
offerings and acts of kindnes~ and sym
pathy extended to us in our recent 
bereavement of a dear husband, father 
and grandfather, Donald Francis (Dan) 
MacDonell. Special thanks to Ambrose 
and Anna Margaret who h~ve been so 
helpful at this time. These acts of kind
ness will always be remembered. 
-Irma and Leslie MacDonell, Donna, 
Dominic, Nancy and Cincy Manzo. 11·1p 

McKINNON-I wish to express my sincere 
thanks and appreciation to my relatives, 
friends-and medical staff while I was a pa
tient in the Hotel Dieu Hospital. Your kind
ness exhibited by visits, calls, cards and 
gifts will always be remembered. Thank 
you for the great care and concern shown 
while I was recuperating. Special thanks 
to Or. Robert , Maclean, McPhee and For
son , Father Lalonde, sisters and nursing 
staff on 3rd floor south. 
-Sincerely, Doug McKinnon. 11 ·1p 

DE REPENTIGNV-1 wish to thank Dr. Var
ma, Dr. McLean, nurses and staff on 3rd 
floor at Hotel Dieu Hospital. Also thanks to 
all who sent me cards , flowers and visited 
me while I was sick. Special thanks to the 
Daughters of Isabella and Happy Hour 
Senior Club. 
-~eota De Repentigny. 11·1p 

SAMSON-Our sincere thanks to Dr. 
Lalonde, Dr. Legault and staff of Filth 
Floor, Hotel Dieu, Cornwall, lor good care 
while our daughter was born . 
-Rosaire and Micheline Samson. 11·1p 

Coming Events 

REV. Raymond Dumoulin and the 
parishioners of St. Paul, Dalkeith, Ontario, 
invite you to their Easter Bingo on the 27th 
of March, 1983, in St. Paul 's Hall, 
Dalkeith at 8 p.m. Admission $1 , bingo 
cards 7 / $1 . Prizes: Ham. 112 pork, con· 
solation prize 3 doz. of eggs. Welcome! 
BrinQ vour friends! 1 He 

MIXED PARTY 
SATURDAY, MARCH 26 

in honor of 
LUCIE CAMPEAU 
daughter of Mr. and Mrs. 

Remi Campeau and 
JIM CROCKFORD 

son of Mr. and Mrs. 
Al Crockford 

Good Music: DJ Ron Lalonde 
(Mother Would Like It) 

For further information 
Tel. 347-3501 11-20 

Bonnie Glen 
Hwy. 43 Tel. '525-3078 

525-2646 

Sugar Shanty Restaurant 
NEW HOURS: 

Thursday: 11 :30 a.m. to 7 :30 p.m. 
F riday: 11 :30 a.m. to 8 p.m. 
Saturday: 4 p.m. to 8 p.m. 
Sunday: 10:30 a.m. to 8 p.m. 

· Regular Menu • 
Pea soup, cabbage soup (crackers) 

M aple baked ham, baked beans, country sausage, O melette with either 
ham, bacon or sausage. 

All the above includes H omefries, Rolls and Butter 
•Snack• 

Eggs and maple syrup with toast, Pancakes, French Toast 

Sugar Shanty Smorgasbord 
.-.-=.,,,,,,,,-. Friday and Saturday 

from 6 p.m. to 8 p.m. 

Sunday 

from 5 p.m. to 7 :30 p.m. 
Smorgasbord menu includes: 
Pea Soup, Bacon, Green Bacon, Country Style Omelette, Maple Baked Ham, Baked 
Beans, Egg$ in Maple Syrup, French Toast, Pancake,, Sugar on Snow. All you can eat 
for the low price of $8 plus tax in a sugar shanty atmosphere. 

Sunday Breakfast Smorgasbord 
10:30 a.m. to 2 p.m. 

Scrambled Eggs, Sausages, Homefries. Coffee, Pancakes, Rolls or Toast; all the Maple 
Syrup you can eat. 

R egular $3.25 plus tax 

Reservations would be appreciated. 

• Bookings for groups-call for time at your convenience. 

SATURDAY.MARCH 19 
St. Patrick's Night Jr. Farmers' 
annual banquet and • dance. 
Nowickyj Orchestra. 

See ad page 21 
SUNDAY, MARCH 20 SATURDAY, MARCH 26 

G l engarry Antique Arms O ur annual stepdancing and fidd]. 
Fair,9:30 to 1 p.m. Next Gun ing contest. Starts at 4:30, 
Show May 22, 1983 !morgasbord from 5:30,6:30 

See ad page 15 

FRIDAY, MARCH 25 
Mixed party in honor of Brenda 
Lafave, daughter of Malcolm 
Lafave and Allen Jensen of Ap· 
pie Hill. The Rubies. Light 
lunch. 

p.m. Dance 9 p.m. 

SATURDAY, APRIL 2 
Mr. and Mrs. George Hope of 
ylen Robertson invite everyone 
to their annual horsemen's dance. 
The Clansmen Orchestra. 9 p.m. 
to 1 a.m. Free admission, lunch. 
Everyone welcome. 

• 

Cards of Thanks 
MARCOUX-I would like to thank Dr. 
Nadeau , Dr. Baetz and all the nurses, nur· 
sing assistants, and the ambulance staff 
and also all those who visited me or sent 
get-well cards. Special thanks to Shirley 
and Francis Willard and Carmen and Re· 
jean Paquette for acts of kindness above 
and beyond the call of duty. 
-Albert and Alice Marcoux. 11-1 p 

LAUZON-To my friends and family, 
thank your for the prayers. visits, 
telephone calls, flowers, gifts and cards I 
received while a patient at Kingston 
General Hospital. Thanks to the doctors, 
nurses and staff. especially Dr. Marshall. 
-Gertrude Lauzon. 11 • 1 p 
BOURBONNAIS-We would like to ex· 
press our sincere thanks to relatives, 
friends and neighbors for mass cards, 
floral tributes, messages of sympathy, 
donations to the Ontario Heart Foundation, 
Morris & Munro Funeral Home and also 
the pallbearers at the time of the loss of a 
dear brother, George. Your many acts of 
kindness were of great comfort to us and 
will always be remembered. 
-The family. 11 ·1p 
CHRETIEN-Our sincere thanks to 
neighbors, relatives and friends for 
spiritual and floral arrangements, acts of 
kindness and messages of sympathy at 
the time of the death of a dear husband 
and father, Joseph Chretien. Special 
thanks also to Fathers Bernard Cameron 
and Charles MacDonald, members of the 
choir at the funeral and those who donated 
to the Heart Foundation. 
- Imelda Chretien and family. 11-1 c 

VALLANCE-We wish to express our 
sincere thanks to relatives, friends and 
neighbors for the floral tributes, cards, 
messages of sympathy and donations to 
the Centre Grey Hospital Fund and the 
Canadian Cancer Society. Special thanks 
for all kindness extended to us during our 
recent bereavement in the loss of a dear 
son, Ronald . These many acts of kindness 
will never be forgotten. 
-Allan and Mary Vallance. 11-1 p,_ 

In Memoriam 
MacKINNON-ln fond memory of a dear 
mother, mother-in-law and grandmother, 
("Grandma Molly") Mary Ann, who pass
ed away March 17, 1981. 
Gone, but not forgotten, 
And loved every day by all of us. 
-Real, Janet LeBlanc and family. 1 Hp 

TAILLEFER-In loving memory of a 
wonderful mother and grandmother, 
Julienne, who passed away two years 
ago, March 18, 1981. 
There is someone who misses you sadly, 
In the house where you used to be. 
There is someone who wanted to keep you 
But God willed ii not to be. 
You left some beautiful memories. 
And sorrows too great to be told. 
But to us who loved and lost you 
Your memories will never grow old . 
In life we loved you dearly, 
In death we love you still. 
- Forever in our hearts and sadly missed 
by Rosina and Olive, granddaughters 
Denise and Suzanne. 1 Hp 

Articles for Sale 
PL YWOOO super special: 4x8 spruce, 3/8' · 
metric $7 .50; 112'' $11.40; 5/8" tongue 
anQ groove, $13 .95; 314" $16.95; 
Aspenite 71 1s" $6.50 . Tel. (613) 
764-2876. 4-tf 

DUAL axle trailer, 7 feet by 20 feet long, 
tilts to load lrom rear; side and front 
racks, price $850; will accept trades, 
what have you? Tel. 525-3614. 

2·11 
USED steel pipe for sale , all sizes. I. R. 
Bell and Son. 3000 Copeland St.. Corn
wall . Tel. 933·1119. 13·11 

COMPTOIR Popula1re's big special on fur· 
niture, bicycles. baby necessities , tools, 
carpets, skates, new and used clothing, 
curtains, etc. 100 St. James, corner of 
East Boundary Road. Tel. 525-3445. 6-Bp 

WANTED : Four whee led wagon 
(preferably rubber tired) for single horse. 
Tel. 525-3040. B·tl 

CASH register for sale, fair condition. Tel. 
525-3151. 10·2p 

POOL table for sale, 7'x4 · with pool balls 
and cues . Best offer. Tel. 525.-1854. 

. 10·2 

PANASONIC stereo, table model with 
stand and speakers . Tel. 527-5449. 

10·3 
PHOTOCOPIER for sale, Minolta elec· 
trographic 101, in good condition-; Tai. 
527-2175 during the day. 10·3c 

ELECTROLUX for sale and service . T. Des· 
jardins. Tel. 525-2781, 34 Victoria St. W. 

10-lf 
CHICKEN cages complete; 2 small egg 
graders; 1 16-ft. x 6112 ft . overhead steel 
garage doors; 1 walk-in factory made 
truck cap with sliding back doors for 112 
ton . Peter Mesman , Monkland. Tel. 
346-2303. 10·2p 

SALT 
R& L CARON 

Windsor Crystal Salt 
For Water Softener 

$8.50 per bag, 40 kg, 88 lbs. 
-Plus Tax · 

Free Delivery in 
Stormont and Glengarry 

Counties 
933-5653 

Also Repairs 11-lp 

White 
Pine 

Lumber 
\ 

FOR SALE 

See page 2 
9-l c 

Articles for Sale 
2 good tractor tires with tubes. size 
13.6x26, 4 PR nylon: 1 new tractor tire, 
14.8x30, 6-ply. Tel. 347·3018. 10-2p 

26" RCA color TV bedroom set, two 
tables, AM/FM stereo with 8-track and 
turntable, like new. Tel. 525-1028. 

10-4 
INDUSTRIAL sewing machines, straight 
machines (Brother, Singer, Remoldi , 
overlock 3 threads, seamers 5 threads). ' 
Tel. 525-3743 or contact Andre Lalonde. 

10·2C 
24" bicycle, gold color, in very good con· 
dition, $20. Tel. 525-2283. 11-1p 
FRIDGE and furniture for sale. Tel. 
525-3584. 11-1p 
2 used turntables, 2 used mixing board , 2 
sound dynamick speakers, 1 power meter 
upto200watts. Tel.-525-1516. 11-1p 

1970 Champlain camping trailer, 18', all 
equipped. Tel. 525-3056. 11 ·2p 

BEAUTIFULL V refinished antique upright 
Grand piano, asking $950; 1 pair Staccato 
tap shoes, like new, size 3112, $30. Tel. 
1·678·2915. 11-1p 

ANTIQUE square Grand piano, car 
telephone, wood stove and'wood, three
piece chesterfield set and tables; dining 
room set; stereo with built-in bar, befroom 
sets, office chairs and tables, swing set, 
picnic table, utility sh~lves, glass top 
round table with 2 director's chairs, etc. 
Also 40 cedar posts. Tel. 1 ·613-
932-7822. 11·1p 

CLOTHES dryer for sale. Price to be 
discussed. Tel. 525·3633. 11·2p 

GUN collectors, 1863 Tower rifle , good 
ccmdition . Tel. 874-2439. 11-1p 

1977 Taurus camper, 27·11., sleeps 8, all 
equipped, like new, has never been on the 
road, also available canopy, antenna, 
metal shed andpatio. Price negotiable. 
Tel. 347-2237. 11·1c 

100 year old log house, 17x20, 2 storeys, 
good roof , for sal11. Tel. 527-3174 even
ings. 11-1p 

BABY carriage and car seat, perfect condi
tion . Tel. 525-2809or527·2705. 11-1c 

KAMEi front spoiler and rear loovers 
(stainless steel) to fit Honda Civic from 
1980 to 1983: and also a set of 
magnesium mags 13' ' , 4 Keystone wheels 
mounted on 4 BF Goodfich TI A 60's. Any 
reasonable offer. Tel. 525-1042 between 
6and10p.m. 11 ·1p 

TV antenna and pole with 50' of cable. 
$15. Tel.525·1351. 11·1p 

Vehicles for Sale 

1981 Yamaha virago 750, 8,000 miles, 
$2,500 or best offer . Tel. 525-2343. 
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All 1982 Motorcycles 
Selling at Cost '' 

1983 Tri-Matos 
have arrived! 

Good selection of 
used bikes available. 

A.S.P. 
525-3620 

I0-3c 

T 1-T LEY 
AUToM0Bll E$ 

Main St. 
Alexandria, Ont. 

Jacque Tilley, Prop. 
Gerard Seguin 

Sales Representative 
Tel. 525-3035 

12 Months or 20,000 Kilometers 
Warantee Available 

-CARS-

1981 Cutlass Supreme, bucket 
seats 

1981 Ford Fairmont station wagon 

1980 Citation, 4-door, 4-spd . 

1980 Grand Prix, LJ, bucket seats 
1980 Grand Prix, bench seat 
1980 Chev Impala, 2-dr ., 

2-tone blue 
1980 Ford Fairmont, 2-dr., 

white , 4-spd . 
1980 Mercury Monarch , 2-dr., 6-

cyl. 
1980 Cutlass Supreme Brougham 

2-tone 
1980 LeMans, 2-dr., 267 
1980 Grand LeMans, bucket 

seats 
1980 Mercury Capri RS, 2-dr., 

H.B. 
1979 Ford Fairmont, 6-cyl . 
1979 Grand Prix, bucket seats 
1979 Cougar, 2-door 
1979 Cutlass Supreme, bucket 

seats 
1979 Grand Prix, bench seat 
1979 Malibu Classic, 4-dr. 
1979 LTD II sport, bucket seats 

1978 Pontiac Pari, 4-dr. 
1978 Toyota, 4-cyl. , 4-spd. 
1978 Mercury Monarch , 6-cyl., 

auto. 

-TRUCKS-

1982 GMC Sierra, 2-tone, 305 
1981 Sierra 2-tone , 24,000 km 
1979 Ford, 6-cyl. 

1980 Ford Laresto van 
1980 Ferd van 

Vehicles for Sale 
1975 Honda Civic hatchback for sale. Tel. 
525-3514. 10·2p 

1980 Datsun pickup, king cab, 4x4, 
Michelin tires, 5-spd. transmission, 
Fibrobec cap , AM/FM 8-track, rear 
bumper, tulf·coated, 37,000 kilometers. 
Best offer. Tel. 931-1772. 10-3p 

1976 Ford pick up, 350, V·B automatic, 
new paint, complete with aluminum 
camper top, $1,800 or- best offer. Tel. 
525-4168. 10-2p 

1980 VW Rabbit Deluxe, 98,000 highway 
km. Recently tuned , new rear brakes, A-1 
shape. Tel. 346-2349 between 6 and 10 
p.m.only. 11-1p 

1973 Yamaha 650 cc motorcycle for sale, 
good condition , asking $600 or best offer. 
Tel. 525·1499 and ask for Yves. 11-2p 

BUS-camper, 1972 Dodge, 318, sleeps 8, 
3-way fridge. gas stove, gas heater, hot 
water, bathtub, shower, power converter, 
$4,500 or best offer, must sell. Tel. 
527-3027. 11-2p 

1974 Ford F-700 4-ton stake, 60,000 
original miles, Tel. 528·4397. 11-2p 

OLDSMOBILE Delta Royal 88, 1976, good 
condition, asking $850 or best offer. Tel. 
527-2631. 11 ·2p 

JET black 1978 Yamaha 650 Special , 
good condition, also accessories if re
quired. Tel. 347-2924. 11·2p 

1977 Lincoln Continental Town car; 1976 
International 4x4 Scout; both in excellent 
condition. Tel. 932-7822. 11 ·1 p 

1980 Kawasaki KX125, in excellent condi· 
lion, just had iune-up, $550 or best of1er. 
Tel. 347-2245. 11·1p 

1979 Yamaha 650 Special, 7,500 km, 
very good condition , $1 ,500. Tel. · 
525-1429. 11·2p 

1972 Pinto, sell as is. Tel. 525-2738 after 
4p.m. 11-2p 

Farm Produce 
DOUBLE·A·TREEFARM , RR2, Alexandria. 
For Koster Blue and Col. Spruce. Austrian 
and Scotch Pine. W. J. G. Aalders, prop. 
Tel. 525·3669. 47-tf 
CHOICE quality ground feed for livestock, 
50 per cent shell corn, balance is oats, 
barley, and wheat equal $7.50 hwd or 
$6.60 per 40 kg in your bags . Maxville, 
Tel. 527-5393. 8-7c 

HAY and straw, delivered by truckload. 
Tel. 838·2860. 8-4p 

50 tons of good oats of certified seed last 
year, Ideal for seed this year, $6.50 for 
100 lbs. and bring your own bags. Apply 
Cornelius Van Loon , Martintown , 
528-4506. 9·10p 

ELGIN seed oats from certified seed 1982 
stock threshed and priced to sell, approx
imately 15 tons (not metric weight). Tel. 
528-4273. 10-2p 

Vehicles for Sale 

TOYOTA 
Spring is coming 
and we're having 
a clean sweep! 

PRICED TO CLEAR! 

•8 I Toyota 112 ton diesel 

• 81 Toyota Tercel, liftback, 4-spd. 
• 80 Toyota Corolla station wagon, 5-
spd., low mileage 

• 80 AMC Eagle 4WD, 4-dr., 6-cyl. 

• 80 Tercel, 2-dr., standard 
• 80 Toyota Celica, 5-spd., AM/ FM 

cassette, equipped 
•80 Chev Diesel 112 ton, deluxe model 
•79 MercursO~n:>·ch 
•79 GMC Sie~so~l?issic 
• 78 Honda Civic, reconditioned 
•78 Firebird Trans-Am, chrome 

wheels, 4-SP!:b"°~M/FM with 
equalizer-t~s car has never seen 

Farm Produce 
HAY for sale, 400 to 500 bales. $1 .25 
bale. Tel. 874-2132. 10-2 

FOR sale-Dry shelled corn by the bag 
Ground corn also available. Bring you 
own bags. Harry Dusomas, 346·5625. 

10-

STRAW for sale or. will trade for hay. Tel 
525·3093. 10-2 

WOODSPLITTER (with operator) for hir~ 
50 h.p., price to be discussed, can 
paid with wood . Available weekends. Tel 
87 4·2206. 10-2 

FENCE posts, all sizes, feeder and wale 
ni les tor i s. Tel. 525-3706. 10-4 

2,000 cedar posts, 100 cords of stov 
wood. Contact Jack Hambleton. Tel 
525-2079. 10·2 

CEDAR fence posts for sale. Tel. 
525-1716. 10-2 

WHEAT straw for sale, also 5 tons o 
buckwheat. Tel. 347-2784. 10·2 

12 tons cob corn in crib. Tel. 525-279 
after 4p.m. 10·3 

500 bushels Oxford oats, 6½ lb. Tel. 
525-3469. 11-2 

250 good bales of straw for sale at 65c /J 
bale. Tel. 525-1904. 11-2 

PERTH barley cleaned, $10 per cwt. 
Conald Mccrimmon, 347-3193 or Roger 
Brazeau, 347-2304. 11·3 

FENCE posts for sale, 4" ·6" tops, an
chors and pickets. Tel. 534-2309. 11·2p 

BARLEY straw tor sale, 300 to 400 good 
heavy bales. Tel. 525-34 76. 11-2p 

BARLEY tor sale, suitable tor seed , grown 
from certified seed 1982, $7 per cut. Tel. 
525-2255_ 11-1 e 
HAY for sale, round bales, mixture ol 
alfalfa and clover. Approx. weight 800 lbs, 
each, no loading facilities, 9 bales left. 
Best offer. Tel. 874-2354. 11-2p 

HAY and straw for sale.. Yvon Lafrance. 
Tel. 525-2716. 11-2p 

1,500 bales of hay, mostly timothy and 
alfalfa hay at $1 .25. Tel. 525-2522. 
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14 bags of feed soybeans left, $10 per 
bag, 40 kg/ bag. Tel. 931·2939. 11-2p 

WOODSPLITTER for rent, 7 h.p., $30 per 
day, delivered in Glengarry. Tel. 
525-3861. 11-3p 

Gauthier's Greenhouses 
and Garden Centre 

Now is the time to thin 
gardening! • 

We have all you need to sta 
your own plants with our hel 
and guidance. 
Come and see our new garde 
centre and greenhouse. 
We want to thank ou 

~,dedicated cµstomefSr_and loo 
Jorward to meeting new ones. • 

112 mile east of · 
Curry Hill Sideroad 

on the Old No. 2 Hwy. 

Tel. 347-2237 
8-2 

Lost - Found 
LOST-Hub cap,for 1979 Buick, in Glen 
Robertson area. Reward. Tel. 874-2013. • 

. 11-1 

LOST- Doy, Malamute. black and white 
in vicinity of Alexandria. Reward . Tel. 
525-1306 or 525-2918. 11 ·2P 

Poultry - Livestock 
DRESSED roasting chickens. 7·9 lbs. Tel. 
347-2530. 51-11 

WANTED to buy: Beef stockers, 400 lbs. 
and up. Tel. 874·2589. 10·2p 

2 purebred Majesty Holstein bulls, 10 
months and 15 months, from free-listed 
herd. Tel. 984-2250. 10·2p 
VEAR old hens for sale, 75c each . Tel. 
Godfrey O'Conr.or, 525-2520, R.R. 2, 
Green Valley. 11-2p 

a winter 
SIMMENTAL bulls, three generations of 

•78 Chev Monza, 6-cyl., auto., hatch- selective A.1 . breeding. Reasonably priced. 
back, clean condition, safetied wart Gowland. Tel. 525·3116. 11-2p 

•76 Volkswagon Rabbit 

ALL UNITS ARE SAFETIED 
20,000 km or I year warranty 

available on most models 
OfHn daily 'ti/ 8, Saturdays 'ti/ noon 

527-2735 
Highland Motor Sales 

(Maxville) Ltd. 
Maxville, Ont. 

ALEXANDRIA CALL 
BOB LAJOIE 525-1945 

HEIFER calves, crossbred Jersey-Hols· 
tein. Tel. 347-3593. 1 t -3p 

REG' D Holstein springers, 2 yr. Fury 
Alert, dam GP Senator, 196-177; 2 yr . 
Supersonic, dam GP Senator, 160·144; 4 
yr. 166·172: free-listed. Tel. 527·2572. 

11 · 1 

REGISTERED polled hereford bull. Tel. 
525·1237. 11-2p 

SOWS for sale, bred and unbred. Tel. 
933·3115 after 5 p.m. 11 ·3p 

BEEF cattle , free-listed herd . Tel. 
525·12137. 11_:2 

NOTICE 
Classified Adv. Rates 

All forms of classified advertising-Deaths, For Sale, 
Cards of Thanks, In Memoriam, Coming Events, etc. are 
on a CASH BASIS ONLY and are charged at the rate of 

.10 a word, with a minimum of $2.25. Repeat unchanged 
insertions .50 less. 

Classified display, $2.75 per column inch, minimum of 2 
inches. 

Classified ads will be accepted until 12 noon Tuesday. 

All Classified Ads 

CASH BASIS ONLY 
NO TELEPHONE ORDERS PLEASE 
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The Glengarry News, Alexandria, Ont. 

Classified advertising 
Poultry-Livestock 

HOLSTEIN heifers from listed herd to 
freshen in March and April. Tel. 

Real Estate Real Estate Real Estate Real Estate 

• · 931-1029. 11·2p 

MODERN house for sale in Alexandria; 4 
bedrooms, 2 baths, finished basement 
with fireplace, al 91 Kincardine St. Private 
sale. For appointment call 525-2713. 2-8p 

PRIVATE sale-Elegant 4-bedroom brick 
home with attached garage on two-acre 
lot, completely renovated country decor, 
insulated barn , storage shed , riding ring, 
corral, mature trees , 2 miles from Maxville 
and twol miles from 417 on Main route. 
Priced to sell . 613-527-5524. 11 -1 c 

LARGE income property consisting of 
seven rental units situated on Mill Square . 
Please call 932-7680 for further informa
tion. 8-tf 

MODERN house for sale in Alexandria; 4 
bedrooms, 2 baths, finished basement 
with fireplace, at 91 Kincardine St. Private 
sale. For appointment call 525-2713. 

Real Estate 
COUNTRY lot east of North Lancaster, 1;4 

km west of Quebec border, .4 ha on paved 
mad. Tel. 525-3294. 10·2p, 

MOBILE home 1973 PMC residence, 
12x60, 3-bedroom in village of Lochiel , 
fully serviced lot, must be sold . Tel. 
525·3409. l0·4P 

For Sale or to Let 
HOUSE kits: All the building materials for 
a house 26x42, 3 bedrooms, kitchen, 
bath, dining and living rooms, c,6 exterior 
walls, 6" wool- for as low as $9 ,995. 
Price firm umil 1st of May-blueprints 
available. Can also make prints to suit 
your needs. D. N. Racine Inc., Athelstan, 
Que ., JOS 1AD, Tel. (514) 264·5533 or 
3~2. ~1~ 

MODERN 2-bedroom brick house for rent, 
sunken living room with fireplace, full 
basement. 4 appliances, available im· 
mediately. Off East Boundary Road , Alex-
ndria. Tel. 525·4163. 10-3c 

LOG house recovered with aluri:jinum for 
sale. To be moved or demolished. Duplex, 
in very good condition , very warm at 98 
Lochiel St. E. Tel . 525·3791 and come see 
it. 11·2p 

MOBILE homes for -sale: 1. 1976 Cana
dian, 14x68, 3 bedrooms; 2. 1972 Ken
worth, 12x60, 3 bedrooms. Located on 
serviced lots in Glen Robertson . Tel. 
525-3571 . 11 -2p 

For Sale or 10 Let 
HOUSE kits: All the building materials for 
a house 26x42, 3 bedrooms, kitchen, 
bath , dining and living rooms, 2x6 exterior 
walls. 6" wo.ol-for as low as $9,995. 
Price firm until 1st of May-blueprin1s 
available. Can also make prints to suit 
your needs . D. N. Racine Inc., Athelstan , 
Que., JOS 1AO, Tel. (514) ,264-5533 or 
3222. 3·15c 

Pets for sale 

BICHON Frise, Maltese, Lhasa Apso, 
Yorkshire Terrier. Open every day by ap
pointment. Prieur Kennels . Tel. 347-
3420. Vias, Master Card . 4-tf 

Beaverdale 
Kenn·eJs 

Have a worry-free vacatfon! 

Board Your Dogs and 
Cats with us 

Spacious indoor-outdoor runs 
Also heated area 

Monthly rates·on request 
. ForcedRo"ad; Bainsville 

Tel. 347-3208 
28,tf 

REAL ESTATE - IMMEUBLES-.. 
TEL. 613-525-.~4 l 9 • ALE~AN081A. ONT. 

ALEXANDRIA area, on the outskirts of town, full 2 
storey 3 bedroom brick home new addition and . all 
remodellep. New 30' x 60' partly insulated garage with 
workshop. All located on over 2 acres. Priced to sell. mis 
DUNVEGAN village, handy man's bargain, all new con
veniences in. this full 2 storey 4 bedroom home. Refinish 
the interior to your own taste. Includes building materials. 
Asking only $19.500. for quick sale. M.L.S. 
LANCASTER AREA, WITHIN EASY COMMUTING 
DISTANCE OF Montreal, spacious 1800 sq. ft. brick 
bungalow, fireplace, small barn and over 3 maple treed 
acres. Priced to sell. M.L.S. 

MOBILE home 1976 Canadian Deluxe , 
14x68, 3 bedrooms, in Glen Robertson , 

·fully serviced lot, may be rented or pur-
chased, mobile for sale by rental purchase 
or cash. Tel. 525-3571 . 7-2D 

Pets for sale 
PUREBRED Newfoundland puppies, vac
cinated, dewormed and· registered. Tel. 
347-3208. 47-tf 

YOU NG Budgies and breeder stock , 
Cockatiels and Amazon parrots from 
private breeder at wholesale prices. Tel . 
931-2633 evenings. 10·2p 

- REWARD -
your pet with a 

vacation in the country. 
Individual sleeping quarters 

attached to 15-ft. outdoor run 

MIKE-A-LEIGH 
BOARDING KENNELS 

Audrey Morris 
R.R.1, Martintown 

528-4454 10·4p 

Real Estate 

PRIVATE SALE 
Brick bungalow on country 
lot, 150'x 150', 3 bedrooms, 
finished family room with 
Franklin fireplace. Attached 
2-car garage. Detached l 6x24 · 
storage shed. Paved driveway. ' 
Very well landscaped. $51,500. 

Tel. 874-2854 
11-1p 

2.2 hectares (5 112 acres) of va
cant land. Fronting on Hwy. 
34. Just north of village, ex
cellent location with potential. 

MOBILE home . for sale. 44x1 O, 2 
bedrooms, available in May. Tel. 
678-5486. 9-3p 
MODERN 4-bedroom bungalow. fully 
carpeted , 2 fireplaces, 2-car garage, 
swimming pool. maintenance free ex
terior, on 3;4 acre lot, 5 miles from Alexan
dria. Tel. 525-4126. 8·2p 
DUNVEGAN , Ont. 150 acres, brick house, 
barn , maple tush, good financing. Tel. 
527-2165. 10·2p . 
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GREEN Valley: 29x39 bungalow, 3 
bedrooms, carpeted floors, large finished 
room in basement, 2-storey shed , large lot 
120x200. Tel. 525-1165. No agents 
please. 11 ·2p 

HOUSE for sale, 3 bedrooms, lot 20Dx1 00, 
380 East Boundary. Tel. 525-1516. 8·2p 

FARM : Dunvegan, Ont. Why wait? The 
price is right now. Brick house, barn , 150 
acres, good financing. Tel. 527-2165. 

HOUSE for sale 2 acres of land, Moose 8-2p 
Creek, further information Tel. 538-2367 MOBILE home for sale, 68x14. Tel. 

Royal Trust 
THE SIGN 

TMAT SELLS 

7-2p 525-3266. 8-1 p 

ROBERT E. POIRIER, F.R.I., A.A.CJ . 

Agricultural Specialist (Broker) 
Green Valley, Ontario 

1-613-525-4163 

BEGINNER'S HOME, two bedrooms, large kitchen. Only 
$1 5,000. M.L.S . WHY PAY RENT? 

BUILDING LOT: Outskirts of Green Valley, on paved 
road, $7,500. M.L.S. 

VACANT LAND: 15 ha. good building site with some 
bush, outskirts of Alexandria. Buy now only a few parcels 
available. M.L.S. ' 

HOG FARM-Dunvegan area. M.L.S. 

DAIRY FARM: 132 hectares. Near 300,000 Litres 
M.S.Q., quality Holstein herd and good line of equipment. 
Exel. 

IDEAL HOBBY FARM with 20 ha, 3-bedroom house, 
good barn, some bush, $49,900. M.L.S. 

M. JEAN 

CAMERON 
REALESTATELTD REALTOR 

2-BEDROOM BUNGALOW with detached garage on well 
landscaped lot in Lancaster area. Asking $36,000. 

CUSTOM BUILT CEDAR COTIAGE'completely furni
shed with double boat house and 300 ft. of waterfront, 
Lancaster area. M.L.S. 

• 

LANCASTER area, close to Highway 34, hilltop 5 
bedroom recently built bungalow, spacious country kit
chen, oak cupboards, Jen-Air range, 2 full baths, finished 
rec-room with bar and many other extras. All located on 
over 18 rolling acre hilltop site with insulated 20'x 40' 
garage. Price reduced for quick sale. M.L.S. 
DUNVEGAN AREA 100 semi-rolling acres, mostly all 
plowable, new extension to bar'n recently, recently built l 1,2 

storey home with fireplace. Owner anxious to sell due to 

CURRY HILL 
Executive home near Hwy. 
40 l, fieldstone exterior, 4 
bedrooms, 3 baths, dining 
room, modern kitchen, finish
ed basement, fireplace. Asking 
$149,500 for this top quality 
home. 

4-BEDROOM, 11,2 STOREY HOME with maintenance
free exterior in Lancaster Village. Home in immaculate 
condition. M.L.S. 

I 

• 

health. OPEN TO OFFERS. M.L.S. . 
ALEXANDRIA town, excellent high building lot already 
severed and surveyed lOO'x 225'. Available immediately. 
M.L.S. 

WANTED 
We are in desperate need of Alexandria homes, country 
homes on small acreage and small hobby farms anywhere 
in Glengarry county. If you are thinking of selling your 
property, call a sales representative of your choice. 
E. Vaillancourt 525-3641 C. Wylie 674-2019 
R . Vaillancourt 525-3419 OFFICE 525-3419 

WATERFRONT LAND 
1.62 hectares (4112 acres) of 
prime land with 60 metres (200 
ft.) water frontage on Lake St. 
Francis, high ground, ex
cellent location on Hwy. No. 
2. Asking $1 15,000. 

Call ALLAN ROCK 
347-3452 

representing E. Cornett Realtor 
938-9716 10-2c 

BRICK BUNGALOW on large lot with access to Lake St. 
Francis. Electrically heated and air conditioned. M.L.S. 

2-BEDROOM BUNGALOW with stone-faced exterior on 
spacious lot in Curry Hill area, $21,000 firm. M.L.S. 

HIGH BUILDING LOT, 2.;B acres just off Highway 34 
on the 7th Cone. Charlottenburgh. List $7,000. M.L.S. 

For further information: Cornwall 938-3860, Lancaster 
347-22,15, A. G. Fraser, Stan MacIntosh. 

Cornwall 

Offi.ce 

933-6524 .. 

MacMillan and Howes Real Estate Ltd. 
Alexandria 

Office 

525-3039 

THE ACTION TEAM Jo-ann Trottier 525-2010 

•D.A. Ma~illan 933-3629 · Diane Dawson 525-1237 

HARDWARE STORE and 
FAMILY HOME in Williams
town, situated on a large 
lot. Store also suitable for 
other purposes. Owner 
retiring . M.L.S. 

SPRING BUILDERS w e 
have serviced lots for you 
within Alexandria Town 
limits for only $11,000. 
M.L. S. 

TWP. OF KENYON: 14 ha 
of rolling land, some cedar, 
ask ing pr ice $16, 500. 
M.L. S. 

DAIRY FARM: With interest 
rates at current level, it's a 
good time to get started in a 
dairy farm . We have a 104 
ha operation in Charlotten
burgh. Call for details. 
M.L.S. 

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY 
Located on Main St . in 
Alexandria, 2 storefronts, 
presently rented, upstairs 
has a 3-bedroom apt. on 

EXECUTIVE HOBBY FARM 
10 ha, some bush, good 
horse barn with 5 stalls. 
Very comfortable, tastefully 
decorated 4-bedroom 
home. South Branch Road 
near Williamstown. Exel. 

. TRULY DELIGHTFU L! New 
England style 10-room exe
cutive home situated on 
about 2 ha of nicely land
scaped property . 2 
fireplaces, 2112 baths, dou
ble garage, heated in 
ground pool and many ex
tras. Exel. 

IN COME IS TH E OUT
COME : 5-unit brick 
building, 4 apts. plus store 
space. Approx $1,000 per 
month income. Asking only 
$38,000. M.L.S. 

OLD SCHOOL HOUSE 
south of Glen Robertson, 3 
bedrooms, attac red 
garage, 200 amp service 
with electric heat. It's a 
steal at $28,000. M.L.S. 

l'D RATHER LIVE IN MAX
VILLE, beautifully kept 3- • 
bedroom home and lot, 
double detached garage. 
Attractive assumable mor
tgage. It's the home for you 
at $55,000. M.L.S. 

Ew en McLeod 347-2989 Howard Broten 525-4597 

Anne Emory 938-0656 Amv Ward 347-2858 
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START YOUR OWN BUSI
NESS : This property is zon
ed commercial and residen
tial. Ready for business, 
situated in small hamlet 
close to border. 4-bedroom 
home with large kitchen, 
formal dining room, main 
floor rec room . Must be 
seen to ·be appreciated. 

CHARMING : 3-bedroom 
older home that has been 
well maintained. Located 
on 113 of an acre, approx
imately 1 mile from Quebec 
borde:, near 401 Highway. 
Price just reduced. 

COUNTRY BRICK : 
Beautiful br ick hom e 
located on .8 ha of scenic 
property. Full verandah on 
fron t, hardwood and plank 
floors, 4 bedrooms, large 
barn , other outbuildings. 
It's a must at $49,000. 

AND ROOM FOR A STU
DIO : Large 4-bedroom brick 
home , c lose to border. 
Mature trees, enclose d 
verandah, hardwood floors 
throughout firs t 2 levels 
with room for a stud io 
above. If you need t he 
space, we have the place. 
$56,000. M .L.S . 

INDUSTRIAL LAND, just 
north of Alexandria, may be 
sold by square meter. To
day is the day, act now . 

WANTED: Good farm land, 
40 ha to 60 ha in 
Williams town - Lancast er 
area . We have a purchaser. 

I,;, 2nd floor. Plenty of working 
'l' area arid storage space. Call 

now before this opportunity 

INVESTORS! Here is a pro
perty for you, 80 ha with 
over 600 metres frontage on 
Loch Garry, mature bush 
on property. Stop at our of
fice to see the proposed 
plan o~ subdivision. 

DAYS OF OLD: Log and 
frame home with no elec
tricity Qr water in the house, 
natural wood fin ish in old 
p9rt of home, a good barn 
sets off this private, scenic 
location . A .mature sugar 
bush at the centre of the 40 
ha of land. W ith a little 
work this could be the fa rm 
of your dreams. $49,900. 

W E HAVE 3 spacious 
4-bedroom homes on large 
lots , priced $2 6,800 ; 
$32, 000 and $45, 000. 
M.L.S. 

PRICE: REDU CED on this 
3-bedroom brick bungalow 
on Macdonald Blvd. in 
Alexandria with 2 bedroom 
apartment in basement. 
M .L.S. passes. $55,000. 

W E NEED YOUR HELP! W E ARE LOOKING FOR: 

COUNTRY HOIVIES, HOBBY FARMS (large or small) , VILLAGE AND TOWN PROPE.RTIES. 

Help us "THE ACTION TEAM " to help you sell your property. 

Wednesday, March 16, 1983 ~_age 9_ 

Deadline: 12 Noon Tuesd~y . 

Real Estate Real Estate Real Estate 
' -----------

CHARMING 7-year-old , 6-bedroom home: 
furnished recreation room with 3 baths, 
situated on 9 wooded acres on Summers
town Road. Low downpaymenf, excellent 
financing, principals only. Tel. 1·613· 
932-7822. 11 ·1p 

MEDIUM small older Stucco cottage with 
attached summer kitchen and loft area. On . 
quiet freed street in town of Vankleek Hill . · 
Good sized lot with sunny southern ex
posure for gardening and solar experimen
tation . Tel. 613-874·2678. 8·2p 

PRIVATE-Monkland area, split level, 4 to 
5 bedrooms, fireplace, 2 garages, extra 
buildings, 2 acres of land fenced in with 
chain link , many trees , secluded. Very 
suitable tor children and pets. Tel. 346· 
5662. 9-3p 

SAUVE REAL EST A TE LTD. 

D 
REAL ESTATE BROKER 

39 Main St. North (613) 525-2940 
Office Hour.r: 8 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. every day exceot Sundar 

Maurice Sauve 
Andre Brunet, Glen Robertson 
Bill Wereley, Lonco.rter 
Anne Morie Clemen.1; Vonk/eek Hill 
Ronald Mo<·Donold, Alexandria 
Andre Menard, Green Volley 

Broker 
347-3014 
515-2052 
678-334/ 
515-2406 
515-3307 

Ern.l'tSauer 
Gennain Glaude 
Adelard Sauve, Alexandria 
Herb Schwartz, Avonmore 
Michel Ferland 
Larry Meaney 

525-24/3 
525-4/40 
525-3354 
346-5721 
s:5.3424 
.147-2746 

SPRING IS HERE, INTERST RATES ARE LOW, 
BUY NOW AT SAUVE'S 

ENERGY EFFICIENT, WOODED LOT 
Built among the trees, Canadian style with 
lucarnes, beautiful and fashionable, sur
rounded by maples, birch and cedars, couple 
of acres, family room in pine with fireplace. 
Commute to Alexandria. $79,500. M.L.S. 

1,020 FEET ON LAKE ST. FRANCIS 
Own 21 acres of development land on 
Highway 2 near Curry Hill, wide frontage, 
high future investment potential, build your 
own waterfront home now and develop the 
land gradually, $98,000. M.L.S. 

RURAL, NEAR LAKE ST. FRANCIS 
On north Service Road between Bainsville 
and Curry Hill, beautiful ranch style- home 
on 2 acres, elaborate landscaping, fireplace, 
_see Lake St. Francis in the distance. $89,000. 
M.L.S. 

BEEF SET-UP 
Huge barns, silo, renovated home, rolling 
114 acres, south-east of Alexandria, on 
private gravelled road, $119,500. M.L.S. 

SPECTACULAR HUGE STONE HOME 
Fieldstone construction, about 20 rooms, 
newer back part in brick construction, 
recreation building with bowling lanes, 34 
acres. M.L.S. 

DALKEITH FARM 
110 acres located north-east of Dalkeith, 
good well-built old house, barn, 100 acres 
tillable. Call today. M.L.S. 

GLENGARRY SCHOOL DAYS 
Much potential in this partially renovated 
school house, automatic furnace, plumbing, 
half acre. $21,500. M.L.S . 

THINK SPRING-MAPLE BUSH 
Tap your own maples this spring. Nearly 7 
acres of clean maple bush, high rolling land, 
,also a hideaway to build a cottage .or 
weekend hut. Visit it when the sun is shining. 
M.L.S. 

TROUT POND, HOME 
Just north of Alexandria, on Eigg Road, 
beautiful finished home, stone exterior on 
front, natural stone fireplace, finished base
ment, trout pond near home,· long frontage 
on Delisle River, 40 acres. M.L.S. 

400 ACRES, ON HWY. 34 
You can' t beat it for location, just half a 
mile south of Alexandria, excellent dairy 
barn and silo, modern home, plenty of land. 
M.L.S. 

NEW HOMES SUBDIVISION 
ROXBOROUGH GARDENS 

Your choice of six homes- $40,900 to 
$41,900, low down payment, $4,000 down, 
mortgage of 3 years at 12.75%. Eligible for 
$3,000 grant to all purchasers plus up to 
$4.000 interest-free loan. M.L.S . 

HIGHWAY HOBBY FARM 
Like a picturesque estate, that hard-to-find 
combination of cou·ntry living and city con
venience? Mature evergreens and other 
beautiful trees all around the home. Home is 
fully renovated and very attractive. Large 
old barn and sheds. 62 acres, half of which is 
a variety of pulp-size bush. M.L.S. 

McCRIMMON'S CORNER HOME 
Bungalow in the curve on Highway 34, 4 
bedrooms, built 1974, in solid construction, 
one acre, also a stone shed that used to be a 
small stone home, only $38,500. M.L.S. 

INVESTMENT LAND 
1. 18 acres near Dunvegan, lots of bush, 

$12,000 but open to an offer. 
2. 6 acres near Glen Roy, $12,000 
3. 37 acres South of Martintown, $25,000 
4. Glen Sandfield lot, former recreation field 

l04x320 feet, $6,250 
5. 5 acres on Highway 34, north of Lancaster 

about 4 km, $19,500 

BOATING, FISHING. SWIMMING 
Enjoy and retire to a new home on the shores 
of the St. Lawrence River where you can 
boat and fish for miles. Two full bathrooms, 
stone fireplace, 3 bedrooms and a dining 
room. All for $70,000. Make your plans to
day. M.L.S. 

OVERLOOKING RAISIN RIVER 
Only minutes from Alexandria beautiful 
h?me with fireplace, several t~ees, huge 
pmes, large insulated garage, $49,500. 
M.L.S. -

CORNER STORE & RESIDENCE 
Have your own sideline business, located 
near Highway 34 on First of Kenyon, ex
cellent spacious buhgalow, 3 bedrooms, 2 
bathrooms, lot of 105x195 feet. M.L.S. 

BUILD AMONG THE PINES 
Edge of Alexandria, 75 acres with plenty of 
bush plus 10 acres planted in evergreens 
Garry River flows through close to wher~ 
you would build, already has a large garage 
and workshop partly insulated built in 1979 
just west of Glengarry Transport Ltd. o~ 
north side of road. M.L.S. 

EXCELLENT LANCASTER HOME 
On south Service Road just east of service 
centre, beautiful fireplace, large garage. 
$59,000. M.L.S. 

COMPLETE DAIRY FARM 
214 acres all tillable, very good dairy barn 
that ties 74-head, pipeline for 44 milking 
cows, all necessary machinery, milk quota. 
Four-bedroom older home, beautifully 
redecorated. 

OUTSKIRTS OF GLEN ROBERTSON 
Brand new older home. This sturdy 2-storey 
home is well insulated, has 5 bedrooms, 
fireplace in living room and space for a large 
garden. Ideal family home. $44,500. 

IDEAL BUILDING SITE 
32 acres to build your new home on, located 
about 2 km east of Ouellette's Lumber, 
south of Green Valley, hilltop, plenty of 
bush, $23,900. M.L.S. 

"LUXURY .RURAL HOME 
Built 1977, spacious, quality structure and 
finish, 2 bathrooms, metal fireplace, finish
ed basement, attached garage, 2 acres, 
$74,500. 

DORNEY HOBBY FARM 
Hilltop 30-acre farm, lots of frontage on 
Delisle River, good 2-storey home, large 
barn, shed. Raise you own beef, a few horses 
and enjoy plenty of open air. $49,000. 

NEAR SCHOOLS, RINK, SHOPPING 
One block to a favorite hobby or way of life. 
Also ·only a few blocks to all the shopping 
and restaurants for your morning coffee. 
Planned home at 60 Kincardine St. Finished 
basement with electric heating in the floor. 

LAKE ST. FRANCIS 
Family home right on the waterfront; first 

' · home west of the Ontario-Quebec border, 
commute to Montr~al, high lot, $70,000. 

NEAR MONKLAND, BUILT 1981 
You'll totally enjoy living in this home, on 2 
acres land, built luxuriously, modified chalet 
style, upper balcony for master bedroom, 
living room has fireplace, 59,800. Or 
$69,800 with 31 acres. Call Herb Schwartz. 

BEAUTIFUL INTERIOR, ONLY $28,000 
Large gardening lot accompanies this fine, 
comfortable family home, new air tight 
wood stove in living room, friendly 
neighborhood. Make this your first home 
for your young family. 

RAISIN RIVER 
CANOE RACE 
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Classified ad ve_rtising 
BdSHFUL 

Poultry - Livestock 

ROCKY ROAD FARM 

Farm Machinery 
2 John Deere, 14-ft. disc; 1 1979 three 
quarter ton Chev pick up truck; full line of 
potato equipment. All in good condition. 
Tel. 527-5485 evenings. 10-2p 

Farm Machinery 
USED 11 O Cockshutt grain drill in good 
condition. Tel. 528-4266. 10·2p 

INTERNATIONAL 434 tractor, front-end 
loader, hydraulic bucket, power steering; 

Farm Machinery 
1968 Ford Dexter, live power, 1 o gauge 
shot gun, 3 shot bolt action, P 41 Pioneer 
chainsaw. cap for GM pick up . Tel. 
525-1439 after 6 p.m. 11 ·3p 
500-gallon Century trailer sprayer, com
plete with 40-ft. booms and hydraulic 
driven pump. Asking $2 ,500 . Tel. 
525-3620. 1 t -3c 
7700 Ford tractor. 86 h. p., cab, radio, 
weights , 18.4x38 radial tires, 900 hrs. , 
bought new in 1981 ; also Ford 151 
4-furrow semi-mounted plow. adjustable 
16"-18", reasonably priced. May accept 
smaller equipment or cattle on trade. Tel. 
932-6538. 11-4p 

Personal 

R.O.P. Tested 
Boars and Gilts 

HAY feeder for sale, size 5112 feet high , Case 580 Construction King backhoe and 
COLLECTOR seeks outside horn 
gramophones and antique Juke boxes. 
Write 4309 Notre Dame, Laval, Quebec 
H7W 1T3 or call (514) 688-8877 even
ings/ weekends. 11-1 Op 

0112 feet across at top and 5½ feet at bot- loader. Tel. 525-2793 after 4 p.m. 10-3p 

Minimal Disease Herd 
Some of the best in Eastern Ontario. 

tom. made round . Tel. 932-3897, Corn- GEORGE White saddle tanks, like new;' 14' 
wall . l0·2P Kenwannie disc, like new. Tel. 613-346-
TRACTOR tires, 18.4x30, all traction field 5568. 11-2c 

Over 20 local hogmen can't be wrong 
and all are return customers for herd 
sires and herd sows. 

JOHN BESSEY 

Vankleek Hill, Ont. 
678-2806 
678-3088 

& 

1O·4p 

Q . It 
"Ittpshir 

-
, 

-.·. Crossb 
lecfs 

Vaccinated 
R.O.P. Tested 

• Health Approved 

Albero Farms Ltd. 
R.R. I, Glen Robertson 

KOB lHO 
613-874-2717 

. Real Estate 

50-lf 

and road Firestone, $200. Tel. 347-2530. 
11-lf 

Poultry - Livestock 

Yorkshire 
Duroc 

Hybrid 
Landrace 

Hamp 

BOARS 
• R.O.P. tested 
• Go\r't health inspected 
• Top Can. and imported 

blood lines 
• Vaccinated 

• Guaranteed to breed 

Co-owner 1982 Congress 
Grand Champion Bred guilt 

ROBERT IRWIN 
RR2, Vankleek Hill 
Ontario K0B IRO 

613-678-2232 

Real Estate 

Brand new luxurious 2,200 square foot model home of
fered for sale at builder's cost. Three bedrooms, two 
bathrooms, large living room with fireplace and French 
doors. Ceramic 1tiled European style kitchen with center 
island; greenhouse; family room with glass doors to large 
cedar deck; separate 2-car garage. On 4 acres with lake ac
cess and view to Ottawa River and mountains beyond. 
Energy efficient design provides minimal heating cost. 
At Plantagenet, midway between Ottawa and 
Montreal. 

100/o Mortgage. Only $89,000 
Call evenings after 7:30 p.m. 

Mr. Clarke, Plantagenet. 673-4882 
10-4c 

VERY PRIVATE, BEAUTIFUL SETTING 
150-acre farm on Highway No. 2, 2 miles from Lancaster 
and 401. 2,250 sq. ft. ranch-style, 5-bedroom home with 
in-ground pool and change house, large barn machine sh
ed and chicken coop. All in excellent conditi~n. Complete 
with tractors and machinery, $189,000. 

PRIVATE SALE 
613-347-3270 1O·4C 

MOBILE HOMES 
FOR SALE 

New 1983, 14x68 C.S.A. 
3-bedroom on display 

this is one of the 14 new models available 
1) Pyramid 12x60 C.S.A., 

2-bedroom 
2) Small mobile l 2x40 ideal 

for summer cottage 
3) Kenyon Crescent Park, 

14x68 C.S.A., 2-bed
room, TV antenna, small 
garage, ready for occupancy 
4) Kenyon Crescent Park, 
14x68 C.S.A., TV anten
na, small shed, occupancy 
for May 1 /83 
5) On lot at Brown House, 

·· 14x60 C.S.A., 3 
bedrooms, fireplace. Occu
pancy May l, 1983. 

6) On lot at Brown House, 
14x68 C.S.A 3-bed-
room, '·c;Q\.\J _;:h, 2 air 
condit. . ~r, Air Tight 
wood stove, by appoint
ment onlv. 

7) Cornwall area, 14x70 
C.S.A., 3-bedroom, fire
place, car porch, skirting 
has to be moved from lot, 
by appointment only. 

8) Kenyon Crescent Park, 
14x68 C.S.A., 3-bed
room completely furnished, 
by appointment only 

Real's Mobile Home 
Centre Ltd. 

11,2 miles south of Alexandria on Highway 34 
613-525-1555 

OPEN 7 DAYS A WEEK s-tc 

·ROLCO hay conveyor 115 ft. one year old ; 
269 New Holland baler like new; 256 New 
Holland rake, one year old: Allied 
automatic hay stooker; 1190 International 
haybine , very good shape; Uebler 
automatic feed cart : battery charger 
(new); Patz silage conveyor , 30-ft. Ap
prox. 100 bales of barley straw. 2 14-ft 
steel gates. Barton Roy. Tel. 347-2356. 

11-1 

TROTTIER 
FARM EQUIPMENT 

LTD. 
Hwy. 43, Alexandria 

Tel. 525-3120 

TRACTORS 

Free interest till June 1 /83 
on all used tractors 

1-Cockshutt Model 20 tractor 
I-Ford 5000 and loader 
I-Ford 800, excellent condi-

tion 

I-Ford 6600 tractor 1979, 
low hours 

I-Ford 6700 and cab, like 
new 

I-Ford 7600 tractor 

SPECIALS 
Good assortment of 

new and used snowblowers 
on hand 

- Pressure washers 
-Wood splitters, oil or gas 

1-252 Knight manure spread
er 

Portable Heaters 
Oil fired - Runs on 110 

ontlet, 85,000 B.T.U. Models 

BUSINESS HOURS 
8 a.m. to 5:30 p .m. 

Sat. 8 a.m. to 12 noon 

Help Wanted 
FACIAL and body massages, also helping 
with cosmetic and health products, could 
be 1rained, good wages. full or part-time. 
Call collect 346-5662. 9-3p 

BABYSITTER wanted for occasional days 
or evenings. Preferrably in my home, Glen 
Sandfield area. Tel. 874-2296. 10-4p 

RELIABLE person. age 17 to 24 , to work 
on dairy farm. With milking and field 
work. Must be good with cows. Apply to 
Fred Leroux, R.R. 2, Apple Hill . Tel . 
527-5672. References please . 11-2p 

ELDERLY farm couple near Ottawa seeks 
mature German-speaking woman to assisl 
in care of alert physically-handicapped 
wife, cooking , some housework. Live-in . 
Tel. 11,13) 489-3805. 11-1 p 

EXPERIENCED farm hand required for 
dairy farm. Non-smoker. Submit applica
tions, resumes to: Box A, The Glengarry 
News, 3 Main St., Alexandria. KOC 1AO. 

11-1 

ATTENTION 
I'll set an honest person 
up in a high income sales 
and service business for 
motorists. 

This business repeats year 
after year. 

No money required to 
start. 

Car required. 

Call Jim Nichol 
528-4628, Martin town 

9·3C 

For Sale or to Let 

Rooms - Boarders 
ROOM for rent, elderly preferred . Tel. 
932-7680. 9-11 

ROOM to let, Main Street S.. kitchen 
privileges. Tel. 525-2145. 10-2p 

CLEAN room for rent, centrally located . 
Reference required. Tel. 525-3956. 10-2p 
ROOM centrally located. References re
quired. Tel. 525-3956. 11-2p 

Services Offered 

GLENGARRY 
TIRE SERVICE 

All types of tires 
24-hour service 

On the spot repairs 

Night Calls: 

GILLES - 874-2727 
RON - 347-3157 
Glen Robertson 
Tel. 874-2727 

OPENING JAN. 17 /83 
at 

156 PITT ST., CORNWALL 
(just south on Second St. 
opposite Ford's Jewellers) 

BENTAX 
DISCOUNT CENTRE 

(a division of Beneficial 
Income Tax Service) 

WHY WAIT MONTHS FOR 
YOUR TAX REFUND? 

WE WILL PAY YOU 
85% OF YOUR 

EXPECTED RETURN 
WITHIN DAYS 

For further information 

Tel. 938-0995 
3·1Oc 

Wanted 
WANTED-One to two hundred acres of 
tiled land within six miles of Lancaster, 
willing to pay $65 per acre. G. Wells. Tel. 
933-1163. 10-8p 

WANTED-1 dozen goose eggs. Tel. 
347-2896. 11-1p 

WANTED-Second hand flora and white 
jacket . size 9. Tel. 347-3362. 11-2p 
WANTED-2 or 3 bedroom apartment in 
Alexandria. Tel. 347-3309. 5-5p 
WANTED-Adull family wants to rent for 
May 1, occupancy 3 or 4-bedroom house 
yearly basis . Alexandria , Maxville, Lan
caster, Martintown areas acceptable . Tel. 
613·525-1770. 8-3p 

WANTED-A live-in housekeeper to care 
for an elderly woman. For further infor
mation call 525-2439. 8-2p 

WANTED to buy: Beef stockers, 400 lbs. 
and up. Tel. 874-2589. 8-2p 

WANTED-Wooden kitchen or dining 
room table (preferably with leaves). 4 or 6 
wooden chairs. Also any old dolls. Call 
Sandy 525-3205. 8-1p 

WANTED 

ANTIQUE 
FURNITURE 

I will pay to $1,500 
for your corner cupboard 

Call before selling elsewhere 
I'll guarantee I pay the 
highest prices for your 

antique furniture 
Contact 

Rick Nielsen 
Tel. 525-3277 

31·33tt 

For Sale or to Let 

STORE FOR RENT 
58 Main St. South, Alex'lndria 
Facing plenty of parking space. 

Store area 25'x 50' Jlus 
rear storage 12'x 30' ba:ement 
Large front display winuows. 
Contact: 

Norman Laperle 
Tel. 525-3614 

1D·tf 

I 

The Glengarry News, Alexandria, Ont: 

Deadline: 12 Noon Tuesday 

Services Offered 
WE buy used stave cement silo. Any kind, 
any size. with or without unloaders. Call, 
7 a.m., Roger D'Aoust, 1189 Upper Con
cession. Ormstown. Que. 514-829-3487. 

9-3c 

CUSTOM carpentry. Experienced in new 
constructions, additions, renovations, 
cabinets, etc. No job too big or too small. 
Free estimates. Sterling Braman. Tel. 
~25-1323 after 6 p.m. or wellkends. 1-tf 

STAG - mixed party tickets. Special 
$15.95 for 500. Call or write: Action Ads, 
403 Water St. East , Cornwall, Ontario K6H 
1A6 or call 938-7808, 938-6396. 1 Hp 

INCOME TAX 
RETURNS 

Individual 
Small Business 

and Farm 

Maurice Lemieux 
Bookkeeping 

63 Main St. N., Alexandria 
Tel. 525-1666 

or 525-2008 
3-lf 

GLOBE & 
PAINTING. 

Painting & Decorating 
Interior & Exterior 

Plastering, Dry Walls 
Paper Hanging 
Free Estimates 

R. SORENSON 
Tel. 538-2325 

11-tf 

BOURBONNAIS 
Carpentry & Woodworking 

Custom-made doors 
and windows 

General repairs. 

We sell solid oak 
or pine cupboard doors. 

Tel. 932-6285 
or 937-0416 

1O·4p 

AUBIN'S 
HOME COMFORT 

Repairs to all makes 
of oil furnaces 

Chimney Cleaning 
R.R. 2 

Green Valley, Ont. 
Tel. 525-4896 

"Electric Heating 
and Modernization" 

11·2p 

Delorme Electric 
347-2495 

or leave message 
will call back 

South Lancaster 
24-Hour Service Ca1ls 

Glengarry Insulation 
Alexandria 

46·11 

Insulating your home can save you 
money and give you great comfort. 

Call 525-1105 
Michel Lacombe 

GMHC Acceptance NO. 8251 

GGSB Cer11!1cahon No 83007 5-tf 

Apts. , Flats to Let 
2-bedroom apartment for rent in Green 
Valley, available April 1. Apply Ouellette' s 
Lumber. 525-3786. 8-11 
2-bedroom apartment, $225 monthly, 
utilities not included. Call Jean Clement, 
525-3868. 

R-lf 

Services Offered 
WI LL do carpentry, wallpapering and 
painting; also weekends . Reasonable 
prices. Tel. 525-2454. 51-26p 
LEARN to drive tractor trailers: For inter
view contact Tractor Trailer Training, Cor
nwall. Ont. 613-933-7113, evenings and 
weekends until 10 p.m .. 613-933-4993. 

38-25p 

CORN planting with new six-row or four
row John Deere planters , $10.50 per acre 
with a minimum of 70 acres. G. Wells. Tel. 
933-1 163. 10-8p 

'Mother Would 
Like It" 

(Mobile Discotheque) 
Weddings, Stags, 
Christmas Parties 

"The greatest music 
selection on wheels." 

525-1238 
Ron La(onde 

37-tt 

DON CONROY 
& SON 
Septic Tank Cleaning 

Repair and Insulation 

Call 931-1108 
931-1

1
527 

18tf 
Summe,slown, Ont. 

Serving Glengarrians 
In Cornwall 

822 Pitt Street (613) 938-3888 
Cornwall. Ontario 

Ronald Wilson, Director 

BR·ocKVILLE 
MEMORIALS 
MONUMENTS 

Brockville 342-4505 
Winchester and Area 

Bruce Campbell 774-3642 
Ross McConnell 774·3514 

Cemetery Lettering 

36-tt 

9·11 

clllcle 
MOBILE 

DISCOTHEQUE 
Weddings - Stags - Parties 

525-2943 13-tf 

or 525-3808 
Andre M: ~enard 

JOE O'NEILL 
CONSTRUCTION LTD. 
GENERAL CONTRACTORS 

Builders of Houses, Barns, Pole Barns 
Implement Sheds, Grain Bins, 

Concrete Work 

(I Complete 
Renovations 

Interior Finishing 
Kitchen Cupboards 

MEMllEA 
All Wood Foundations 

Over 100 different house styles 
Call Joe or Matt 874-2018 

R.R. 1, Glen Robertson, Ont. 
48-tt 

Apts., Flats to Let 
2-bedroom apartment for rent in Glen Roy. 
Tel.525-3104afler6p.m. 11-2p 

BELLEVUE 
APARTMENTS 

- NOW RENTING -

- IMMEDIATE OCCUPANCY -

2-BEDROOM APARTMENTS 

including parking, 2 TV outlets, garbage 
removal, stove and fridge, rugs, intercom 
system, storage area. 

EAST SIDE $395 WEST SIDE $385 

(You pay water and electricity only) 

Tel. 525-2417 or 525-2718 
7-11 

Services Offered 
CUSTOM kitchen cabinets and furniture; 
al so renovations , addit ions and 
maintenance. Tel. Chris at 525-4864.18-tf 

BODY care , facials, Parafango (mud 
pack), reflexology (footcare); available 
now from qualified person. By appoinl
ment only. Tel. 346-5662. 9-4p 

VITRERIE 
GREEN VALLEY 

GLASS LTD. 

GLASS 
MIRRORS 

ALUMINUM 
DOORS 

WINDOWS, WINDSHIELDS 

TEL. 525-2704 

INCOME TAX 
RETURNS 

9·4C 

Returns of all kinds 
Services qualifed & guaranteed 

also Bookkeeping 

JACQUES LAUZON 
ACCOUNTING 

124 Main St. S., Alexandria 
Tel. 525-2069 (office) 
525-4355 (residence) 

2-tt 

SPECIALIZED 
CARPET & FURNITURE 

CLEANING 
Steam or Dry Process 

REASONABLE RATES 

Call after 5 p.m. 
874-2197 10-2c 

Work Wanted 
MARRIED man seeking employment on 
dairy or cash crop farm. Mechanically in
clined. Available April 1st. Reference . Tel. 
874-2169. 11-2p 

Business Opportunities : 
FURN ITURE stripping franchise , 
royalties or commission , all material an 
equipment supplied . full or part-time o 
even absentee ownership potential. B 
Wr Glengarry News, Alexandria , Ont. 
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Notice 

Township of Lancaster 
NOTICE 

TO TRUCKERS 

Half load restrictions will be 
enforced, in accordance witli 
by-law No. 587-82, on all 
township roads as of March 1, 
1983. 
Persons contravening this by
law will be prosecuted in ac
cordance with the law. 

Chuck Larocque 
Road Superintendent 

1O·2C 

WASHER and DRYER 

REPAIRS 

Alexandria and Area 

BRUCE PICHER 

Tel. 525-4471 

or 525-3463 

THE 

LIVE MUSIC 
IS BEST! 

Stags - Weddings 
Banquets, etc. 

21 -tt 

COUNTRY SQUIRES 

NOW BOOKING: 
Call GAITS 525-3208 

9.,c 

Work Wanted 

DO YOU NEED DAYCARE? 
Full-time and part-time care available for Alex,.. 

andria_ area and · Ureen. Valley., Call Action 

Garderie Glengarry Day Care Action at 

525-3 I 63. Quality care for your child is impor
tant. 

.... .,, .,,., 

1 rn 3 G [QJ: 
- ~ 

NOTICE 
Township of Lochiel 

9· 4C 

The taxpayers of the township of Lochiel 
have been mailed an interim tax billing for ap
proximately 40% of the taxes levied in 1982. 

The taxes for 1983 will be invoiced in 
three installments. 

March 31 interim tax billing 
June 30 and September 30 
each representing one half of 
·the remaining levy for 1983. 

E. C. McNaughton 
Clerk-Treasurer 

11-l c 

TOWNSHIP OF KENYON 
TENDER FOR LIQUID 

-
CALCIUM CHLORIDE 

Sealed tenders will be received by the undersigned 
until 1 p.m., local time, April 5th, 1983, for the mixing, 
delivering and application to the roads of the township 
of 35% Liquid Calcium Chloride Solution having an 
equivalent of 190 metric tonnes, more or less, of 77% to • 
80% Flake Calcium Chloride, Lowest or any tender not 
necessarily accepted. Contract awards are conditional 
on M.T.C. approval. Tenders are to be submitted on 
forms and in envelopes obtained from the Township Of-
fice, Greenfield, Ont. Each tender must be accompanied '°"' 
with a certified cheque made out to the Township of Ke- 'r 
nyon, for the amount of 10% of the tendered price. 

J.R. STEEL, 
Clerk-Teasurer, 
Township of Kenyon, 
R.R. 5, 
Alexandria, Ont. KOC lA0 
Tel. 527-2090 

11&13C 
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Auld Lang Syne 
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TEN YEARS AGO 

!.mfr i&r··'>IIIK•~~~•l)i31(!Ja<·).CE<~:Z<~•~-~-~ 

what organizers expect will be an a well-kept lawn . A special FIFl'Y YEARS AGO 
Thursday, March 15, 1973 annual event. committee under Father Kerr is Friday, March 17, 1933 

Plans for expansion are now in 
the process of being finalized and 
it is hoped construction docu
ments will be available soon, it 

,J,; was learned at the annual meet
l!ing of the Glengarry Memorial 

Hospital Board of Directors. 
-Iona Academy committee mem
bers Cuthbert McDonald, Alfred 
Vogel, Anna M. MacDonald and 

•
Robert McDonell were assised by 
Osie F. Villeneuve, MPP, to 
present the case of 200 children at 
Iona Academy who will be 
without accommodation next Sep
tember. They met with Tom 
Wells, Minister of Education, and 
Fern Guindon, Minister of Labor, 
who promised to obtain a grant 
for the school.-Jean Beliveau, 
former Canadiens' hockey star, 
will officially open the Glengarry 
Highland Games at Maxville, 
Saturday. August 4.-An 18-
vear-old area man, Ernest Per
~eault. was killeq when his car hit 
a tree on Hwy. 34, 1.5 miles south 
ofVankleek Hill.-Glengarry Dis
trict High School will feature a 
"first" on the weekend of March 
31st when the Seaway Drama 
Festival will be held here.-De
partment of Transportation and 
Communications will be calling 
for contracts for the resurfacing of 
Highway 34 between Lancaster 
and Alexandria.-A canoe race 
on the Raisin River between St. 
Andrews and Williamstown is 
scheduled for Sunday, April 15. 
This will be the first venture in 

iTHE0RETI 
t 

TWENTY YEARS AGO 
Thursday, March 14, 1963 

Fourteen were left homeless 
and the Roxborough Municipal 
Telephone S~•stem lost its ex
change early Sunday when the 
Moose Creek business section 
was hard hit by fire. Mrs. Agnes 
Scott, switchboard operator, suf
fered a fall downstairs in escaping 
the burning building.-Four Iona 
students were judged the best 
team of debaters in the Ottawa 
Journal competition. Nan Mc
Dougall and Donna Jordan won 
for the affirmative; Kenzie Mc
Donald and Clitit McCosham for 
the negative.-Neil McLean of 
Maxville, showed the grand 
champion exhibit and retained 
the title of premier exhibitor at 
the United Counties Seed Fair. 

TfflRTY YEARS AGO 
Friday, March 13, 1953 

First sod for the new Alexand
ria High School will be turned in 
early May. Architect's plans call 
for an academic and vocational 
wing with eight classrooms, three 
science laboratories and a work
shop.-Douglas (~illie) Kennedy, 
of Montreal. reached that city last 
week after completing a post
graduate, two-year course in 
electrical engineering in England. 
- One of the oldest Catholic 
cemeteries in Ontario, the burial 
ground adjoining St. Raphael's 
Church. is to be transformed into 

A. Tlllnl I FIii Inc. r 
LAND IMPROVEMENT-CONTRACTORS 

SPECIALTY: 
FARM DRAINAGE 

TII. 1·514-373-4408 
Cllllctall .... 

175 Eltl 
VIII,-, '-G. 

mQ~QN~ADrt 
·MENARD 

Water 
Conditioning 

Repairs to all makes of 
water softeners. 

Chemicals and Supplies 
Guaranteed Workmanship 

For 24-hour service call 

(613) 525-2156 
8-4p 

PIONEER®ALFALFA 
BRAND 

ASGOOD 
AS ALFALFA GETS 
No matter how alfalfa 

fits into your cropping 
program, you want the 
most from your alfalfa 
acres . . . and that 
means quality as well 
as quantity. Pioneer@ 
brand alfalfas are bred 
to give you top yields of 
quality forage in both 
early and medium 
maturing varieties. 

Ask your Pioneer 
Sales Representative 
about the alfalfa variety 
that's right for your 
farm. 

@ 
'PIONEER 

BANNER • 532 • 524 • 520 

.@ ~!9.A~FAL~~~ ® 

. Glengarry North 
East of Hwy.- 34· West of Hwy. 34 

Dougal Macleod Weldon MacIntosh 
525-2327 524-5517 

Pioneer Is a brand name; numbers Identify varieties. 'B)Reglatered trademark 
licensed lo Pioneer Hi-Bred Limited Chatham, Ontario 

now sparking a drive for funds. A feature of the successful 

FORTY YEARS AGO 
Friday, March 12, 1943 

Taking its worst beating from 
snow and wind in many years, 
Hi,ghwav 34 was re-opened Wed
nesdav after the weekend's sec
ond storm which piled up 10-foot 
drifts . Alexandria curlers in 
Montreal for the Edinburgh 
Trophy play. Saturday. got as far 
as Lancaster that night, but had 
to hole up there and come home 
bv train Sunday.-Sergt. Lloyd 
McDonald, son of Mrs. FlNence 
McDonald. L:1?.caster. arrived 
frnm overseas, Friday. to take an 
Officers' Training Course.-Miss 
Margaret Catherine MacRae. RN. 
onlv daughter of Mr. and Mrs. 
.John M. MacRae of Dyer, enlist
ed in the RCAF, March 5, and is 
now stationed at Rockcliffe Park. 
-J. E. Roy of the Royal Bank 
c;taff. left last week to don an 
army uniform. 

by Paul Lacombe 
At a public meeting on Monday 

evenmg. the Glen Robertson 
Recreation Committee agreed to 
turn over to Club '6S the 
ownership of the building in 
which it has been a tenant since 
its inception in 1974. 

The building is in disrepair and 
will need a new heating system. 
The senior citizens of Club '65 
believe that their appeal for help 
to the several levels of govern
ment will be met with a sympa
thetic ear. The group hopes to get 
aid to finance the reconditioning 
of their cl11h room~ 

l".O . BOX 107 
GREEN \/ALLEY, ONT. 

KOC 1LO 

Carnival held Monday night here. 
under auspices of the Citizens' 
Band. was the Ong Derby run 
down Main Street. Ed Belair won 
first prize. with Shorty Gagnon 
and Hughie McCuaig tied for 
second and R. Laferriere winning 
third place.-Glengarry Seed 
Growers were represented at 
Kemptville for the annual Ottawa 
Vallev Seed Fair. held last week 
and ~ight money prizes came to 
our county. The county junior 
team of Hector Leroux. Green
field. Alex McRae, Maxville, and 
Keith McMillan. Lochiel. placed 
fourth in the seed judging com
petition.-A disastrous fire at 
Apple Hill early Sunday morning 
completely destroyed the barn , 
stables, sheds. etc.. of John 
McCallum. liveryman, the loss 
including three tine horses. two 
cows and equipment. The cement 
block garage of Dr. Geo. V. 
McDonald was also ra7ed. 

Club '65 has a large memt;;i-
,ship coming from a radius of 
many miles from its centre in 
Gle~ Robertson and the group 
enjovs the wholehearted support 
of St. Martin of Tours parish 
committee and the pastor. as well 
as the Glen Robertson Recreation 
Committee. 

George Lunan was here on 
Tuesday with the United Counties 
truck, tractors and crew to clean 
up Main Street. It was never more 
needed and appreciated . 

• TELE\IISIOMS 
• STEREOS 
• TOWERS 

• ANTENNAS 
• ROTORS. EtC. 

With 14 years experience 

Ladouceur Electronic Service 
C LOCATED AT MARCEL TV-FURNITURE LTD. l 

ADRIEN LADOUCEUR 
8USINltSS RESIDENCE 

(913) !52!5-3692 (613) 525.14g3 
3-511 

12% 
5 YR. TERM G.I.C. 
ANNUAL INTEREST 

3 YR. TERM GIC . 11 % 
ANNUAL INTEREST 1/2 0 

2 YR. TERM GIC 
ANNUAL INTEREST 

1 YR. TERM GIC 10 % 
ANNUAL INTEREST 3/ 4 Q1 

No Handling Charges 
SERVING OTTAWA ft AREA FOR OVER 25 YEARS 

fflm&1 
504 PITT STREET 937-0118 

CALL DOREEN H~BER·T 
RatM _Sub;.ct · 10 Olar-.ge 

)J 

TAVERN 
Martintown Tel. 528-4233 

Formerly Grand Hotel 

Presents ... 

The Sunset Express 
Friday and Saturday 

Morch 18 and 19; from 9 to 1 
Sunday, March 20; 4 to 11 

SUNDAY BUFFET 
Glazed ham, barbeque spare ribs, complete salad bar, coffee, 
tea, dessert. 
Clip this ad ••. 

Senior Citizens 10% Off 
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Charlottenhurgh to pay tab 
by Sue Sloan 

An exhaustion of drainage 
funds without prior notice from 
the federal government has left a 
$20,000 tab for the Township of 
Charlottenburgh; an ever increas
ing tab which most surely will be 
paid out of those affected pockets 
if the work is completed. 

"If they want it, they'll get it 
but let's make sure they know it's 
going to cost them and cost them 
twice what it did before the 

monev ran out." said Reeve 
MacDonald. at a recent meeting 
of township council. 

The $20.000 bill was the cost 
borne by the township for engin
eering fees. 

The federal governmen~ cut off 
the funding for drainage projects 
in the south Glen Falloeh area, 
leaving various improvements 
and reconstruction unfinished. 

A 14-signature petition was 
<;ubmitted for council's attention 

Tuesday. March 7, hoptng to 
prompt results for improvements 
and a municipal drain extension 
in the area. 

Should the landowners want to 
follow through and complete the 
unfinished oroiect thev will be 
responsible for two-thirds of the 
cost of the drain installation. 

The remaining one-third is 
,;ubsidized by the province. 

a nee . 
" Those drains were started in 

good faith." he said. "Council 
doesn 'r look good for this inci
dent. It's not our fault." 

Although a letter of official 
protest will be sent accompanying 
many others sent by other 
affected municipalities, Reeve 
MacDonald anticipates "no im
pa.ct" on the government. 

All funding for projects of this 
variety has been utilized until 
March. 1984. 

Club talks cash 

The two-thirds landowner pay
ment is the cost previously picked 
up bv the government. 

Letters will be sent to the 
petitioners on behalf of council 
telling council's position on the 
matter and tentative decision. 

Attempts to recover the engin
eering costs from the federal 
government have been futile, 
according to Clerk Marcel La
pierre. Drainage projects already 
underway are in "a grey area," 
according to Lapierre. 

by Sharon MacRae 
The fourth meeting of the 

Financial Management Club was 
held on Feb. 28. at Kirsty 
MacLeod's. 

The fifth meeting on March 7 
wa<; ht>lr'I ;,t <sh~ron MacRae's 
with 12 members present. The 
lesson was about Cash Inflows 
and Outflows. More problems 
had to be solved along with a 
personal cash flow statement. 

Councillor Stewart Bucken said 
"A let I er should be sent to the 
_government asking for assist-

Twelve members answered the 
roll call. "What is one spending 
habit that you would like to 
change?" 

The lesson was on Partial 
Budget. and we worked on partial 
budget problems. 

Our final meeting will be held 
at the OMAF Boardroom on 
March 21. All members will 
present their case studies as their 
projects. 

WANT TO BE LEFT OUT? ·r 
·. '.DON'T READ TH.IS AD ,,,_;ji 

\: ,( )t:, 

Plus Many, Many More 
Unbelievable Pr01rams 

For the best deal anywhere come in and see us. We are 
one of the oldest dealers in Eastern Ontario (25 years). 

zero's Super Z. It's the complete bulk milk tank. 
At least a great Improvement on any you"ve seen 

before, certainly a revolertlon In design, and 
perhaps even the ultimate. 

USED EQUIPMENT 
4-JD 1240 plateless 4-row corn planters 
2-JD 494A plate 4-row corn planters 
1-IH 400 Cyclo 4-row corn planter 

All planters in excellent condition, 
ready for the field 

Plus a large selection of other used machines. 

John Deere 

1
Farming Frontiers 
; Show 
1coming March 30, 

1983 

11-lc 

Zero Dairy Farm Equipment 
Phillippe Glaude 

GARRY SMITH 
St. Isidore, Ontario 
Tel. 613-524-2137 

SALES & SERVICE 
(MAXVILLE) LTD. 

J1-2c Maxville, Ont. Tel. 527-2152 

Also ask sbout ellglble used farm tracton 
of any make, avallable with 8.8% A.P.R. 
financing for up to 42 montha .... or a waiver 
of finance charges until December 1, 1983. 
Free travel offers and cash option do not apply 
to used tractor purchases. _ 
For 8.8% A.P.R. finance charges.or waiver-of• 
lif"\Snce-charges, on new or used tractors, pur
chase must be financed through J I Case Credit 
Corporation. Offers apply from date of purchase. 

See u• now tor full det.,I•. 

Hwy.17 

• J 

·I 

'·· . 

' ~-. 

I 

1 ' 

.f' 

Fournier 

,. ·1, . 

' .. .. , 
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GDHSNewsline by Helene Lauzon and Sharon 
Graham 

iiiir'llil_ az T:ria~la•r •r·• 
by Diane Cousineau 

From February 28 to March 4, 
the students of GDHS witnessed 
Music Week. It was the first time 
in many years that the senior 
band organized Music Week in 
the school. All the activities took 
place in the library at lunch where 
the audience from day to day 
grew larger and larger. 

Music Week was not a last
minute thought but an activity 
which took lots of preparation, 
The senior band members sacri-

ficed their free lunch periods to 
practice ensemble music and solo 
pieces. 

Free periods were also sacri
ficed by members compiling the 
history and capabilities of the 
many instruments. This informa
tion was later fed to an attentive 
audience on an assigned lunch 
hour. 

In order to encourage attend
ance and further publicize Music 
Week, a poster contest was 
organized . 

The winners of the poster 
contest are Vanessa McKiel and 
Francina Collard, first prize of 
$15 and Danielle Claude who was 
awarded second prize of $10 as 
well as third prize of $5. 

Music Week was a success. 
Attendance was at its peak 
Friday, March 4, when the jazz 
band performed in the finale, the 
theme of the ever-popular tele
vision show, "M•A•s•H." This 
seemed duly appropriate because 
for each it was an ending. 

. Crusader News bv Mary Foster 

by Mary Foster 
The Science Quiz Team, Lynda 

Grinstead, Susan Aubin, Michael 
Richer and Wally Wood played 
their first (and last) game against 
GDHS last week. Unfortunately 
they lost; maybe next year . . . 

• • • 
The Boys Junior Basketball 

EOSSA Tournament took place on 
Thursday. This increased the 
number of visitors wandering 
around the school; music students 
from other schools, people from 
St. Lawrence Estates, Mt. Carmel 
House, public schools, memb~rs 

of the community and music 
teachers also came to watch the 
Youth Band practising. 

The seven members of the 
Youth Band from Char-Lan all 
had a great time and probably 
want to participate next year, 
also. They were: Susan MacLach
lan. flute; Andrea Buckland, 
clarinet; Janice Haack, bass 
clarinet; John Foster, trombone; 
Susan Aubin, tuba; and Chris 
Wert. percussion. 

Under the direction of Mr. Gary 
Bryan and Mr. Frank Hunter the 
Youth Band Workshop was ex-

Repairs of All Makes of 

.WATER. SOFTENERS 
SALFS- SERVICE- RENTAL 

525J:g87.7 

tremely well organized; one of the 
most successful ever! 

• • • 
Last week. on Tuesday, Char

Lan's new additions were finally 
declared open. Many officials 
were at the opening, also many 
people who had helped to obtain 
the additions. Students were 
allowed out of classes at 2 p.m. to 
listen to speeches by Mr. Mc
Cabe. Dr. Stephenson , Mr. Buck
land, Mr. Le Ber (representing 
the school committee) to name a 
few. 

Finally a plaque was unveiled 
by two former principals of 
Char-Lan, Mr. Barrett and Mr. 
Shaw. 

Congratulations to all involved! 

Lights coming 
Street lights are being installed 

' in the Kenyon Crescent Mobile 
, Home Park. fTr:~COM£0~T ·i:!;nt 

Gerald Ouellette 
The 47-home park is situated 

ttf ,'. 1 on Highway 34 at the corner of 
_ the First of Kenyon. L... ______ ..;;_ _ _,....,..,.....,..-----.:.._------' Twelve new sodium lights are 

-----------------------, ~ being installed by the owner of 
the prop~rty, Real Gauthier. 

OTTAWA HOUSE 
&LOUNGE 

ENTERTAINMENT 

4 GO-GO GIRLS 
Dancers present Monday thru Saturday, 3 p.m. 

Saturday Band 
CANADIAN 
COUNTRY 

Your Kind of Music 
To continue all during March 

9 to 1 a.m. 
Props: Dorothy and J.P. 

ONE DAY ONLY 
Wednesday, March 23 

LADIES' DAY ENTERTAINMENT 

GO GO BOYS 
from 3 till 1 a.m. 

9-Sc 
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T'ne owner of the property, Real 
Gauthier is having the twelve 
lights set up on three streets-Jo
anne, Gary and Bobby. Access to 
the streets is from the First of 
Kenyon Road. 

"The park needed a brighten
ing-up. If people wanted to go for 
a walk after supper it was too dark 
for comfort," Gauthier explains. 

The whole project is at the 
owner's expense but Ontario 
Hydro is currently doing the 
installing. 

The housing development which 
was started in 1976 is well 
occupied. Gauthier is currently 
awaiting zoning approval for 16 
more homes. 

Keep tax receipts 
Don't throw out your tax 

receipts when you send in your 
income tax return. Even if you 
have received your refund cheque 
and notice of assessment, you 
may be asked for receipts when 

1 the tax department conducts 
programs after filing season to 
double check tax returns. Wheth
er for an audit or a simple request 
for receipts, you must be able to 
back up your claims or risk losing 
valuable tax deductions. April 30 
may mark the end of the tax year 
for you, but for Revenue Canada 
it is just the beginning. 

TH E·S HO W·O F·S TR ENG TH 

HONDA 

~ 
Featuring the strongest line-up in Honda motorcycle history. Starring the new 1983 Honda 

v-twin Shadows and the V-4 Magnas, Sabre and Interceptor. Also appearing : the 1983 Aspen
cade,. Interstates and competition motocross and enduro bikes. Plus dual purpose bikes, ATCs, 

mini-bikes and more. And this year, especially for Canadian riders: 
THE CB1100F, CBX550F, CX650E, QR50 MiniMoto and NHS0 Mascot. 

CORNWALL CIVIC COMPLEX 
Sat., March 19, 10 a.m. to 9 p.m.; Sunday, March 20, 12 noon to 6 p.m. 

Irwin Supply (Cornwall) Ltd . 
701 Rosemount Ave. 

~ 
HONDA Cornwall 

11-l C 
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THE GLENGARRY CARA VAN 
will be arriving Friday, March 18, 1983 at 11:00 a.m. 

Cavalier Sedan 

with approximately 
50 new cars & trucks 

at extraordinary 
low prices. 

CARAVAN CONSISTS OF: 
S l O Blazer Pickups, Camero Z 28's, Chevette S 

Cavaliers, 2 litre T.8.1., Cutlass T-tops, 
Caprice Estates, Firenze LX Sedans, Firenze SX 

hatchbacks, Chev 4 x 4 diesel pick ups 
ond many more. 

We need 
your 

trade-in · 

OPEN 
ALL DAY 

SATURDAY 
& SUNDAY 

GLEN GARRY 
525-1480 

~ HWJ 34, M_QTOR SALES LTD. 

ALEXANDRIA CHEVROLET-OLDSMOBILE DEALER 

CORNWALL LINE Jla 
347-2436 W .......... • • ..... 

• 

• 

• 
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The Glengarry News Sports 
II 

• Elimin.ation 
• ·for Atoms 

by Francine Sabourin 
Over the weekend, Atom Glens 

Caisse Populaire were ousted 
from the playoff series in the 
Lower St. Lawrence Hockey Lea
gue division, and at the St. 
Isidore tournament, were elimin
ated from the A finals. 

THURSDAY, MARCH 10 
Glens' playoff hopes came to a 

halt on Thursday night at the 
Williamstown arena as they bow
ed to Char-Lan 3-2. Alexandria 
grabbed a 2-0 edge by the second 
period but Char-Lan fashioned a 
comeback victory in the last 
frame. · 

The clubs were deadlocked 2-2 
with less than a minute to play. 
Since a tie was not enough to 
bring the local team in the final 
playoff series, ·coach Gilles Joan
ette pulled his goaltender in favor 
of an extra attacker. .• 

However, this manouevre fail
ed and Char-Lan capped the 
victory with an open-net marker. 

Pascal Joanette, on a pass from 
Patrick Ravary, and Ronn~AJ: 
teen. unassisted, counted for · 
the Glens. For Char-Lan, Todd 
Cameron tallied twice with Dan 
Desjardins adding the winner. 

As you turn the calendar back, 
for the sixth consecutive time in 
tournament participation, the At
oms CPA have made a routine of 
collapsing in the semi-finals, this 
time at St. Isidore. 

On Friday night, in their 
opening game, Pascal Joanette's 
goal in overtime lifted the Glens 
to a 2-1 victory over St. Isidore. 
Julien Boisvenue played strongly, 
scoring the tying goal and setting 
up the winner. 

For St. Isidore, Shawn Taggart 
netted the lone goal. 

On Sunday, the Glens advanc
ed to the A semi-finals with a note 
of confidence since Cornwall 
Minor had never handed them a 
defeat this season. On the 
contrary, Alexandria fell behind 
in the second period and came out 
on the short end of a 3-1 decision. 

Derek Grant had the three 
goals for the Royals while Julien 
Boisvenue on a set-up fr""iim Scott 
Graham, was the lone respondent 
for the Glens . 

Next weekend, the local team 
will take part in the Hawkesbury 
tournament. First game is sche
duled for Saturday, March 19, at 
8 a.m. 

IL 

STRONG CONTENDERS-The GDHS / ESRG Hockey Team 
won two out of three hockey tournaments this season, Alexan
dria and Char-Lan, before losing their first to CCVS. They 
are, front row, from left: John Shago, John Wood, Frank Pa
quin, Pierre Jeaurond. Second: Qavid McKay, Jimmie 

&JI 

Danaher, Joel Doiron, Alain Menard. Rear: Principal Jane 
Wright, Gavin Fletcher, Eric Paquin, Jean Souligny, Luc 
Cleroux, Kenny Barton and Coach Larry Yaguchi. Missing 
from picture are Mike Campeau and Maurice Bellefeuille. 

Staff Photo-Anna M. MacDonald 

Char-Lan Minor House League playoffs 
Playoffs began in all divisions 

in the Char-Lan Hockey House 
League this week. In the Atom 
division, Munro Fertilizer won 
both of their games, dumping 
D&R Rose 9-5 in the tirst game 

.ii. led by Jeffrey Lapierre's · five 
-"" goals. 

Alex lngola, Christian Jean
ette, Lee Avery and Richard 
Campeau added singles. For 

..'- Rose's, it was Bobby Richer with 
W two goals, and Mike Everson, 

Shane Boucher, and Steven Val-
lance with singles. 

Munro's then defeated Rozon 
Insurance 5-1 getting their mark-

ers from Jeffrey Lapierre, Ken 
Landry, Allister MacDonald, 
Richard Campeau and Lee Avery. 

Kelly Pressault notched Roz
on 's. 

Rozon's dropped their second 
game losing 4-2 to Railcar Can
ada. 

Bruce Tessier tallied twice and 
Randy Menard and Denis St. 
Jean once each for Railcar, while 
David Alguire and James Cooper 
replied tor Kozon's . 

In Peewee action, Grant Bros. 
disposed of Claude Nunney 6-1, 
getting three goals from Chris 
McPhail and singles from Serge 

Carriere. Lawrence Davis and 
Jason Ramsey. 

They also took their second 
game. nipping Chretien Backhoe 
4-2. Chris McPhail. James Mac
Donald. Serge Carriere and 
Shawn Winter scored for Grant's 
and Todd Lapierre and Trevor 
Bowles replied for the losers. 

Nunney's lost their second 
game. 4-1. to Rob McIntosh 
China. Wesley Jurchuk, Jason 
Currier, Ken Hall and Steve 
Kreicher chipped in with singles, 
and Shawn McRae replied for 
Nunney's. 

In the Bantam division. Dan's 
Place overpowered Gauthier's 
Greenhouse. 5-1, led by Jeff 
Watson 's three goals. Barry 
Avery and Peter Kannon added 
singles. Bryan Ward averted the 
shutout. Gauthier's got in the win 
column crushing Lancaster Piz-
zeria 8-1. paced by Bryan Ward 
with three goals. Daniel Jalbert 
and Jeff Cassidy with two apiece 
and Dale Poirier with one. 

Archie Willard answered for 
the losers. Gauthier's then lost to 
Dan's by a 5-2 margin . Peter 
Kannon had a pair for Dan's and 

Sports in the Glens 

' 

' 

~"4:. 
by Angus B. McDone6 , .;, 

We have just returnhd from a 
brief, pleasant holiday "iq the 
Miami of Ontario, the Niagara 
fruitland. While picking up a 
letter in the News office, editor 
Anna M. put us right back to 
work. She suggested we submit a 
story relative to the old time 
"Mill Square" photo, editorial 
page, March 7issue. Well, before 
turning back the pages of time a 
travelogue synopsis in capsule 
form. 

Driving conditions April like. 
No snow west of Morrisburg. A 
half-way break at Belleville. (The 
days of 4-500 mile drives are over 
fo~ the co-pilot and me.) Their 
civic park manicured in summer 
fashion complete with the re
placement of benches. Around 
Toronto, 27 miles at ease in light 
Saturday traffic. This is one of the 
best engineered throughway art
ery layouts in North America. The 
usual fascinating bird's eye view 
of industrial Hamilton from the 
QE Skyway Bridge. 

Spring has arrived in St. 
Catharines. Crocus and tulips 
poling their brave heads through 
the ground, from winter slumber. 

The early.bird golfers have moved 
from the driving ranges to 
carding 18's with zest and 
delight. 

And then to enjoy the real 
pleasure of such outings. Greet
ings extended by next-of-kin and 
Glengarrians still holding fond 
memories of the Glens. Invariably 
after asking about kinfolk the next 
queries were: "When is the 
Highland Games?" Answer, 
"July 30, always the Saturday 
before Ontario Civic Holiday, first 
Monday in August." "Who will 
be the official guest?" "Still 
working on that important item, 
watch the News for announce
ment ere too long." "Who are to 

St. Raphael's closes gap 
St. Raphael's walloped Glen 

Nevis 8-3 Sunday in Alexandria to 
close the point gap to 5-3 in the 
8-point final of the Akxafldria 
intermediate Hockey League. 

Leo Seguin and Carter Mac
Donald r,aced St. Raphael's with 
two goals each with singles going 
to Paul Dumouchel, Norm Se
guin, Ewen McCormick and John 
Shago. 

Ewen McCormick also had four 
assists. 

Replying for Glen Nevis were 
Jim Crawford, John MacSweyn 
and Todd Hambleton. 

Glen Nevis had opened up a 
:,. l point lead Tuesday night in 
Maxville with a 7-4 win. 

Steve Levac scored twice for 
Glen Nevis . Blake Hambleton, 
David McKay, Findlay McLeod, 

Kevin McDonell and Robert 
MacDonald also scored. Jacques 
Lajoie, Leo Seguin, Ron McDon
·ald and Carter MacDonald replied 
for St . Raphael's. 

St. Raphael's had a chance to 
even the series Tuesday night in 
Maxville. The series resumes 
Sunday afternoon at 1 p .m. in 
Alexandria. · 

· Valleyfield takes trophy 
by Joan P. MacDonald 

Bud Amos skipped the 
Valleyfield team to win the 

I 21st Annual Fisherman's Bon
spiel at the Lancaster Curling 
Club the past weekend. With a 
high calibre of curling on both 
teams, the Valleyfield team 
defeated Paul Copeland's 
team from Ottawa to receive 
the Fishermlln'~ 'frophy. 

' This trophy was donated by 

I 
Dan F1aro in the early years of 

·. the Lancaster Club. Mrs. 
ltilda F1aro and Dan's son, 

.,. Maurice, were on hand to 

present the trophy. 
Bud Amos' team included 

Harold Morris as vice, Claude 
Poirier, second and Tod Cam
peau, lead. 

Winners of the "B" event 
was an Ottawa rink skipped by 
Art Leblanc, with Don Car
rington , Wes Miller and Ray 
Sitland. The runners-up in the 
"B" were a Brockville rink 
skipped by Chuck McKay with· 
Don Brown, Norm Reynolds 
and Doug Wood. 

This year's "Fisherman's" 
was capably convened by 
Lloyd MacDonald. Lloyd Faw-

throp, convener of the fish fry 
and his team of workers added 
that special quality for which 
the Fisherman's is known. 

Lil Enberg and Charlene 
Syrduk convened the dinner. 
Don Snider was in charge of 
the bar. Music was by Jimmy 
Nixon and Tony Wetering was 
the Ice Man. 

The same teams present last 
year, competed from Vankleek 
Hill, Alexandria. Cornwall, 
Riverfield, Town of Mount 
Royal, Howick, Huntingdon 
and Mount Bruno. 

be inducted this year in Glengarry 
Sports Hall of Fame?" Same 
answer. "Keep an eye on the 
Letter from Home." Finally, 
"What will happen to St. Fin
nan 's?" "I don't know." "Well, 
tell the folks back home to 
preserve the dignity and historic 
values in their present form, not 
replaced by grandeur." 

When we left in contihued 
April weather the owners of fruit 
orchards and vineyards were 
deeply worried that buds emerg
ing too soon could be destroyed 
by a heavy frost. Now let us go to 
work on the photo assigm,:'snt. 

The cutlines beneath the photo 
Jt..pect it is of World War One 

vintage." That is correct. This is 
confirmed by another ancient 
photo the cherished family heir
loom of the Seger girls, Marguer
ite and Helen, Mrs. Phil Kauf
mann. 

The photo was taken, we would 
say. in late afternoon, on Mill 
Square where a hastily organized 
civic parade ended. This was pa'rt 
of the joyous outburts by the 
citizens of Alexandria, and many 
of their neighbors, celebrating 
the end of World War Ooe, 
November 11, 1918. 

Herewith is the beginning of 
this historic celebration. (A brief 
repeat of what we wrote a few 
years ago.) The entire world, 
November 10, 1918, was anxious
ly awaiting Germany's surrender. 
That would mean cease fire , the 
end of the horrible war.· As the 
midnight hour of the 10th was 
approaching and peace terms 
were still under di:s.:u,-sion, here 
in Alexandria, as throughout the 
universe, there was an all-night 
vigil. 

The locale was in the news
paper-telegraph office of the 
legendary Frank Kerr. (It became 
the north part of the Cosy Inn .) 
Among those whiling away the 
wee hours, we speculate, would 
be Col. A.G. F. Macdonald who 
had returned from overseas fol 
lowing the breakup of his beloved 
154th Battalion and Sam (The 
Bailiff) Macdonell, George Sim
on, Clarence Ostrom, Donald 
John (Boots) McDonald, Max 
(Police Chief) Seger, George 
Duval and Frank Costello, tc 

Jeff Watson. Barry Avery and 
Glen MacDonald added singles. 
Dale Poirier replied with both the 
loser's goals. 

In Midget play. OPP took their 
first game 5-1 over Wereley's 
Esso. Darrin Hill paced the 
winners with three goals, and 
Paul Lapierre and Carlo Vani 
added singles. 

Jacques Dansereau replied for 
Wereley's. OPP went on to beat 
Impala Motel, 6-2, getting a hat 
trick from Carlo Vani. two goals 
from Daryll Horvath and one from 
Jim Danaher. 

Jody Jurchuk and Glenn Mc-

mention a few. plus of course a 
couple of square-shoulder guys 
by the name of Sandy MacDonald 
and Johnny Walker. 

At daybreak the group were 
alerted when Frank Kerr turned 
with pencil in hand to his " brass 
pounder." (Railway jargon for 
telegraph key.) Frank copied the 
code message. Germany sur
renders. The war is over. 

Alexandria residents were 
aroused by bells ringing in all 
three churches plus the fire hall 
bell pealing. They knew instantly 
this was the glad tidings that the 
war was over. Main Street, and 
especially Mill Square, became 
the centre of impromptu celebra
tions. This motivated the parade 
organization that began and 
ended on Mill Square. Thus the 
photo that was recently reproduc
ed by the News. A heritage photo 
recording for posterity a memor
able day in the history of 
Alexandria. 

Most likely the photographer 
was Glengarry's pioneer master 
of clicking the shutters with his 
head covered by that traditional 
black cloth, Duncan Donovan. He 
was obviously standing on the 
grist mill loading dock. The 
camera was facing across the 
square towards the old post office 
destroyed by fire a year later. The 
Commercial Hotel is to the left 
while part of the Grand Union 
(now the Alexandria) the far 
right. The centre backdrop hasn't 
changed, drug store (Ostrom's 
then), News office, Joe Huot's 
general store, also destroyed by 
fire. now .St. Denis newsstand. 

The big touring car , centre of 
photo. was one of the first of its 
kind in Glengarry. A luxury 
Willys-Knight. Owned and driven 
that day by Eddie John Angus 
-MacDonald. From the Seger 
family photo the additional oc
cupants of the car are identified, 
Clarence Ostrom, Col. A. G. F. 
Macdonald , nursing sisters, An
nie (Donald Roy) McDonald and 
Amy MacPhee. (Later Mrs. Alex 
Willie MacMillan). 

The second car was owned and 
driven by general merchant E. J . 
Dever. and one of his daughters. 
At immediate left front are pipers 
dressed in the 59th tartan. (Note 

Kay tallied for Impala. 
Impala then turned the tables 

and trounced OPP 6-2 with Allen 
Daigle, Marc Drouin, Pat McKay, 
Michael Richer. Jody Jurchuk 
and Glenn McKay chipping in 
with singles. 

Carlo Vani and Andre Bour
bonnais replied for OPP. 

Wereley's got into the win 
column by edging Impala Motel 
4-2. Joel Thibert scored twice and 
Pierre Collette and Jacques Dan
sereau once each for the winners 
while Glenn McKay and Marc 
Drouin tallied Impala's. 

the white spats.) The Militia had 
decreed that the 59th. that had 
succeeded the famed Glengarry 
Fencibles. become the 154th 
Counties Own Battalion after the 
outbreak of World War One. They 
would be commanded by Col. A. 
G. F. Macdonald . The grey 
mustached piper is the legendary 
Dunvegan blacksmith, Pipe
Major John Alex Stewart. Stand
ing with him are pipers Angus D. 
(Angus Katie) · McDonald and 
Jimmy McNaughton. The drum
mers were Paul Lauzon and Ed 
(Frere) Huot. 

Singled out among the firemen 
are: police and fire chief Max 
Seger, Angus Kelly, Xavier La
belle, Tom Kemp, Oscar Pigeon, 
Ulric Lalonde, Archie Gauthier 
and Donald Alex (Angus Katie) 
McDonald. 

On the immedi-ate right in the 
"cavalry" group is an unident
ified rider in uniform wearing a 
Glengarry bonnet that resembles 
the pre-war 59th "volunteers" 
who trained at two-week summer 
camps in either Petawawa or 
Barriefield. Kingston . 

Left background, Commercial 
Hotel was operated by the 
Meilleur family. No liquor bar, 
just rooms and restaurant. Their 
slogan. "Meals at all Hours." 
However this was not always 
practised. Hughie Donal "Bahn" 
MacDonald managed the horse 
barns and sheds at rear. 

Right background, Grand Un
ion Hotel operated by Jules 
Delage. Note the second floor 
verandah. That area represents 
part of Glengarry and Alexandria 
political history. From this perch, 
winning candidates received 
rousing receptions from their 
faithful supporters that filled Mill 
Square. My first recollection as a 
young boy. with my parents 
joining in the acclaim United 
Farmers candidate J . Wilfred 
Kennedy. the pride of Apple Hill, 
defeating Joe Chevrier, Comwall 
Liberal, and Tory Hervey, 1919. 
And some years later, Jim 
Sangster, Bainsville's native son, 
the only Ontario Liberal, I seem to 
recall. east of Toronto. 

ln the evening following the 
photo. a huge bonfire closed the 
celebrations. 
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Glens hope 
to even up 

Alexandria Jr .. B Glens hope to 
tie up their semi-final series with 
Metcalfe tonight when the two 
teams meet at 8:30 at the 
Glengarry Sports Palace. 

The Glens picked up a crucial 
win Sunday be defeating Metcalfe 
6-4 on the opposition's home ice. 

Metcalfe leads the best-out-of
seven series 3-2. 

Grant Crack sparked the Glens 
wi:th one goal and three assists. 
He is the leading playoff scorer in 
the division with 14 goals and 
eight assists. 

Andy McRae, Darrell Hay, Luc 
Sabourin, Kennedy MacDonald 
and Steve Durocher scored the 
other Glens goals. 

Lindsay Pasch scored two goals 
for the Jets. Scott Reed and 
Shane Patterson picked up sing
les. 

Winners of the Metcalfe
Alexandria series will meet Win
chester in the division finals. 

Winchester took their series 
against Morrisburg in four 
straight. 

Bantam Glens 
take to11rney 

Alexandria Bantam Glens cap
tured the A championship in the 
Alexandria hockey tournament 
Sundav. 

In game one, Alexandria de
feated Char-Lan 5-0 with Marc 
Menard earning the shut-out. 

Troy Matheson scored twice, 
once unassisted and once from 
Andrew McCormick and Steph
ane Gareau. 

Singles went to Michel Sabour
in from Andrew McCormick; Glen 
Campbell from Andrew Meth and 
Dominic St. Denis; and Andrew 
McCormick from Michel Sabourin 
and Michael Daniels. 

In game two. the Glens ham
mered Chesterville 8-0 with 
Pierre Cholette earning the shut
out. 

Michel S bourin scored twice 
with assists going to Daniel 
Sabourin. Troy Matheson and 
Andrew McCormick. 

Singles went to Andrew Meth 
from Dominic St. Denis and 
Andrew McCormick; Michael 
Daniels from Andrew Meth; Marc 
Theoret from Pierre Roman; 
Dominic St. Denis from Glen 
Campbell and Andrew Meth; 
Pierre Roman from Michel Sa
bourin; and Glen Campbell, un
assisted. 

In game 3. Alexandria edged 
South Stormont 2-1. 

Brent Donnelly opened the 
scoring for South Stormont on a 
pass from Danny Pidgeon. 

The Glens bounced back on 
goals by Michel Sabourin and 
Glen Campbell. 

Assists went to Andrew Mc
Cormick, Andrew Meth (2) and 
Dominic St. Denis. 

Marc Menard played an out
standing game for Alexandria and 
Pierre Roman won the most 
valuable player award for Alex
andria. 

In regular play March 4, the 
Glens downed Cornwall Brook
dale Mall 8-4 on a four-goal effort 
by Troy Matheson and a hat trick 
by Andrew McCormick. 

Michel Sabourin picked up the 
other Glens marker. 

Assists went to Michel Sabour
in. Andrew McCormick, Marc 
Theoret, Pierre Roman (2), Mich
ael Daniels and Marc Poliquin . 

Pierre Cholette and Marc Me
nard shared the netminding dut
ies. 

Cornwall marksmen were Scott 
Barnes from Marc Guevrement; 
Marc Guevrement, unassisted; 
Alf Tabram, unassisted and Jeff 
Fiddler from Scott Barnes. 

On March 6, the Glens drew a 
1-1 tie with Cornwall Brookdale 
Mall. Andrew Meth scored for 
Alexandria on a pass from Glen 
Campbell. 

Jeff Fiddler got the Cornwall 
marker from Scott Aikman and 
Marc Guevrement. 

Pierre Cholette was in the nets 
for Alexandria. 

On March 7. the Glens trounc
ed North Glen Stor 6-0, 

I 

Michel Sabourin scored a hat 
trick. Glen Campbell added a pair 
and Andrew Meth tallied a single. 

Assists went to Andrew Meth 
(2), Dominic St. Denis (3), Troy 
Matheson and Andrew McCorm
ick (2). 

Marc Menard earned the shut
out. 

Peewees lose 
championship 

by Claudette Francoeur 
Morrisburg Peewees were hail

ed as champions on Saturday, 
March 12, in Finch after defeat
ing the Alexandria Peewee Glens 
2-0 in the "A" final. 

Cornwall B swept the consola
tion title with a 3-1 win over 
Cornwall Minor. This tournament 
held in Finch Community Centre 
was organized by North Glen Stor 
team. 

In their first game of the 
preliminary round, the local Bank 
of Montreal players posted a 4-2 
win over North Glen Stor. Michel 
Duval tallied twice while Mike 
Sauve and Alex Maclaren com
pleted the Glens summary. Help
ers ca me off the sticks of Andrew 
Sauve, Eric Cholette, Marc Sauve 
and Alain Larocque. Stephane 
Nadeau guarded the pipes for 
Alexandria. Todd Blaine scored 
both goals for NGS. 

Stephane Nadeau had a strong 
performance in net for Alexandria 
in the "A" semi-final and the 
Glens disposed of South Stormont 
by a 5-2 count. 

Marc Sauve shone with a hat 
trick. Alex Maclaren scored once 
and set up one other while Mike 
Sauve totalled up the scoring. 
Assists were credited to Andrew 
Sauve. Michel Lefebvre and Luc 
Francoeur. Derek Haley and Mike 
Fetterly responded for South 
Stor. 

The "A" final was the most 
exciting between Morrisburg and 
Alexandria and after two periods 
of close play, the score was still 
0-0. 

Morrisburg managed to light 
the red light twice within the last 
10 minutes of the final frame and 
walked away with a 2-0 shu out. 

Although the local boys failed 
in their third game of the day, 
they came back home proud of 
their excellent performance es
pecially throughout the " A" 
final. 

Mike Sauve was chosen the 
MVP for Alexandria while the 
goalie carried away the trophy for 
Morrisburg. 

EXBIBfflON 
In an exhitition game Friday, 

March 11. in Hawkesbury Sports 
Complex , the Peewee Glens 
thrashed the South Nation Chiefs 
Peewee Minor AA by an incred
ible score of 10-0. Marc Sauve 
sparked the attack with three 
goals and three assists. Alex 
Maclaren banged in a hat trick 
and two helpers. Michel · Duval 
scored once and added two assists 
while Paul Vincent picked up one 
marker and assisted on another. 
Mike Sauve and Alain Rocho~ 
completed the marathon. 

Other scoring support came 
from Michel Lefebvre with two 
and Eric Cholette one. Stephane 
Landriault and Stephane Nadeau 
shared the shutout. 

UPCOMING TOURNAMENT 
T11e Bank of Montreal Peewee 

Glens will participate in Hawkes
bury tournament next weekend. 
Thei. first game is scheduled for 
2:30 p.m. Saturday, March 19, 
against Cornwall Minor in the 
Sports Comple . 

r .. 
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Ch8r-Lan Minor Hockey League teams see_ playoff action 
All teams saw action as the 

players geared up for the week's 
Char-Lan Minor Hockey playoffs. 

In the A.tom division , Denis St. 
Jean paced Railcar Canada with 
three goals to defeat D&R Rose 
3.1. 

. 
Shane Boucher scored for Rose . 

Munro Fertilizer crushed Rozon 
Insurance 6-2 led by Jeffrey 
Lapierre and Richard Campeau 
with two goals apiece. 

John Piche and Alex Ingola 
added singles. Chris Lauzon and 

James Cooper replied for l<oz
on's. 

Munro Fertilizer then dumped 
D&R Rose 7-2, with Hamish 
MacDonell and Richard Campeau 
notching two apiece. and Alex 
Ingola, Jeffrey Lapierre, and Lee 

Avery with singles. 
Bobby Richer and Shane Bou

cher answered for Rose's. Railcar 
Canada edged Rozon 's 3-2 with a 
goal apiece from Denis St. Jean, 
Allan Fontaine and Rodger Blan
chet. 

Chretien Backhoe defeated 
Grant Bros. 4-2 with Trevor 
Bowles notching two goals, and 
Timmy Emburg and Todd La
pierre one each. Chris McPhail 
and James MacDonald scored for 
Grant's. 

Horvath's two goals. 
Ron Lapointe scored for We r

eley's. Wereley's lost again by 
one goal, losing out to Impala 
Motel 4-3. Glenn McKay notched 
two and Michael Richer and Marc 

Drouin one apiece for Impala, 
while Jacques Dansereau with a 
pair and Kevin Cholette one goal, 
replied for the losers. 

Wereley's came up with a 5-4 
win over OPP on the strength of 

Daryll Horvath 's hat trick. Carlo 
Vani and Darrin Hill added 
singles. Jacques Dansereau scor
ed twic~ and Dave Russell and ' 
Ron Bedard once each for the 
losers . 

Char-Lan Midgets 
advance to finals 

James Cooper and Martin 
Alguire scored for the losers . 

In the Peewee division, Rob 
McIntosh China overpowered 
Chretien Backhoe 7-3 with Jason 
Fraser scoring twice, and Ken 
Hall. Ed Swerdfeger. Wesley 
Jurchuk. Gareth Pye and Steve 
Kreische once each. 

ln the Bantam division, Gauth
ier's Gree nhouse took all three 
games. edging Dan's Place 5-4, 
paced by Bryan Ward's three 
goals. Je ff Cassidy and Dale 
Poirier each scored once. 

Replying for Dan's were David 
Michaud. Jeff Watson. Chris 
Watson and Peter Kannon. Gau
thie r's then shaded Lancaster 
Pizzeria 3-2 led by Ray Martel 
with two goals and Bryan Ward 
with one. 

Char-Lan "Country Beef & 
Pork" Midget Travelling team 
advanced to the finals of the 
Lower St. Lawrence Hockey Lea
gue Midget playoffs, coasting to 
two easy victories over South 
Stormont in the b est of three 
semi-finals . 

They drubbed South Stormont 

g. 1 in the opener. paced by Jean 
Luc Menard with three goals. 
Blak.e Hambleton added two 
more. and Alain Menard . Danny 

Flaro . Roddie McKenzie and 
Denis Lapierre notched singles. 

They crushed South Stormont 

12-2 in the second game. with 

J ean Luc Menard scoring four 
times. and Flaro. McKenzie, 

David Dupuis and Hambleton 
each tallying two goals. 

Char-Lan now awaits the win• 
ner of the Alexandria series to 

learn who the opponents will be in 
the final. 

Todd Lapierre. Bobby Bowles , 
and Jay Emburg replied for the 
losers. 

.Grant Bros. got by Claude 
Nunney 4-2 as Chris McPhail 
notched two goals. and Marc 
Labelle and James MacDonald 
had singles. 

Archie Willard and Tyson 
Roffey replied for the losers. 

ONTARIO GLASS 
LINED STORAGE LTD. 

- CANADIAN OWNED AND OPERATED -

News Cup meeting called 
Scott Fourney and Roddie 

lngola scored for Nunney's. Nun
ney's then tied Rob McIntosh 
China 4-4 on the strength of 
Roddie lngola 's three goals and 
Eric Landry's single. 

Jason Currier with two goals 
and Jason Fraser and Ken Hall 
tallied for McIntosh's. 

Gauthier's just squeezed by 
Dan's Place in the final game 2-1 
getting goals fro m Andrew Page 
an d Bryan Ward . Peter Kannon 
scored Dan 's only goal. 

The Midget division's games 
were all close ones, as Wereley's 
Esso tied Impala Motel 1-J. 
Jacques Dansereau and Scott 
Maloney exchanged goals. OPP 
edged Wereley's 2-1 on Daryll 

We invite you to come see our display at the 

OTAWA FARM SHOW An organizational meeting for 

The Glengarry News Cup hockey 

tournament will be held in 

Alexandria, Sunday, March 20, in 

the board room of the Glengarry 
Sports Palace. 

Anybody planning to enter the 
tournament should attend the 
meeting, Alexandria Recreation 

Director Mike Depratto says. 

Date of the tourney and other 

organization details are to be 

worked out. 
DEPENDABILITY and QUALITY WORKMANSHIP 

Area lawyer gets presidency Country Beef & Pork Shop 
113 Main St., Lancaster Tel. 347-2288 

,, 

Our construction crew comprises almost 50 years experience in building 
and erecting glass fused-to-steel structures. 

ire • 
Alexandria lawyer Jean Marc 

Lefebvre was appointed president 
of the Prescott and Russell Law 
Association at its annual dinner 

meeting held at Chateau Monte
bello, Montebello, Que. 

The other officers of the 
association in the coming year 

TELEPHONE (613) 525-4007 

Miron Electronic Service 
T. J'. 's - Radios · Stereos • Mkro""111e Olleu 

206 Main St. South 
Alexandria, Ont. 

(Bob Leroux Furniture> 3-5-7-9-tf PIERRE MIRON 

Glengarry Sports Palace 

PROGRAM 
Wednesday, March 16 

3:15-5:10 p.m. Free skating 
8:30 p.m. Jr. 8 Glens, 6th 

game of semi-finals if 
necessary 

Thursday, March 17 
10-11:20 a.m. Mothers and 

tots 
1-2 p.m. Mothers and tots 

Sunday, March 20 
7 p.m. Public skating 

Wednesday, March 23 
3:15-5:10 p.m. Free skating 

Prime Ice Time 
Available 

Tel. 525-3600 

NO FINANCE . 
CHARGES,NO 

PRINCIPAL 
PAYMENTS 

'TIL JAN. 2/84 

New Units Use Data 

5610 through 
TW-30 ... .. ..... Jan. 2/84 

All Industrial units 
& whsel loaders . Jan. 2/84 

Serles 1000 
through 4610 . 12.75%APR 

USED UNITS* USE DATE 

All used units and 
wheel loaders .. Sept. 1/83 

•Requires dealer participation at 2% 
of amount financed . 

DEALER CASH 
SETTLEMENT 
ALLOWANCES 

Agricultural 
Unit Allowance 

per unit 
Ford Tractors 
Series 1000 ...... CS 280* 
3-cylinder ........ CS1,200* 
with APR 12314 . . . CS 600 

4-cylinder 
All-purpose . . . . . CS2,000* 
Flat deck ..... ... CS3, 700* 

&-cylinder . . . . . . . . CS5,000* 
FWD Bonus . . . . . C$ 600 

TROTTIER 14'4•1 
FARM EQUIPMENT LTD. -
Hwy. 43 Alexandria Tel. 525-3120 I 

will be Robert Tolhurst, 
secretary-treasurer, and Keith 
Wilkins, director and librarian. 

The new president is a member 
of several law associations includ
ing the SD&G Law Association. 

Give us a call today or just visit us for up-to-date prices in 
our Beef, Pork, Veal or Lamb. We handle four different 
categories of beef - one to suit every budget. A selection of 
your purchases can usually be done from our cooler. 
N.B. Your presence for the cutting and wrapping of your meat can easily be 

arranged by appointment-
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TEL. (OFFICE) 613•928•2162 
AREA REP. Ralp·h Hall 

TEL. 613-382•7941 

Auditor's Report TownShip of Kenyon 
To the members of council, inhabitants and ratepayers of the Corporation 

of the Township of Kenyon: 
We have examined the consolidated balance sheet of the Corporation of the 

Township of Kenyon as at 31 December 1982 and the consolidated statements 
of revenue and expendi1ure, capital operations and reserve and reserve funds 
continuity and analysis of year-end position for the year then ended. Our ex
amination was made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, 
and accordingly included such 1es1s and other procedures as we consid7red 
necessary in the circumstances. 

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly the 
financial position of the Corporation of the Township of Kenyon as at 31 
December 1982 and the results of its operations for th.: year then ended in ac
cordance with generally accepted accounting principles for Ontario 
municipalities applied on a ba6i< consistent with that of the preceding year. 

Renfrew, Ontario 
27 January 1983 

MacKillican & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

License Number 567 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE 
for the year ended December 31, 1982 

(Note I (a}) 

ACCUMULATED NET REVENUE 
(DEFICIT) at the beginning 
of the year ... .. ....... ... . . .. . . 

EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS 
Municipal expenditures 
General government .. ....... . 
Protection to persons and property. 
Transportation services ...... .. . 
Environmental services . ........ . 
Health services ............. . :· . . 
Social and family services ....... . 
Recreation and cultural services .. 
Planning and development .. . ... . 
O\her ........................ . 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 

TRANSFERS 
Transfers to region or county 
Transfers to school boards ...... . 

TOT AL TRANSFERS .... . . . .... . 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 
AND TRANSFERS . , ... ....... . 

REVENUE BY PURPOSE 
Municipal purposes 
Taxation . .. .... . .... ......... . 
Payments in lieu of taxes .... . . . . 
Ontario grants ................ . 
Other grants .................. . 
Fees and service charges . ....... . 
Other ....... , .... ...... .. . . .. . 

REVENUE TO PAY FOR 
MUNICIPAL PURPOSES ...... . 

REGION OR COUNTY REQUISITION 
Taxation .. ........... .... .... . 
Payments in lieu of taxes .. ... .. . 
Ontario grants ........ . ....... . 
Other .. ....... .. . ..•..•.. , ... . 

REVENUE TO PAY THE REGION 
OR COUNTY REQUISITION .... 

SCHOOL BOARD REQUISITION 
Taxation ... . . ... ... ... ....... . 
Payments in lieu of taxes ....... . 
Other .... .. ........... , .. , ... . 

REVENUE TO PAY THE SCHOOL 
BOARD REQUISITION ....... . 

TOTAL REVENUE ....... . .... .. 

A CCU MULA TED NET REVENUE 
(DEFICIT) at the end of the year .. 

1982 
Budget 

$ 

23,504 

110,500 
53,656 

378,066 
8,000 
3,940 

11,600 
154,664 
29,000 

749,426 

85,419 
390,474 

475,893 

1982 
Actual 

s 

23,504 

185,713 
47,713 

317,127 
7,710 
3,540 

13.043 
128,39t 

703 ,163 

85,388 
390,324 

475,712 

1,225,319 1,178,875 

233 ,307 
4,400 

347,865 

159,214 
39.000 

783,786 

84,631 
788 

85,4 t 9 

390,474 

205,649 
3,211 

308,955 

I 10,262 
46,580 

674,657 

84,631 
788 

4,430 

89,849 

390,474 

390,474 390,474 

1,259,679 1,154,980 

57,864 (391) 

1981 
Actual 

$ 

66,152 

107,771 
50,283 

383,669 
7,225 
3,190 

9,647 
82,307 

644,092 

66,385 
347,140 

413,525 

1,057,617 

191,949 
3,455 

305,649 

72,647 
32,563 

606,263 

60,643 
930 

61,573 . 

347,133 

347,133 

t ,014,969 

23,504 

Analysed as follows: 
General revenue ..... .. . ....... . 
Region or county ........ .•.. ... . 
School boards ................ . 
Special charges ........... .... . . 
Special areas ...........•....... 
Local boards ......... ....•. . .. 
Muncipal en1erprises .... .. . . ... . 

32,220 
19 
8 

12,800 
1,006 

t 1,811 

57,864 

(36,724) 
4,480 

158 
16,778 
1,392 

13,525 

(391) 

STATEMENT OF CAPITAL OPERATIONS 
for the year ended December 31, 1982 

(Note I (b) ) 

UNFINANCED CAPITAL OUTLAY 
(UNEXPENDED CAPITAL FINANCING) 
at the beginning of the year .. ... . ..... . .. . .. . 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
General governmenL ........ , .. . ..... .... . 

1982 
Actual 

$ 

169,609 

Protection to persons and property . . . . . . . . . . 4,815 
Transportation services ... , .. . .. . ..... , . . . . 2,231 
Enrivonmental services .. . ................ . 
Health services . , ........................ . 
Social and family services ... .............. . 
Recreation and cultural services . . .. ... . ... , . 
Planning and development ................ . 
Other ...... , .. . .. , .. , .. , .... . . ... .. , ... . 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE .... , ... . .. ...... .. 

CAPITAL FINANCING 
Contributions from the revenue fund 
Contributions from reserves 

and reserve funds .. ..... . ....... . ...... . 
Long term liabilities incurred . ..... . ....... . 
Ontario grants ...... , .. .. . . .... .' . . . , .. , .. 
Other ..... , .. . ...... ..... .. . . ...... .. . , . 

TOTAL CAPITAL FINANCING ... . ... .. .. . 

UNFINANCED CAPITAL OUTLAY 
(UNEXPENDED CAPITAL FINANCING) 
at the end of the year ...................... . 

ASSETS (Note I (c) ) 

CURRENT ASSETS 

BALANCE SHEET 
as at December 31, 1982 

Cash ............. . .. .. . . ... . , ......... . 
Taxes receivable ......... . ....... .. . .... . . 
Accounts receivable ..... . . ... ... . .. ...... . 
Other current assets ........... , . . , . .... .. . 

CAPITAL OUTLAY TO BE RECOVERED 
IN FUTURE YEARS (Note 2) ......... . .... . 

OTHER LONG TERM ASSETS ........... , .. 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Temporary loans ............... . .. . ..... . 
Account payable and accrued liabilities ... . . . 
Other current liabilities ... . , .. . . ... . .... .. , 

NET LONG TERM LIABILITIES ... . . , .. . . . . 
RESERVES AND RESERVE FUNDS ........ . 
ACCUMULATED NET REVENUE 
(DEFICIT) and UNAPPLIED 
CAPITAL RECEIPTS (Note 3) ............ . 

239,88 t 

246,927 

14,280 

103,000 
102,614 
28,056 

247,950 

168,586 

1982 
Actual 

$ 

36,278 
225,843 
152,68 1 

414,802 

775,727 
11 ,439 

1,201,968 

1982 
Actual 

$ 

296,974 
174,130 

471,104 

590,336 
124,114 

16,414 

1,201,968 

(2,140) 
19 
8 

12,800 
1,006 

11,811 

23,504 

1981 
Actual 

s 

79,999 

t ,070 
9,954 

60,870 

1,299 
288,610 

361,803 

26,162 

199,000 
47,031 

272,193 

169,609 

· -111s1 
.,· A'6ual 

$ 

32,548 
155,466 
157,230 

8,193 

353,437 

742,650 
15,514 

1,111,60t 

1981 
Actua~ 

$ 

357,971 
56,947 

187 

415,105 

556,236 
99,951 

40,309 

1,1 I 1,60 1 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

I. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Consolidated Statement of Revenue and Expenditure 

This statement reflects the re;enues and expenditures of the revenue 
_fund and the following boards; 

Police Village of Apple Hill 
Township of Kenyon Recreation Committee 

(b) Consolidated Statement of Capital Operations 

This statement reflects the capital expenditure of the municipality to 
be recovered from the general municipal revenue. 

(c) Consolidated Balance Sheet 

This statement reflects the assets and liabilities of the revenue fund, 
the capital fund, reserve funds and local boards as described in note 
I (a). 

(d) Fixed Assets 

The historical cost and accumulated depreciation of fixed assets is 
not reported for municipal purposes. Instead, the "Capital outlay 
to be recovered in future years" which is the aggregate fund 
transferred to other organizations, and the ccst of capital projects 
not yet permanently financed is reported on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet. 

(e) Municipal enterprises 

Municipal enterprises are those activities whose costs are substan
tially recovered from service charges on the users. The enterprise of 
this municipality whose revenues and expenditures have not been 
consolidated in these financial statements is: 

Apple Hill Hydro 

(I) Charges for net long term liabilities 

Debt retirement costs including principal and interest are charged 
against current revenues in the, periods in which they are paid. In
terest charges are not accrued for the periods from the dates of the 
latest interest payments to the end of the financial year. 

CAPITAL OUTLAY TO BE RECOVERED IN FUTURE YEARS 

(a) Some capital outlay to be recovered in future years does not repre
sent a burden on general municipal revenues, as it is to be 
recovered in future years from other sources: 

1982 
$ 

Special charges on benefitting landowners ..... 769, 727 

1981 
$ 

733,650 

(b) Capital outlays, including fixed assets and the transfers of capital 
funds in the amount of $14,280, which have been financed from 
general municipal revenues of the current year, are reported on the 
Consolidated Statement of Revenue and Expenditure. 

ACCUMULATED NET REVENUE (DEFICIT) at the end of the year 

The balance in the revenue fund at the year end is available to reduce 
(to be added to) the levies of the ~allowing classes of ratepayers: 

1982 
$ 

General ratepayers . ...................... (36,724) 
Police Village of Apple Hill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I ,392 
School board ratepayers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I 58 
County ratepayers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,480 

. (30,694) 

CHARGES FOR NET LONG TERM LIABILITIES 

1981 
$ 

(2,140) 
1,006 

8 
19 

(1,107) 

Total charges for the year for long term liabilities were as follows: 

1982 1981 
$ $ 

Principal . .. .......... ....... ....... .... .. 69,000 53,530 
Interest . , . . ... . ... ............ .. ...... ... 38,775 26,189 

107,775 79,719 

The total charges shown above were paid from general municipal 
revenues of the municipality and are included in expenditure on the 
Consolidated Statement of Revenue and Expenditure classified under the 
appropriate functional headings . 

11 ·1C 

• 

" 
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Obituary notices 
C.GERALDSANGSTER 

A well known resident of 
Bainsville, C. Gerald Sangster 
died suddenly in hospital in 
Cornwall on Sunday, March 6, at 
the age of 81. 

,.I A farmer throughout his life
(?' time, Mr. Sangster had been a 

counci11or and reeve of Lancaster 
Township for many years and had 
served on various committees of 
the United Counties. f Predeceased by his wife, Isabel 
Croll, he leaves to mourn his loss 
two sons. James and Charles of 
Bainsville and two daughters: 
Margaret Stone of Stittsville and 
Carolyn Black of Nepean. 

He leaves one brother, Percy of 
Cornwall, five granddaughters 
and five grandsons. 

He was also predeceased by 
one son. George. a brother Herb 
and sisters. Eva and Lois. 

The funeral was held in St. 
Andrew's United Ch urch, Second 

Concession, Lancaster. on Wed
nesday, March 9 at 2 p.m. 
Reverend David Shepherd of
ficiated at the service. 

Pallbearers were: Melvin Gard
ner. Ron McRae. Jim Robertson, 
William Condie. Stephen Sang
ster and Robert Sangster. 

GEORGINA SNYDER BELAIR 
Alexandria residents, relatives 

and friends learned with regret of 
the passing at the Fleury Hos
pital, Montreal, on Sunday, 
March 13. of Mrs. David Moses 
Belair . at the age of 73 years. 

She was the former Georgina 
Snyder, and was born in Alexand
ria on July 29, 1909, a daughter of 
the late Alexander Snyder and his 
wife. the former Florence Des
jardins. She married David Moses 
Belair of Alexandria. and the 
family resided here the greater 
part of her life. 

She was a very kind and loving 
wife, mother, grandmother, sister 

1/2 
Price 

Glengarry 
Flowers & Gifts 

43 Main St. S. 
Alexandria 

Tel. 525-1660 

a'!ld aunt. She was a faithful 
parishioner of St . Fin nan's Parish 
for manv vears. She possessed 
many ste~ling qualities which 
endeared her to a large circle of 
old friends and neighbors. 

Following the death of her 
husband she went to reside with . 
her familv in Montreal some six 
years ago·. She has been in failing 
health for some time. 

Left to mourn her passing are 
her four daughters-Mrs. Cam
ille Myre (Shirley) of Montreal , 
with whom she resided; Mrs. 
Edgar Phillip-s (Mildred) of Ham
ilton: Miss Barbara Belair of 
Montreal. and Mrs. John Roger
son (Ruth) of Saskatoon, Sask.; 
one brother, Clifford Snyder of St. 
Hubert, Que.; and two sisters, 
Mrs. Ovila Rochon (Pauline) of 
Alexandria, and Mrs. Florence 
Moore of Montreal. She also 
leaves 24 grandchildren and a 
number of great grandchildren . 

She was predeceased by her 
parents. her husband David, her 
sisters. Annie and Margaret and 
he r brother. Allan and Alexander 
Jr. 

The largely attended funeral 
was held from the Morris Funeral 
Home. Alexandria, on Tuesday, 
March 15 at 10 a.m . Rt. Rev. 
Msgr. D . B . McDougald, PH, 
rector of the cathedral was the 
celebrant. The remains were 
placed in the parish vault to await 
spring burial in the family plot at 
St. Fin nan's Cemetery. 

The pallbearers were grand-

CORNWALL 

sons: Marc an<l William Aubin, 
nephews Robert and Richard· 
Rochon. Gilles Brunet and Laur
ier Theoret. 

Relatives and friends attended 
from Montreal, Cornwall, Ot
tawa. Hamilton, St. Hubert, 
Saskatoon and area points. 

GORDON ASCAH 
Well-known in the Glen Nevis 

area where he often visited along 
with his wife. the former Rita 
McKav . Gordon Ascah died in 
Etobicoke General Hospital on 
Wednesday, March 9. He had 
been in failing health for some 
time. 

Born 65 years ago in Gaspe, he 
was 1he son of the late James 
Ascah. Following their marriage 
the couple resided in Montreal 
until they moved to Rexdale 10 
years ag~ where they had lived 
since that time. 

In addition to his wife and 
mother he is survived by two 
daughters: Hester, Mrs. Brian 
Reid o( Airdrie, Afta. and Jenni
fer. Mrs. Ian Goodfellow of 
Weston. 

He also leaves three sisters, 
Cynthia, Irene and Marjorie of St. 
John. 

The funeral was held on 
Saturday in the chapel of teh 
Newedi uk Funeral Home at 10:30 
a.m. Cremation followed. 

MORRISBURG 

BLAKELY, CRAIG, VISCOUNT & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNT ANTS 

1343 Rosemount Ave. 
P.O. Box 789 
Cornwal l, Ontario 
K6H 5S7 
613-932-3610 

Fifth Street 
P.O. Box 27 
Morrisburg, Ontario 
KOC 1XO 
613-543-2981 49-tf 
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Learned about Shopping and Cooking 
Picnic Grove Women's Insti

tute members were entertained 
by their 4-H Oub girls " The 
Melting Pot" at a dinner of 
international foods. Members and 
mothers sat down to a bountiful 
variety of international dishes, 
soups. meats, salads, eggs, cas
seroles. cheeses and various 
desserts, all made and served by 
the girls and their leaders, Isobel 
McCuaig, Martha Bowman and 
Elizabeth Ferguson. 

After a short variety program 
by the girls. Jan is Pasco, club 
president. introduced Mrs'. Bales 
from Cornwall, a graduate from 
Acadia University with a Bachelor 
of Science, Food and Nutrition 
degree as guest speaker. Mrs. 
Bates gave us all an informative 
talk 06 food-how to cook and 
shop economically; small ap
pliances are generally more econ
omical than cooking in the oven 
unless you are able to cook more 
than one thing in the oven at a 
time: people buy more if they 
shop when they are hungry; 
higher priced articles are placed 
on the shelves at eye level. Scan 
the top and lower shelves too. 
Lower grades are just as nutri
tious as top grades and cost less. 
Look for unit pricing for compari
son shopping. Using skim milk 
powder is a great way to save. 
You will find it has improved 
greatly in quality since it first 
came out. Use a meat thermo
meter. Over-cook your meat and 
you have less lo eat. Fruit drinks 
are mostly water and sugar, buy 
fruit juice instead. A self-cleaning 
oven is more economical to use as 
it has most insulation so takes 
less energy to heat. 

Elizabeth Ferguson demon-

strated the making of baklava, 
using phyllo pastry. 

Members discussed making a 
quill for Williamstown Bicenten
nial in 1984 . 

Audrey Pasco attended the 
" Rural Seminar for Vital People" 
held in Cornwall. The main theme 
of the seminar was "Evaluate 
what you want from your organ
ization's meetings." 

Members brought in knitted 
squares to be sent to Zambia to be 
made into baby blankets. As this 
is a never.ending need more 

squares will be required. 
Annabelle MacNaughton re

ported on the district executive 
meeting-plans were finalized for 
the d istrict annual to be hosted by 
the McCrimmon Institute and 
held at Kirk Hill United Church 
on May 11. Registration $1 and 
dinner $6. 

Muriel Maclachlan and Ella · 
Smith are planning to attend the 
international ACWW meeting 
held in June in Vancouver. 

Elizabeth Chatfield , in inter
national costume, read an excerpt 

from a letter of a relative of hers 
describing Australia's recent fi re 
and what the people of that 
country were enduring . 

A committee of three , Anna 
Mae Wightman , Carol Ann Breu
er and Annabelle MacNaughton, 
was named to look after the 
MacArthur Trophy entry for 
Williamstown Fair in August. 

The meeting closed with a 
reminder from Elizabeth Ferg
uson for all members with reports 
to have them ready for the annual 
meeting in April. 

Working with you in Alexandria 
and area to get your 
financial life in shape 

• Protection for mortgage business, family income or estate 
• Savings for children's education or retirement income 
• Employee benefits 

PAUL 
ROY 

525-3537 

CALL US 

DIANE 
LEFEBVRE-BRUNET 

527-3044 

NORMAN 
BANKLEY 
874-2427 

Get your life in shape. 

ALEXANDRIA LIONS 500 CLUB 
Drawfor3 

Cars 
FRIDAY, MARCH 18 

GLENGARRY SPORTS PALACE, ALEXANDRIA 
Ticket holders admitted free with escort. Maximum hall capacity 440 persons 

001 Michel and Cathy Depratto 
002 Dr. A. Ceurrier 
003 Carmen MacMillan 
004 , J ean-Guy Levert 
oos' Guy Lecompte 
00& Aurel Chenier 
007 Laurent Poirier 
008 Bob Leroux 
009 Jerry Seguin 
1 to Gaetan Landriault 
011 Lynn.e Depratto 
012 Rene Valade 
013 Johane Lafrance plus 4 
014 A. and M . Lefebvre 
015 Louise Hair Stylist 
016 Giroux Sports Inc. 
017 Marc Seguin and Sheila 

Hopkins 
018 Alan Quesnel 
019 Bruno Massie 
020 Adrien Menard 
021 Dick's Place 
022 Robert P . Harpur 
023 Bruno Lemieux 
024 Rupert £pp 
025 Andre Joanette 
026 Paul Martin 
027 .J. L. and Margaret Henry 
028 B. and J . and J. Graham 
029 Aline Gareau and Claude 

Hebert 
030 Maurice Ouimet 
031 Group of 5 #1 
032 Marcel Lanthier 
033 Group of 5 #2 
034 J. P. Claude 
035 Laurier Deguire 
036 Rita Latre ille 
037 Chris McDonell 
038 Stanley Fraser 
m9 Richard Hamelin 
040 Ra_y McDonald 
041 John Clingen 
042 Dorothy McDonald 
043 C. Cam~ron 
044 W. MacDonald 
045 D . A. MacPhee 
046 Lloyd McCrimmon 
047 E. McCormick 
048 M. P. Macdonell 
049 N. L. MacDonald 
050 L. Worrell 
051 Marc's Canteen 

(Leblanc) 
052 J ean Bourbonnais 
053 L. and A. Ladouce ur 
054 Wilfred Michaud 
055 Susan Duval 
056 Luden Theoret 
057 Ronald Valjde 
058 Gerald Flaro 
059 Marleen Laro<:que . 
060 Yvan Le blanc 
061 Bernard Cardinal 
062 John J . Macl eod 
063 Robert Zimmerli 
064 Muriel Scott 

065 R. Scott/D. Munro plus 4 
066 S. B. Mann 
067 Waller Blaney 
068 Diane Brunet 
069 I. Arms1rong 
070 R. Scott plus 6 
071 Emile Hurtubise 
072 Roger Menard 
07:! Ravmond Lefebvre 

074 J. R. MacDonell 
075 Jane Wright 
076 Bill Metcalfe 
077 Vera MacEwen 
078 Rnval Gareau 
079 Anne Loweryson 
080 James D. Graham 
081 Mel Rov and Lamarche 
082 C. Rov 
08:l Colleen Levesque 

nlus 4 

084 Howard Currier plus 
085 R. and G. Blais 
086 Jnhn Archie Maclennan 
087 G. MacDonald plus 3 
088 H. and K . Macleod 
08Q .Jernme Poirier 
OQO Annie Macleod 

091 Sved Fahim Ahmed 
092 Shamim Ahmed Sultan 
094 Dr. D. K . T. Che ung 
095 Frank McLeiste r 
096 Joseph St. Pierre 
097 Jenny Su ltan 
098 Mrs ,' Parveen Zia 
099 Pauline Leroux 
I 00 Dean Sultan 

101 Eileen Barbara 
102 Wiff Assaly 
10:l Frank Siversky/Ray La-

liberte 
104 Frank McAllister plus 3 
105 Linda Lecuyer plus 3 
106 Donnie McLeod 
107 Aurel Lajoie 
108 Karl Te lschow 
109 Jeannie Cameron 
110 G. MacMillan 
111 
112 R. Beauclair 
113 
114 0 . Beaucaire 
115 Elizabeth Barton 
116 Shirley Chabot 
11 7 Marc· Seguin and Sheila 

Hopkins 
11 8 J . Menard and M . Nadeau 
119 L. Beauclair 
I 20 F. Beauclair 
121 Roger Roy 
122 Dnug Baxter 
12:l Herman Parsons 
124 Armand Chenier 

125 W. R. MacEwen 
126 Ron and Allan Flam 
127 Carol Baxter 

12R Dn-iwt Boiwenue 
12Q Huhert Hav 
1:10 Kave Hav 
1:ll Dr . .J. C. Nadeau 
1.12 Rnn :ind Gu\' Chnlette 
1:l:l Arleen Adams 
1.14 R<>sahclle Menard 
1.15 C'a1herine McRae 
116 Ann Williamson 
J 17 Nit"h Trudel 
11R D . D. MacPherson 
J 1Q S1v1·0 Det"n 
140 Ri,·hn rcl C'nrmier 

141 Eel gnr L:ijnie 
142 Rnh Men:ird 
14:l Maurice Desau1cls 
144 Rnhert Lajoie 
145 Yvan Desaut els 
146 Edgar LaiPie 
147 Catherine Lernux 
148 Dnri~ I.au7nn 
149 G. and .r. Ken nedv 
ISO ,1;,anne Wood · 

151 A. B. Watt s 
152 RnnH''n Hurtubise 
IS.1 C'liffnrd and Yve t1 e Wylie 
154 I . Vaillancnurt 
155 Richard Vaillancour1 
156 1 en Seguin 
157 Catherine Love 
158 Yve t1 e and Judy Wylie 
!SQ Rarn1ond Lega ult 
160 Andre Seguin 

16 I Pierre Miron 
162 Ln11is W. Brav 
16.1 Marce l Menard 
1M .Jame~ A. Hambleton 
165 Ra e Spnoner 
166 M . W. Landriault 
167 Vivian DaPrato 
168 Linda Burns 
16Q V. McKinnon and Peggy 

Rmne1 
170 Dougla~ Turton 

171 David Harold Baldwin 
172 Serge Bnurdea u 
17:l Hele na Wheeler 
174 Gisele Foster 
175 I ucct tc Bnurdeau 
176 Arthur Lalnnde 
177 .Jcannet1c Charbonneau 
17R Linnel Leroux 
17Q .Jnanne Laflamme/Linda 

Ogilvie 
180 L\'man Howes 

I 8 1 Michel Patenaude 
1R2 Pn1ricia McRae plus 2 
1 R:l Richnrd Vaillancourt 
184 
18.'i 
186 Den is Rov / Henrv Ladouceur 
I 87 McEwen ·Fuels · 
IR8 
I RQ R"111uald and Beverly La 

vigne 

tC)O i\lli~1 er ancl Eil een Campbell 
!QI Ri r h:ircl Sah11urin 
1Q2 lh11 iel Thc,,rct plus I 
I C)l I\ . a ncl C'. Ladnuceur 
1Q4 Tk11\'se Thc11rct 
1 Qc; Richard Quesnel 
tC)(, Gil\· .incl Erina I al<>ncle 
I Q7 G<• r111 ;1i11 Ramsav 
!C)R C . F . C. E. M. 
1 QQ l i,(' R,.,, ,11 
100 Phil inn(' Men:i rcl 

201 .l(':tn Yves Menard 
202 ln11a C'11rmicr/ Gabriellc 

Ouimet 
20.1 Fcrn Seguin 
204 D.ive . Karen. Laurie. Kim 
20.'i Rcal Gauthier 
206 Aclc le Cnrmier 
207 Rut 11 Deer/ Kitt_v Ewaschuk 
208 Richard Cormier 
209 Coffee Ga::i; 
210 Ernie Gallant 

211 Andy Campeau 
212 Elaine Beriault / Ke vin Barr 
213 Paul Beriault 
214 Allen Mccuaig 
215 Adrien a nd Bea Ladouceur 
216 Joan Vachon 
217 Jocelyne Poirier 
218 Pierre Be riault/Lise Dubois 
219 C . Dumouchel / M . Lourdes 
220 John Hunter 

22 1 Don Mahon 
222 Phil Kaufmann 
223 A . .T. McDona ld 
224 Germain Diotte 
225 Adelard Sauve 
226 Diana Lalonde/ Carmelle 

Bussiere 
227 Svlvia Sangster 
228 R. U. Lalonde/James 

Rnhinson 
22Q Diana Lalonde 
210 Dr . .J . T. Baird 
21 1 I aura L:ipierre/ Bruce 

St arka us kis 
2:12 lsahe l McPherson plus 3 
2:l:l Anne MacDonald 
2:14 Gcrmain Gla ude 
215 Madeline MacDonald 
2:16 Lenna T(,uchette 
2:17 Marlene Lalonde 
2:lR Herb Schwartz 
2:19 Ernest Sauer 
240 .facque Titley 
24 1 Marcel Ladouceur 
242 .Jnev Gallant and Adrien 

Filinn 
24:l Alan DaPrato 
244 .Jeanne Lapierre 
245 Gilhcrt a nd He len Gravel 
246 Roger Levert 
247 Rnn Masson 
24R Jc:in -Louis Menard 
24() Marcel Leroux/ Leo Theore t 
2.90 .1:icqu('~ Decoste 

2'i1 1\1.i in I.am.irchc 
252 F.\\'Cll McDnnald 
2S1 fran C'lcmcnl 
2.'i4 M:i urice Lalc,nclc 
2.'i.'i HC'ct<'r Dnre 
2.'i6 C'lnucl(' RnP' Ct 
,c;, Gilh('r l S:ihnurin 
2.'iR l1 111 .1 I.cg.wit 
2'iQ M.i rg u('rite Clement 
260 Ra,·1111111cl Lewi-. 
261 Gi-.elle Carriere 
262 Ron MacDonell and Romeo 

Bellefeuille 
261 Gl,.ri.i I..iO.imme 
264 R('11e M('lnchc 
26<; Ain1ee Gagne 
266 Gaelan Landriault and Jeff 

Tha uveltc 
267 Sdvia Sangster 
26R C11llec11 Knr1111cwski / Archie 

O'Cn1111nr 

21',Q Gactan La ndriault and Jeff 
Thauve1t e 

270 Debbie Leroux 
271 G. G. Auhrv 
272 .J e:in Shag,, 
27.1 Claire Hunt 
274 .Jane Dudlev 
27c; E-.telk Vincent . .J . D. Methot 
276 F.lain(' Atthrv 
277 Cl;rncle l.cl·n;nptc 
278 Mnrlin Campbell 
27() D . /\ . Mainville 
WO /\line Cltarlchnis 

281 Marc. Lois . Fern , plus 
282 I . P . Larocque 
2Rl Stuart Upt nn 
284 Marc-cl Larncq ue 
2RS Claude Drouin 
2R6 Rngcr l.aclnuceu r/ Mike 

Duval 
287 Bernie 0 . and Serge 
288 C.ermainc Larnt"que 
2RQ Gille-. Lehlanc 
2QO Mare l ehlanc plus 3 

2Qf R"men Lacombe 
2()2 ',111111,· Menard 
2cn Ra,· Boulanger 
?Q4 Onu g S\'mnn<; 
2Q<; C.era Id Ca 111 ernn 
2% I nuis Cardinal 
2()7 David Barton 
2QR .lcan- Lut' Cardinal 
2CJQ Vera M.icEwcn 
100 Mit"hcl I crnux 

301 Claude_ Lanthier 
:102 Emil e Leroux 
10:l Pierrette Larocque 
.104 Judv Gnulet 
,105 1 a urcnt Major 
106 .Jean -Lu c Desautels 
.107 Don Wallace 
308 Daniel Cholette 
309 Donna Girard 
:1 10 Ernest Bernique 

311 Gaetan and Michel Ravary 
312 Marie Paule and Rita Ravary 
313 Annette Desrosiers 
314 Joa n Ryan 
315 Norman MacCrimmon 
316 Claudette Francoeur 

, 317 Veronica MacDougald 
318 Audrey Murphy 
319 Guv Bonin 
320 Patrick and Chantal Ravary 

321 Mariell e Hamel in 
122 Diane and Michel Lefebvre 
:12.1 Aurcle Bellefeu ille 
324 .Jnhn Charlebois 
325 Marc Depratto 
326 Susa n D. Brown 
327 Nora M. McRae 
328 Beatrice Quesnel 
329 Archie Lavigne 
:l:lO .Jeannet te Charlebois plus 

3:l 1 Cl:iucle Cuerrier 
.132 I nn·ai ne Lanthier 
:l.1.1 I nuise Me nard 
.1.14 St ephane Ranger 
.1:lS Lucien Bellefeuille 
.1.16 I nui~ Pavlounis 
.1.17 Nicnle Tourangea u 
3.18 Peter McCuaig 
:l.1Q M:irgarel Henri/ Lillian La-

plante 
:140 f.,,u i~c La ferriere 

:141 I i~e Ranger 
.142 M:iuricc Lefebvre 
141 Frances Roy 
_144 Rnhert Ranger 
:145 Fernand Charlebois 
346 Yvon Fournier 
347 Rn~airc Samson 
.148 Rngcr Lemieux 
.149 Huhert Dubois 
150 Maurice Lanthier 

.15 1 Muriel Bellefeuille 

.152 Nnrniand and Mim i Vaillan-
cnun 

.153 .lnhanne Lanthier 
:lS4 Albert O'Connell 
:155 .lean Marc Viau 
:lS6 Hilda Tobin 
:lS7 R:it"hcl Conway 
JSR Nnrmand Maiihot 
:lSQ Aline Bedard 
.160 Marielle .Joly 

:161 Rolland Theoret 
.162 Strike Sabourin 
:161 Rnnald Oue~nel 
:164 Paul Rov 
:165 Laurier Leroux 
:loo Paul Decaire 
:167 Ro_ger Campeau 
.168 Gilles Leroux/ Ronald Duval 
.16Q Friendlv Bunch 1919 
.170 Gernlcl Carriere 
:1 71 Daltnn Gadbois· plus 2 
:1 71 .I . D. Dniron Auto 

50X$100.00 
Prizes 

First Come! First Served! 

.17.1 Helen Upton 
:174 Michel Constant 
375 .Jacques Decoste 
.176 Emile Pigenn 
377 Jacques Trottier 
378 Bernard Decoste 
379 Leo Leblanc 
:180 Wilfrid Decoste 
,181 David McPherson 
-182 Fernand Theoret 
:18:l Karen Yag uchi 
384 .Jcnnv Yag uchi 
185 Secre1aries of GDHS 
186 Gerald Pilon 
387 Karen Yaguchi 
:l8R Cecile Gauthier 
:l8Q Yvon and Donald Menard 
:190 .lean and .Joanne Villeneuve 

.191 .J. P. La1our 
3Q2 M . Cla ude Ouel lette 
:lQ1 Daniel Lefebvre 
.1Q4 Dnrecn MacDougall 
.1QS Colleen Ken nedv 
:lQ6 Den is Decoste ~nd Lise 

Du val 
1Q7 Jean-Paul and L. Gareau 
.1Q8 lne7 McGil lis 
39Q Donald Menard 
400 S:i lon Beausoleil 

401 B. St. Denis/ Sandy St. Denis 
402 Dnirnn Auto lnc . 
40.1 .Jean P,tti i v achon 
404 Brown House Corner Store 
405 Marc Garreau 
406 .ln:in n McDonald 
407 Dian e and R:ixanne Decoste 
408 .lean Humphries 
40(} .Inan Rvan and Gilles 

Hurtubise 
410 Archie Stewart 

411 Bruce Austin 
41 2 Rhea! Dicaire 
41 :l D:inn~• O'Brien 
414 Rohert Vincent 
41.'i Ma rcel Vander Haeg he 
416 Rnt-crt Lobb 
41 7 Oscar Beaucaire/ Sheldon 

Goldman 
41 R Gilher1 Pilon / Sheldon 

Gc,Jdman 
4 1 Q Rnbert L2com be 
420 Orville MacRae 
421 Gerald McDonald 
422 Dnn MacDonald 
42.1 Dale Munro 
424 Hughie McIntyre 
425 Donna Munro 
426 Arnold C. Munro 
427 Glenda MacDougall 
42R Arnold MacDonald 
42Q Ronald Munro 
4:10 J anette Abbey 
431 Jnhn O'Connell 
4:12 Mr. and Mrs . R. J . Bovin 
431 C':irol Sr. Laurent 
4.14 Dominique Modugno 

415 Chantal Titley plus 3 
4:16 Mike Gibbon 
4:17 .James Picken 
4.18 Deni•se and Bob Lemieux 
4:lQ Gilles and Monique Roy 
440 .John and Louise Shago 
441 Margaret MacKinnon 
442 Leo Oui met 
44:l Gilles Lajoie 
444 Jerome Masterson 
445 Barrv MacDonald 
446 .Joht; Hugh McDonald 
447 Lennv Larocque 
448 Rich~rd Bellefeuille 
44Q Norman Maclennan 
4SO Hughie Maclennan 

451 Gary. Rodney. Lee 
452 Daniel Giroux 
45:l Gilles and Susan Secours 
454 Colette Viau 
455 Rene Lalonde 
456 Maur ice Sauve 
457 Bru no Lau zon 
458 Rav Lalonde 
459 Cliff Massie 
460 Charlene Syrduk 
461 Roger Constant 
462 Raymond Ouellette 
463 Nicole Secours 
464 Michel Ferland (Mme.) 
465 Robert Ferland 
466 Wally W. Hope 
467 Helen Hope 
468 A. W . Hope 
469 Paul ine Lauzon 
470 John Hope 
471 Garry Shepherd 
472 Pau l Lalonde 
473 Richard Lalonde 
474 Mike and Nancy Connak 
475 W . A. MacKin~on 
476 Michel Lalonde 
477 Agathe Binette 
478 Ri ta Ca rriere 
47Q Marjorie McKinnon 
480 Renee Laflamme 
481 L. Theoret 
482 N. Brodeur plus 2 
48:l Emilia and Nicole D. 
484 A. Menar d and R. Decoste 
485 A. Blais 
486 Len Meloche 
487 Betty Quesnel 
488 Gise'le and Raymond 
489 E. St. Denis · 
4QO M . Chisholm 
491 Gilles Lefebvre 
492 .J . J . Labonte 
491 Rober1 Campeau 
4Q4 Michel Hurtubise and J 

Mare Dubois 
495 .Ron Allison 
496 Rod MacDonald 
497 Paul Poirier 
498 Gerard Lefebvre 
499 Bnh Gauthier 
500 Svlvia Norman 

We are very appreciative for the support shown us in our ticket sales so we m.ay be able to help or others in need 

f 
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The Glengarg News, Alexandria, Ont. 

1983 Theme: 
Self Help and 
Community 
Betterment 

New crest for Glengarry Junior Farmers 

designed by Myles Gallant. 

RVA Steel· Works Ltd. 
Specializing in Welding and Machining 

Aluminum and Stainless 
General Repairs on all Equipment 

Tel. 525-1072 
430 Main St. N., Alexandria, Ont. 

"We support our Junior Farmers" 

BULK TANKS 
Zero's Super Z. It's the complete bulk milk tank.· 
At least a great improvement on any you've seen 

before, certainly a revolution in design, and 
perhaps even the ultimate. 

Zero Dairy Farm Equipment 
Phillippe Glaude 

St. Isidore, Ont. Tel. 613-524-2137 

Higginson 
Farm Supplies Ltd. 

International Harvestor Equipment 
Hawkesbury Maxville 
632-2022 527-3126 

"We Wish the Best of Luck 
to our Junior Farmers" 

Good Luck Junior Farmers 

R.B. Dairy & Farm 
Equipment Ltd. 

R. Bureau, President 
Authorized dealer for Patz & Dairy Kool 

Sales & Service 
R.R. 2, Alexandria, Ont. 

Tel. 525-3691 

CONGRATULATIONS 
to our Junior Farmers 

Your contributions to our community 
are much appreciated! 

Township o, Lochiel 
RON MacDONELL, REEVE 

Dalkeith 
Feed Centre Ltd. 

Shur-Gain Feed 
Fertilizer - Seed 

Wire 

Glen Robertson 874-2962 

' 

.r 

• ,. 
- ----r!!"~-: 

SPRING PROJECT -The executive of the Glengarry Junior Gallant, Treasurer Kirsty MacLeod and Secretary Kelly Olson. 
Farmers Association met this week at Glengarry District High Rear: President Tony Vogel, Past President Henry Van der Byl 
School to distribute canvassing kits for the Diabetes Cam- and Zone Representative Doug Clark. 
paign. Front row, from left: Public Relations Director Lynn Staff Photo-Anna M. MacDonald 

Join the Junior Farmers 
Learn to develop your leadership skills while contributing to 
your community. 

Every Hallowe'en we sponsor a dance-and costume party in . 
McCrimmon Hall for the children. 

Wednesday, March 16, 1983 
-::r:-=-

We Salute 
Junior 

Farmers! 

Junior Farmers' 

Association of Ontario 

Assurance General Insurance 
Auto Theft Fire Life H 

For all farm insurance 

f 

Meetings held monthly in conjunction with a seasonal activity 
(taffy party_, sleigh ride, bowling, etc.) 

We provide a great opportunity to develop your sports ability 
in track and field, soccer, broom ball and· hockey. 151 Main St. S. Tel; 525-3134 Alexandria, Ont. 

March project - to canvass for Diabetes Campaign 

Annual banquet also held, this year at Bonnie Glen on Satur
day, March 19. Trophies to be awarded. 

A workshop entitled "Planning Partnership in the Farm" is 
being held at the Agricultural Office on March 24 at 8 p.m. 
Interested persons are asked to give their name in advance. 

Spring "Pitch-in" campaign in co-operation with Federation 
of Anglers and Hunters. To help keep Glengarry clean and 
beautiful. 

Mother's Day Project- Sale of carnations to aid in the Multi
ple Sclerosis Campaign. 

July I - Sponsor booth at park to raise funds for activities. 

We take part in Annual Summer Games. 

Have held Provincial Soccer Title for several years. 

Help to promote dairy industry - operate dairy booth at Max
ville and Williamstown Fairs and sfaff booth one day at Ot
tawa Exhibition. 

Operate canteen at annual ploughing match every fall. 

Had ski trip to Mont Tremblant and participated in Vankleek 
Hill Broomball tournament in February. 

Join us for a healthy outlet to express ideas in this Ontario 
youth development program. 

Glengarry Resource Leader - Jean Denis Methot 

Interested in joining Junior Farmers? 
If you're between the ages of 16 and 30 years 

contact any member of the executive 

SPE~V+I\EW HOLLAr\O_ 

Maxville 
·Farm Machinery Ltd. 

Tel. 527-2834 
Maxville, Ontario 

Good Luck Juninr Farmers 

Wilfrid Major Ltd. 
North Lancaster, Ontario 

Feed Mill 
Feed for: Poultry, Hogs, Dairy 

Egg Grading Station 

Lamoureux Maurice Ltd. 
St. Isidore de Prescott 1-800-267-7197 

Trottier 
Farm Equipment Ltd·. 
Complete Line of Ford Farm Machinery 

Highway 43 Alexandria 

Thanks to all our 
Junior Farmers 

and be~t wishes in the future 

Township of Lancaster 
PAUL LEGROS, REEVE 

Good Luck Junior Farmers 

Glengarry Farmers 
Mutual Fire Insurance Company 

51 Main St. N. Alexandria, Ont. 
Tel. 525-2557 

Larocque Feed Mill Inc. 
Shur-Gain 

Feed and Fertilizers 

Glen Robertson, Ont. 874-2212 

MASSON 
INSURANCE BROKERS LTD.I 

8 St. George St. · W. 
Alexandria, Ont. 

.,w.;_ -I ·•w;, 
\ :.';{; 

• I 
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347-3211 Tel. 525-3120 

.. AlllllE CIDCE@·,:... .. · 
INntE ·--· .... . ";, • -e .• 

~ .. 
- . 

Te[. ~iS-JIJJfif, · ·· , 
We invite you to come see our display 

at the Ottawa Farm Show 

I, ~ 
II ~ 

II 

Tel. (office) 613-928-2162 
Area Rep. Ralph Hall 

P.!.~~-~ INDUSTRIAL ~-•-- :.11 

OR AGRICULTURAL 
' 

MARLEAU GARAGE: 
SALES and SERVICE 

.Sales Representative 

: Nelson Menard, 524-5783 
"SLBernardin_.Q.nt __ . .IeL.67.8-2033 

Congratulations to the 
Junior Farmers during 

their special week 
from 

The Horseman Shop 
Mrs. Catherine B. Miller 

R.R. 1, Williamstown Tel. 931-1883 
-=====-----Ll ..................................... ~---'---- _ _____ __,_ ______________ _ _ 
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Wednesday, March 161 1983 

IN COURT 
Find for tnx incident 

A Lancaster man was fined $203 in Alexandria provincial 
court Thursday for failing to provide an income tax form to 
Revenue Canada in August, 1982. 

Ironically, had the man filed the proper form, he would have 
been entitled to a refund from the government. 

Speaking for Tassos Voutianitis, defense lawyer Hal 
Sherwood explained that his client had left the tax filing work to 
an accountant. 

The accountant apparently failed to submit the proper form. 
"He would have had a refund,'.' Sherwood said, 

acknowledging that it was still the legal responsibility of his 
client to see that the proper forms arrived on time. 

Judge Reginald Levesque imposed the minimum fine of S200 
plus $3 court costs, but said this was one time when he wished he 
had the power to reduce the minimum. 

Sherwood said his client was attempting to switch 
accountants. 

"Send him the bill," Levesque suggested. 

Youth put on probation 
A 17-year-old Lachine, Quebec youth was given a suspended 

sentence and one year's probation for a break-in near Lancaster, 
in Alexandria provincial court, Thursday. 

Crown Attorney Bruce McPhee gave evidence that Gordon 
Lynch had been attending a party at a cottage on Concession 1, 
Lancaster, November 24 when the group ran out of food and 
liquor. 

Lynch broke into a nearby cottage and took SS0 worth of 
goods, of which S25 was later recovered. 

Damages to the cottage totalled $51 .36. 
Defense lawyer Hal Sherwood said the youth had agreed to 

pay restitution . 
Judge Reginald Levesque said the incident was relatively 

minor and issued the suspended sentence, one year's probation, 
and ordered Lynch to pay for the damages . 

Jailed nine months 
Leonard Waring has been given two concurrent nine-month 

jail sentences for two thefts in Apple Hill. 
The Apple Hill resident also received 10 days for possession 

of a stolen tennis racquet. 
Judge Reginald Levesque handed down the sentence in 

Alexandria provincial court Thursday. 
Waring, 23. was charged with break-ins last year at St. 

Anthony's Catholic Church and a private residence. 
The Crown gave evidence earlier that Waring had stolen 

stereo equipment from the church December 12-13 valued at 
$795. The equipment was recovered, but was damaged beyond 
repair. 

On December 26, the Crown said Waring took about SS62 
worth of goods from an Apple Hill residence. The defense 
claimed only $292 worth was taken. The goods were recovered. 

On December 31, Waring was charged with possession of a 
tennis racquet which had the owner's name inscribed on it. 

Defense lawyer Hal Sherwood argued Waring had borrowed 
the racquet and failed to return it. He noted that Waring was not 
a "sophisticated" criminal or would not have kept a racquet with 
somebody's name on it. 

Judge Reginald Levesque noted Waring has a criminal 
record, with prior convictions for possession of stolen goods and 
breach of probation. 

He said Waring appeared to be an intelligent person with a · 
"great deal of potential" but "he is a dishonest person." 

Levesque said he still believed there was hope for the man. 
"Because of the potential, I still harbor prospects of 

rehabilitation for the accused," the judge said. 
Admitting the sentence was "perhaps on the light side," 

Levesque sentenced Waring to nine months in jail on each theft 
charge, and 10 days on the possession charge. The time will be 
served concurrently, which means the actual jail term is a total of 
nine months. 

The judge did not order probation, nor did he order Waring to 
pay restitution. 

Levesque said it would be pointless to make such orders since 
Waring had broken similar orders in the past. 

Corntmll man fined 
A 30-year-old Cornwall man was fined $223 in Alexandria 

provincial court Thursday for impaired driving. 
Donald McCosham was observed driving erratically on 

Highway 34 March 8. 
He gave breathalzyer readings of 120 milligrams of alcohol in 

100 milligrams of blood. The legal limit is 80 milligrams. 

·I. R. BELL & SON 
Scrap Metal, Batteries 

Radiators , Copper, Brass and Steel 
Top Price Paid 

Isadore Bell 
Tel. 933-1119 

3000 Copeland St. 
23-U Cornwall ... Ont. 

Authorized Dealer for: 

Poulan, Pioneer, 
Echo, Tanaka 

Chainsaws 
Complete inventory of parts 
to repair any make of saws. 

For fast and efficient service contact: 

I 

R·&R 
SPORTS SALES 

182 Main Street, Alexandria Tel. 525-3693 
11 · 1C 

l 

Planting 
lessons 
The Williamstown Green Thumb 

Hnr1icultural Society met Feb
ruarv 28 at St. Marv's Parish Hall 
with. 38 members and seven 
guests attending. 

The guest speaker was Hank 
Kowenburg from Hank and Tina 
Greenhouse in St. Lazare. Que. 
He gave a very informative talk as 
well as a demonstration of 
planting seed . He stressed the 
importance of heat and a sterile 
medium for germination and 
growth. He buys only the highest 
quality of seed and expects 90 per 
cent germination of seed. He 
compared the price of petunia 
seed to that of gold. petunia seed 
costing $1.400 "an ounce. 

Manv varieties of Coleus and 
lmpati~nts were shown to the 
members and guests. A question 
period followed his talk . 

Next meeting will be held 
March 28 at St. Mary's Parish 
Hall. Williamstown. when Ethel 
Clark will speak on "Flowers in 
the Hospital"; Elizabeth Chat
field on "Flowers from other 
Countries"; Gordon Light on 
"Raised Bedding" and Gordon 
Turnbull on "Flower Show Ex
hibiting." 

SAM McGEE-Actor Charles 
Haytor performed YA Taste 
of Robert Service" for the 
students of Alexander School 
Monday. Here, he portrays a 
shivering Sam McGee from 
Service's "The Cremation of 
Sam McGee''. 

Spring into Spring 
Farm Equipment Repairs 

NOW 
SPRING FARM SPECIALITIES 

WE SERVICE 
All farm equipment requirements through our 
Plate and Machine Shop Facilities; and our 
Cornwall Factory Surplus Division. 
WE SUPPLY 
• Steel and Stainless Steel Plate (all sizes) 
• Tanks, Bins, Hoppers, Breeching 
• Bars, Beams, Angle Iron, Nuts and Bolts 
• Weldt'ng Equipment and Supplies 
• Welding and Lathe Work "General Repairs" 

Staff Photo-Bob Roth 

"IF IT'S MET AL, WE WELD IT" 
Office: 938-1834 Office: 938-2851 

706 Rosemount Avenue 12 Ninth Street East 
Cornwall, Ont. Cornwall, Ont. 

Ray Bolger Cornwall Factory Surplus 
Steel Fabrication Limited 11-2c 

. ................................................................ . . : 

Berry's Hatchery 
South Mountain, Ontario 

Tel. 613-989-2115 
Registration No. 0-325 Est. 1920 

All Poultry is Vaccinated 

Order 
Chicks 
Now 

Delivered to your Co-op 
in Alexandria and Vankleek Hill 

Saturdays Apr. 30 
May 28, Jone 25 

Meat Birds, Layers (white and brown eggs) 
Turkeys and Waterfowl also available. 

\ ............................................................... . 

~ 

ACTION OPTIONS 
BIG FACTORY ALLOWANCES 

on N"ew Massey Ferguson 
Tractors up to $9,000. 

Low Rate Financing 10.9% 
for One Year OR 

Waiver of Finance Charges 
'Til June 1/83 

FACTORY ALLOWANCES UP TO 
30% ON.NEW PLOWS, 

HARROWS, CULTIVATORS, 
GRAIN. DRILLS AND PLANTERS 

HAY TOOLS and BALERS 
Waiver of Finance Charges to July 1/8 

USEb TRACTORS 
Waiver of Finance Charge to June 1/83 

USED TRACTORS 
1- MF 275 cab loader 

1
1-MF U30 

1- f'ord 3000 
COMBINES 

Waiver of Interest to Sept. 1 / 83 plus 
$500 parts certificate 

1- MF 300 with cornhead and 10-ft. grain head 
1- Int. 615 cab grainhead 

Winter Business Hours: 
Weekdays, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. 
Saturday, 9 a.m. to 12 noon 

MENARD 
Farm Supplies Ltd. 
Andre Seguin, Prop. , 
Green Valley, Ontario 

Tel. 525-2190 or 525-1961i._._ ........ 

"MOBILE WASH" 
We clean anything, anywhere! 

Agricultural, Industrial, Residential, 
Trucks, Tractors, Heavy Equipment, 

Farm Equipment, Dairy Barns, Poultry Cages, 
Buildings, Fire Damage, Thawing Pipes 
STEAMCLEAN POWERWASH 

527-5248 

r~~6ti;R ~IA"f9t. 
: PROBLEMS? se.Rv1ce 
1 Call ~"])¥ 
j- MR. RADIATOR : 
1 Laurent Ladouceur, Prop. l 
l Tel. 525-3752 : 
I 13..:" . I 

-~-----------------------------J 

AUCTION SALE 
MACHINERY AND FARM TOOLS 

Estate of James Dolton McDermid 
Located 2 miles north of Berwick , Ont. or 
2 miles south of Crysler, Ont. on Cone. 8 

Saturday, March 26 
at 1 p.m. 

MF No. 165 diesel tractor , multi power, Allied loader 
and cab 2700 hrs. ; MF 3-furrow trip beam plow; GW 
6' snowblower ; JD 10' drag disc; Turnco grain box; 
NH No. 469 haybine; Int. 16-run seed drill with grain, 
fert ., grass and broom grass boxes; 4 sector spike 
tooth harrows; Champion oat roller ; NH No. 69 PTO 
baler; NH 11 O bus manure spreader; 3-pt. hitch 
scraper; 32 ' corn and hay elevator; 40 ' pipe hay 
elevator on wheels ; 3-ton hay wagon and rack' 3 sec
tion steel roller; mineral feeder ; cutter with doors; 5 
h.p. tiller; cow clippers; steel fence posts; milk cans; 
set of tractor chains; sump pump; pulley for Oliver 
550; western pony saddle; plus wagon load of farm 
tools. 

TERMS-CASH or GOOD CHEQUE 
Auctioneer's Note: The machinery in this sale is in ex
cellent condition. Be on time as there are very few 
small items. 

Murray Blair, Auctioneer 
Avonmore, Ont. Tel. 346-5568 

AUCTION SALE 
BROWN'S AUCTION CENTER 
CORNWALL CENTER ROAD 

11· 2C 

Location: Earners Corners beside Cashway Lumber 
f 

Sat., March 19 
at 10 a.m. 

PARTIAL HOUSEHOLD: Maple dining set includes 
round table, 4 chairs , matching corner cupboard; 
maple bedroom set, 4-pce. includes dresser with mir
ror, men's bureau, night table, double bed ; wooden 
floor lamps; antique sideboard, walnut; oak drop leaf 
table; number of other smaller tables : modern 
bedroom set includes men's chest of drawers ; 
9-drawer dresser with full width mirror. Above pieces 
all in excellent condition. Unghaus German mantel 
clock in excellent working condition, brass 
clockworks; partial set of sterling cutlery plus set of 6 
smaller spoons; fancy beaded hand clutch ; a number 
of smaller items including table lamps ; fancy teapots 
and coffee pots ; cream and sugars; salt and peppers; 
antique items; smaller collectibles including toys of all 
shapes andl sizes; propane kitchen range ; brass style 
floor lamps plus other articles arriving between press 
time and sale time! 

TERMS-CASH 
LUNCH AVAILABLE 

Robert Brown, Auctioneer 
Antique sale scheduled for Sat. , April 2 

Watch next week's News 

_ ThP r.lPnRarrv ~ews. Alexandria. Ont.:. 

·rHAZEN'MELDRUM'LIMITEDl. 
- ONTARIO LAND SURVEYORS I; ., ______ ,: 
I Cornwall Office Wlnchtltlr Offlc:I Aleunclrta Offlct ,-_ 

'

- Hazen MIidrum, W. J. Jlllna1111, 9 Main Strllt N. 
N.S.L.S., O.L.S. O.L.S. Dlnil Dutrtuc, ,-

1
: Tel. 932-8124 Tel. 774-2414 I.Sc., O.L.S. 

12-H TII. 525-3444 : 
\. .. ,_ ,,_..c, __ c, __ ,, __ 1, __ 1,_~c~~<•--~•- _J_ 

NOTICE 
TOWNSHIP OF LOCHIEL 

HALF LOADS 
Half load restrictions will be enforced, in accordance 

with by-law No. 977-82, on all township roads as of 

March 15/83 to May 31/83 
Persons contravening this by-law will be prosecuted 

in accordance with the law. 
George Fulton 
Road~uperintendent 

Fawcett 
Consignment 

and 

I 1· 1C 

Oaksite Reduction Sale 
will be held 

Friday; M8rch 25 
commencing 12:30pm 

From Michael Butler, Alfred, Ont. 
12 springing or fresh cows sired by A.I. and classified. 
14 open or short bred heifers. 

Also Selling: 50 head of springing and fresh cows. Two service 
age bulls. 

All cattle sold with Health of Animals Free-Listed Certificates. 

ALLISON 
774-3610 

Consignments now being accepted. 

FAWCETT BROS. SALE MANAGERS 
RALPH 

774-5710 

1_,. _,. _,. _,. _,. _,. _,. _,. l 
1 TraCtor and 
1 Equipment I 
1 Auction 1 
1 Friday, M~r~h 1 8 l 
4' COR~:~;;;~cl~~:!~;°;f AND 31 I 
I Winchester, Ontario • 

T The undersigned Auction Company has been commissioned 
by Riverview Farms and the Royal Bank, to sell by unreserved I 
auction the following: • 

f White 2-155 FWD; I.H. 1066; Ford County 1454 FWD; Ford 1 I 5000; Ford 4500 with loader; A.C. Gleaner LKS with 6R corn 

T 
head; 2 Dion forage boxes with 9T wagons; N.H . 880 
harvester with 2R corn head; Ford forage blower, 60' sllo 
pipes; N.H. 479 hayblne; McKee Cornhog grinder; gravity l 

t box; Bush Hog 1437 24' disc; White 588 5F plow, adj. 
18"-20"; White 598 plow, 5F, adj. 14"-22"; Kongskllde 6R l 
cultivator; Yetter 21' rotary hoe; J.D. 7000 6R corn planter; 
N.H. 675 manure spreader; 24' sectional drag harrows; 

t sllage mixer-feeder box; three sets of duals; pipe elevator; 
grain auger; • tractor blade; hay feeder; hydraulic fertlllzer I 
auger with power unit; 6T fertilizer spreader; McKee 750 • 

1 :::::::: ,n,e,oNed the a,wa of J. Seg,eto Conotrnctlon l 
\ ~~:~ 

0

3:::::::~fF~::::: ::::;::::el::~ with blade; GMC l f van; Chev van; Huber pavement roller; Little Ford BPF 80 I asphalt machine; asphalt forms and hardware; trailer. 

1 Ford 3000 G; J.D. 2130; 1.H. 444 with loader; I.H. 674, cab; 

I Nuffleld 4-65; Case 1030; M.F. 40D loader and backhoe; 
Ford 30 FWD with duals; I.H. 434 with loader; I.H. B-275; 
Ferguson 2085; Ford 5000 with loader; M.F. 300 backhoe; 1 

I Cockshutt 1855; M.F. 1105; J.D. 4430 ; Chaseslde loader; 
A.C. 5050 FWD; White 2-60 with loader; 1.H. 624; Bobcat 
M610; I.H . 434; Case 1816, loader; I.H. B-250; Ford 

1 Selecto ; White 2-70, cab; I.H. 784; Case 730; White 4-150 I 
with duals ; Case 1570; I.H. 886 with loader; Moline G1000 • 
with duals; Allis payloader; Gehl 2R harvester; I.H .510016R 

1 I drill, new; Cockshutt 10'6" disc; Patz manure elevator; 
wagon and hay rack; I. H. 155 spreader; Hesston 1090 
hayblne; J.D. 8' blade; Dion 12T wagon, new; 2 N.H. 489 
hayblnes; Krause 26' disc; I.H. 10'6" disc; Triple K 1 

I cultivators, 8'6", 10'6", 12', 14'6", 17', 19'8", 2'1' ; G.W. 
snowblower; post hole augers; I.H. 510 3x16 plow, new; 
Calsa 3 pt. sprayer; J.D. 7000 4R planter; N.H. 36 flail l 

I chopper; Dion harvester; N.I. spreader; M.F. plow ; I.H. 
5100 21 R drill ; N.I. 2R super sheller; Tri pie K 3F plow; I.H. 

t 
4R cyclo; I.H . 56 planter; Case 4F plow; 760 Steam Gani; 

1 N.H. S23 forage blower; J.D.16A flail chopper; Sanderham 3 
pt. 20' cultivator; Noble 4R cultivator; D.B. 3F plow; A.C. 3F 
plow; J.D. 7000 4R planter; N.H. 707 3 pt. harvester; Case 

. rake; hay mower; I.H. rake; I.H. 4R cultivator; scraper l 
t blades; 3 pt. fertilizer spreaders ; 3 pt . discs; gravity box 

with wagon; Brillion seeder ; M.F. 33 17R drill; I.H. 10 18R 
drill; J .D. HR drill; 5' rotary cutters ; M.F. 6R planter; 1 

118.4x38 duals; 20.8x38 duals ; mallette; wheel ditcher; 
Cockshutt 438 hayblne; Cockshutt 11 drill; N. H. 479 
hayblne. 

· , Atisolute Row: tractor tires; rims; I.H. W6; Ferguson 2085; I 
front mounted blade; I.H. 80 combine; M.F. 135; Hesston • 
2R head. Plus many more Items too numerous to mention. f List subject to change prior to auction. I 

I TERMS OF SALE: CASH OR GOOD CHEQUE • · 
WITH BANK LETTER I 

1 Lunch Available • 

RIDEAU AUCTIONS INC. 

1 Winchester, Ontario I 
For more Information call: • 
Hunter Mccaig, Manager I 

1 Days: 613-774-2735, 774-2737 Evenings: 813-258-5095 • 

~ .,_ ..-..-.-..-.,_ .... .,_ 
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ALEXANDRIA 
102 MAIN STREET · 
ALEXANDRIA 

J 

l 

FRYING , 
GROUND 

BEEF 
REGULAR 

FRESHLY GROUND 

2. 

' •• 

/ kg 

/lb 

CANA:DA GRADE A FRESH 
U_NDE,R 2 kg/4 LBS 

CHICKEN PORK 
L~~S 

' 

CHOPS 
CENTRE CUT 

KNU:E CUT LOIN 

:t.lt(j/kg t· -,1 ,. 1). 1/kg 

I ~:tfJ/lb 
' 

') ')') 111111 e • • 1/lb 

~IB T-BONE · . 
SJEAK 'STEAK 

CUT FRO .vt GRADE A BEEF CUT FROM GRADE A BEEF 
(:AP OFF NO TAILS 

. • O SA •IP · 
I 

A 71.(t I /kg 

I 

PORK 
CHOPS 

LOIN, RIB & 
TENDERLOIN END 

- ',air ., .L ' / kg 

2.2111/lb 
SIRLOIN 

STEAK 
CUT FROM G-RADE A BEEF 

(j. J :tkg 
9 ,_,_, -· 'C / lb 

0 NI ON S · GR!~~1:un 
PRODUCT OF CANADA PRr~~rnfsU.S.A. 

. RED 
GRAPEFRUIT BANANAS 

CANADA NO. 1 . ,J ,~ ~ 
10 LB BAG 7 "') ea.~--

, 

. 

PRODUCT OF U.S.A. 
SIZE 48'S ,., 

ea .•• ,, 

SPINACH 
PRODUCT OF U.S.A. 

· Ci:ANADA NO. 1 
10 OZ. PKG • 

• 

DOLE BRAND 
TROPICAL TREAT ,_, . ., 
e ' • .,/ kg 

. .., . ., 
et) t"J;1b 

\ 

- . ! " . a • • I • 

I 

PRIME .RI 
STEAK 

CUT FROM GRADE A B 
FIRST 4 RIBS ONLY 

f • .., ,., , •• , , /.i!, 
. 2.f)lt. 
COOKE 

HAM 
STORE SLICED 

.., ?. ,_,. 
tie iW ' / kg 

2.:tfl.b 
CELERY 
STALKS 

PRODUCT OF U.S.A. 
CANADA N0.1 

ea. I 7 



. • • • I • • 

APPLE 
JUICE. J 

j 

ALLENS VITAMINIZED 
1.36 L TIN 

. INNER 
CARONI & CHEESE 

KRAFT 225 g PKG. 

ORANGE 
JUICE 

PICNIC 355 ml CONT. 
FROZEN, CONCENTRATED 

CONOMY MAYONNAISE 
~~HE~1J/S KRAFT 

PKG. OF 100 500 ml JAR 

PAPER 
TOWELS 

WHITE SWAN, 2 PLY 
ASSORTED COLOURS 

2 ROLL PKG. 

I 

GARBAGE 
BAGS 

IGA 
PkG. OF 10 

. 

CAT FOOD 
.PAMPER 
ASSORTED VARIETIES 
184 g TIN 

N OUR TRADING AREA.) 

FROZEN 
POT PIES 

YORK 227 g BOX 
BEEF, CHICKEN OR TURKEY 

•. 7f 
LITE 

TUNA 
ADMIRAL, FLAKED 

184 g TIN 

I 

. I . I • 

. \.) 

PRICES EFFECTIVE FROM MONDAY, _ ,, 

MARCH 14 UNTIL CLOSING · 
SATURDAY, MARCH 19, 1983. 
WE RESERVE THE RIGHT TO 

LIMIT QUANTl~IES •. · -
- .. 

WEEKLY 
SPECIAL 

SUGAR 

CEREAL 
CORN FLAKES 

KELLOGGS 675 g BOX 

ICE 
CREAM 

MAjOR TREAT OR 
MEADOW GOLD 2 L CONT. 

ASSORTED FLAVOURS 

ST. LAWRENCE WHITE 
FINE GRANULATED 

2 kg BAG 

., 

LIQUID POWDERED FLOUR 
ALL PURPOSE 

BLEACH DETERGENT 
LAVO 

3.6 L CONT. 
TIDE . ' 

6 L BOX • 

.7f FIVE ROSES 
WHITE ENRICHED 

10 kg BAG 

ON BR D BUTTER · . 
' • • I . ' . · -••• EGGS MILK & . SUGAR-' . ~ 



l . . . ,, 
Wednesday, March 16, 1983 

PRICES EFFECTIVE FROM MONDAY, MARCH .14. 
UNTIL CLOSING SATURUAY,MARCH-19,·1983. 
WE RESERVE THE RIGHT TO LIMIT QUANTITIES. 

.¥~t~i~ 
.•• ;., ,, 145 ~~tqt;,T~L . 

(plus ,30 depo11it) 21:&!i 
Nabisco Taster's Choice Taster's Choice 

Carnation Heinz Fancy Vachon With Pectin 
Shredded Wheat Regular Decaffeinated Strawberry or 

Instant Instant Coffee Tomato 
Ra spberry 

Cereal Coffee Coffee Mate Juice Jam 
450 g box 227 g jar 227 g jar 750 g Jar 6x156 ml t,ns 750 ml jar 

1.19 5.99 5.99 2.89 1.59 1.89 
Catelli Plus .._ 

Spaghetti, Spa hettini or • C-atelli Habitant Habitant Habitant V-H 

Ready Cut Meat Pickled Red Green Won Ton 
Macaroni Sauce Beets Chow Chow Chow Chow Soup 

750 g bag 398 ml tin 750 ml jar 500 ml jar 500 ml jar 397 ml t in 

1.59 .89 1.29 2.19 .1.79 .69 
V-H V-H Heinz Heinz IGA Green Giant Seasoned 

In Tomato Sauce In Tomato Sauce Green Beans. Sweetlet Peas or 

' Soya Long Grain Le Sieur Mustard Spaghetti Scarios Sauce Rice Peas 
250 ml btl. I• 500 ml jar 540 ml tin 540 ml t in 2 kg bag 398 ml t in 

.79 .69 .89 .89 1.89 .69 
Brunswick In Oil. Kraft Duncan Hines Deluxe JI Moms (Ontario Stores) Golden Girl Kraft Processed 

In Mustard, in Lemon Sauce With Cheese Assorted Varieties 100% Vegetable (Quebec Stores) Deluxe (16 sl ices) 
or In Tomato Sauce 

Pizza Cake Soft 
100% Vegetable 

Cheese Food 
Sardines Mix 

. 

Mixes Margarine Margarine Slices 
100 g tin 450 g box 520 g box 454 g tub 454 g tub 500 g pkg. 

.39 1.29 1.29 .75 .65 2.69 
High liner Highliner Frozen Carnation Old South Frozen Kraft Chilled Kraft Chi l led 

Frozen Boston Blue Fish, Frozen Florida Concentrated Unsweetened Orange & Unsweetened Orange or 

F.ish Fish Hash Brown 
Grapefruit or Orange Pineapple or Orange 

& Grapefruit Grapefruit 
Cakes Fillets Potatoes Juice Juice Juice . 680 g box ., 454 g pkg. 1 kg bag 355 ml cont. 909 ml jar 909 ml jar 

1·.39 1.79 
; 

.95 1.09 1.09 1.19 
Weston's Sesame Weston's Neilson's Humpty Dumpty Bassett' s Ivory (Ontario Stores) Family Pack Regular or BBQ 

Crusty English Chocolate Potato Licorice liquid 
Bread Muffins Bars Chips Allsorts Detergent 
670 g loaf Pkg. of 8 Pkg. of2 200 g bag 350 g bag 1 L btl. 

.79 .89 1.49 . 99 1.49 2.39 
Viau Lido Fleecy Sunlight Stuart House Reynolds 12" Venus Bantam or Large (6's) or Small (10's) 

Viva Goglu Fabric Powdered Burner Aluminum 
Biscuits Biscuits Softener Detergent Bibs Foil Wrap 

350 g box 800 g pkg. 5 L jug 6 L box Pkg. of 6 7.6 m pkg. 

1.39 1.99 3.19 3.59 .89 .89 
Sunlight Sunlight SHIRRIFF 
Liquid Dishwasher ASSORTED VARIETIES MON AMIE 

Detergent Detergent JELLY COOKWARE 
1 l btl. 1.8 kg box 

1.89 
, 

3.59 BY POWDERS , 

SILVERSTONE Texize Purina 85 g PKG. 

Glass Puppy 

3/.89. 
FOR YOUR OWN KITCHEN 

OR IDEAL AS A GIFT. 
Plus Chow CHECK YOUR IGA STORE 

682 ml btl. 4 kg bag FOR MORE 

1.39 5.99 lNFORMA TION. -

The Glengarry News, Alexandria, Ont. 

Peter Piper 
500 g pkg. Peter Piper 

454 g pkg. 
Sliced 

Side Bacon Wieners 

2.09 1.25 
Country Club 125 g pkg. 

3 Varieties 
Sliced Cooked 

Pride of Canada Waxed 

Poultry 

1.45 
Coorsh Vacuum Pack 

Midget 
Bologna 

3.42 /kg 

1.55 /l b 

Corned Beef 
Brisket 

Burns Store Packed 
Farmer Style 

Sausage 

5.18 /kg 

2.35. /l b 

fClii~~ 
Maple Leaf Maple Leaf 

500 g pkg. Sliced 175 g pkg. Sliced 

Side 
Bacon 

2.55 
Maple Leaf 
500 g pkg. 

Bologna 

1.99 
Maple Leaf 

700 g pkg. Breaded 

Fried 
Chicken 

I 

4.55 
Maple Leaf Sweet Pickled 

Cottage 
Rolls 
4.61/kg 

Cooked 
Ham 

1.59 
Maple Leaf 
250 g pkg. 

Party 
Sticks 

1.68 
Maple Leaf 
175 g pkg. 

Ham 
Steak 

1.85 
Maple Leaf 
4x50 g pkgs . 

Smoked 
Meat 

2.76 /kg 

1.25 /lb 

Maple Leaf 
75 g -P!<k Bologna, 
Mac & Cheese or 

Chicken 

.99 
Maple Leaf 
500 g pkg. 

Skinless 
Sausage 

2.25 
Maple Leaf 
500 g pkg. 

Breakfast 
Slices 

2.35 . 
Maple Leaf 
125 g pk:g. 

Salami or 
Pepperoni· 

2.09irb 2.59 1.15 



_News from Dunvegan by Marion L. Loewen 
527-2284 

Celebrating birthdays this week Mrs. Wesley Chisholm and son 
were Mrs. Dan N. Macleod, Mrs. Robert. 
Wesley Chisholm and Donald Mrs. Lloyd Nixon spent last rf Urquhart. Best wishes are ex- week in Chatham visiting her son 
tended to all! Bever!~ Nixon and family. 

Visit,;,rs with Mr. and Mrs . Rae Master Carl MacIntosh accom-
MacLeod on the weekend were panied by his mother. Mrs. Doris 
their daughter Debbie of Ottawa. MacIntosh. attended a hockey 

.Iii. Rae's brother Mansel and Mrs. tournament in Cowansville. Que .. 
"" Macleod and son Ronnie, of on the weekend with the Sl. 

Oshawa. They all visited with Isidore team. We congratulate 
their father, Neil B. Macleod of the team and Carl for winning 
Maxville Manor. both their games. 

Mr. and Mrs. Will Ryan of John Loewen left from Do'tval 
Thunder Bay and Garret Ryan of airport Sunday morning to visit 
Fournier visited with their niece, his brothers and sisters in Van-
Mrs. Weldon MacIntosh and couver and area. 
family on Friday. We are glad to hear that Mrs. 

Mrs. Mary C. Macleod visited Kenneth Macleod is improving in 
with her sister, Mrs. Penelope the Ottawa Civic Hospital. We 
MacGillivray of Alexandria over hope her stay won't be too long. 
the weekend. Mr. and Mrs. Noel Ladouceur 

Mrs. Garry McIntosh and were in Vermont last week where 
daughters Shawna and Shannon they attended the wedding of her 
of Apple Hill. visited with her nephew. Michael Cameron. 
parents. Mr. and Mrs. Bev Gabriel Ladouceur of Green 
MacQueen and family on Sunday. Valley. spent the weekend with 

We are sorry to hear that his grandparents John and Mar-
Donald D. MacSweyn and Lloyd ion Loewen. while his parents 
Macleod are patients in Glen- were in Vermont. 
garry Memorial Hospital. We Visitors with the Loewens on 
hope they will soon be feeling the weekend were Edwin and 
well enough to return home. Marianne Collin, David, Michael 

Visitors on Sunday with Mrs. and Matthew of Greely. 
D. H. MacIntosh to celebrate the DUNVEGAN RECREATION 
birthday of Mrs. Flora Chisholm, ASSOCIATION 
were: Mrs. Rhoda MacRae, Mrs. The Dunvegan Recreation As-
Joanna Maclean of Maxville, sociation is planning to hold a 
Mrs. Evelyn MacQueen and Mrs. taffy party at Omer Lavigne's 
Eileen Campbell. and the guest- about four miles east of Ste. Anne 
of-honor and her family, Mr. and de Prescott on Sunday. March 27, ~--__ ;._ __________ .:; _______________ ~ 
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Farm Supplies Ltd. 

Farm and 
Consumer Products 

18-rt 

t-~~~~~Q-~~~i~!:_~~.:.-~!.~~~~-~.!~~.J 

LANCASTER 
DISCOUNT 

FOODS LTD. 
Compare our prices 

and see the difference 

RED BRAND BLADE ROAST . . . . . . . . 3.06 kg 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.39 lb. 

REGULAR GROUND BEEF . . . . . . . . . . 2.40 kg 
............................. 1.09 lb. 

LOOSE WIENERS,skgbox ...... ....... 1.52 kg 

. . . . . . . . .. . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .69 lb. 

BOLOGNA, by the piece .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.43 kg 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . .65 lb. 

PORK SHOULDER, 5-6 lbs. . . . . . . . . . . . 2.40 kg 
..•.......................... 1.09 lb. 

FRESH PORK LIVER . . . . .. . . .. . .. . .. . . 1.08 kg 
........... , , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .49 lb. 

SLICED SALAMI ..................... 3.73 kg 
............ ...... ... . ..... .. 1.69 lb. 

SLICED COOKED HAM ....... ....... 3.95 kg 
............................. 1.79 lb. 

SLICED PASTRAMI . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.57 kg 
............................. 2.48 lb. 

LA BELLE FERMIERE SAUSAGES . . 4.39 kg 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.99 lb. 

ST. ALBERT. CHEESE ............... 5.18 lb. 
.......... ... ....... .. ....... 2.35 lb. 

WHOLE FRESH CHICKENS, 3-4 lbs .....•. 1.96 kg 
, .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .89 lb. 

HYGRADE SLICED CHICKEN LOAF 3.29 kg 
. . . . . . .. . .. . .. . . . . . . . ... . . . . . 1.49 lb. 

RED BRAND FULL . .. . .. . .. . .. .. . .. .. 4.83 kg 
SLICE ROUND STEAK . .. .. . .. . .. .. . .. 2.19 lb. 

LEG OF PORK, half or whole ........... 2.98 kg 

..................... , ....... 1.35 lb. 

FRESH BONELESS .......... . ....... 3.73 kg 
PORK BUTT ROAST . .. . . . . .. . . . . . . . . 1.69 lb. 

FRESH EGG ROLLS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .25 ea. 

LAMB SHOULDER ................... 3.73 kg 
t ........ .......... ........... 1.69 lb. 

• \ 

FREEZER SPECIALS 

RED BRAND BEEF 
SIDES . . .. .. . 3.42 kg 

....... 1.55 lb. 

HINDS . . . . . 3.95 kg 
.. . . .. . 1.79 lb. 

FRON-TS 2.89 kg 

. . . . . 1.31 lb. 

PORK .. .. . . 2.32 kg 
half or whole . . . 1.05 lb. 

.I' I! these prices include cutting, wrapping and freezing. · 
Cutting and deboning will increase price per kg or lb. 

LORNE LEBLANC, PROP. 
109 Main St. Lancaster Tel. 347-2868 

1983. 
Full course meal: $7 adults; 

$6.50 children. Meals will be 
served at 12 noon and 1 p.m. 
Taffy party. $2 per person. 

Number of meals must be 
confirmed. If interested call Trot
tier's at 525-1521. Calder's at 
527-5293. c:r Heinsma 's at 524-
2299 by Friday. March 18. 1983. 

Groups will be leaving Dun
vegan about 11:15 a.m. and 12:15 
p .m. Must provide own trans
portation. 

THE WOMEN'S INSTITUTE
AN APPRECIATION 

by Marion Loewen 
The role of the Women's 

Institute changes with the times. 
I'll not stress the benefits of its 
beginnings. but I would mention. 
going back 35-40 years. the boon 
it was to rural women in the days 
prior to radio as we know it today. 
to television. to rural delivery of 
daily papers. to the many maga
zines available today .. . so 
who needs the W.I.? We all do. 
one wav or another. 

Older wome·n •s experience and 

expertise can smooth some pro
blems encountered by the young
er generation. Younger women 
can add so very much with their 
ideas of toda/s needs. The wt 
has been responsible for many 
projects and changes at a local 
level-nationally and internation
allv it has achieved acclaim . 

Despite all the modern con
veniences in rural homes there is 
a vast difference between rural 
and urban living-in fact. in 
Scotland the WI is known as the 
Rural Women's Institute. 

Some meetings are more in
teresting than others. that goes 
without saying, but isn't it up to 
us to make them interesting? 

To vc,u who think it has 
deteriorated to a women's "club" 
with lunch thrown in-would you 
sav that the men's Lions Club . for 
instance . was a stagnant group? 
Well. neither is the wt but it is 
what we, the women make it . 
Corne and join us and help prove 
the old saying "never under
estimate the power of a woman. " 

Green fie ld.y M,eyC.uro,e 

MRC MEETING The door prize was won by Mrs. 
Marie Brabant. 

A meeting of the Kenyon 
Recreation Committee was held 
on Monday. March 14. in the 
township office. Present were 
Fred Leroux and Gerald Trottier 
from Township Council. June 
Raymond and Joe Stelmach from 
Apple Hill. Jack Fraser from 
Dunvegan. Mary Couture from 
Greenfield. Stanlev McLeod from 
Laggan and Eli;abeth Barton. 
Eledion for new officers for the 
year 1983 were held with Stanley 
McLeod appointed chairman and 
Mary c~uture appointed sec
retarv. 

EUCHRE 

Euchre held on March 14 was 
also a success with a good 
attendance. Winners. ladies. 
Gladys Barton. Jean Smith. 
Rhoda McRae. Winners, gents. 
.Jnhn McMaster. Arthur Franklin. 
Ross Fraser. The door prize was 
won bv John A. McLennan . The 
next euchre will be on March 28 
at 8 p.rn. 

Best wishes to Mrs . Ella 
Villeneuve who is hClspitalized in 
Ottawa General. 

EUCHRE HUN'GER MEAL 

Euchre was held on Feb. 28 in 
the parish hall with a good 
attendance. Winners of ladies' 
prizes were: Dorina Theoret, 
Frances Phillips and Jean Smith. 
Gentlemen: Dennv Van Loon, 

Sundav. March 20 at 11 :30. St. 
Bernard's School. Guest speaker 
Rev. F. Lacoursiere from Devel 
opment and Peace. Purpose to 
cnn<;idcr the need of people of 
Third World and express our 
snlidaritv with them • .. Oliver Hamelin and Ross fraser. 

l 

R&R 
SPORTS SALES (AUTO) 

See us for 
Top Quality' Used Cars 

- Also -
Automobile, Truck and Tractor 

Radiators Repaired 
Cleaned and Recored 

• ALL WORK GUARANTEED -
PICKUP AND DELIVERY SERVICE 
For quick service at the right price 

525-369~ or 525-2707 
182 Main St. N., Alexandria, Ont. 1-tf 

RENOVATING? 

CMHC Act:e,llllcl No. 8251 
CGSB Cartllcatioft No. 83007 

How much money are you wasting each year because your home 
is not properly insulated? ... Let us tell you. 
Call us for a free estimate before renovating the walls of your 
home. 

GLENGARRY INSULATION LTD . 
ALEXANDRIA, ONT. 

Call 525-1105 or 525-4947 10-4c 

GREEN VALLEY 
SWIMMING POOLS LTD. 

Green Valley Tel. 525-3743. 

OFFERS YOU 

Therapeutic and 
Whirlp~o/ Baths 

different sizes and colors 

For more information call us at 
525-3743 or drop in and see our display 

Be ready for summer, come in and see us now. 
Ml 

I 

AVOCADO(~ 
PRODUCT OF 

U.S.A. 

.. ,59 
KIWI 
FRU IT 
PRODUCT OF 

U.S.A. 

·•.3:1 
PAPAYA 

PRODUCT OF 
U.S.A. 

SEEDLESS 
GRAPES 

PRODUCT OF CHILE 
CANADA NO. 1 

%.18/kg 
.t)9 /lb 

RIBIER 
GRAPES 

PRODUCT OF CHILE 
CANADA NO. 1 

z.111/kg c,.,. 
e tJtJ /lb 

JDA RED 
APPLES 

PRODUCT OF CANADA 
CANADA FANCY 

3 LB BAG 

·1.99 1.%9 
PINE
APPLE 

PRODUCT OF THE 
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC 
FRESH LARGE SIZE 8'S 

SPARTAN 
APPLES 

PRODUCT OF CANADA 
CANADA FANCY 

3 LB BAG 

·1.f)f) I .Z 
MANGOES 

PRODUCT OF 
U.S.A. 

MELONS 
HONEY DEW 
PRODUCT OF 

U.S.A . 

EMPEROR 
GRAPES 

PRODUCT OF CHILE 
CANADA NO. 1 ') ,n. t)eilll!JU/kg 
I ,ill /l b 

APPLES 
GRANNY SMITH 

PRODUCT OF CHILE 
OR FRANCE 

CANADA FANCY 

I. 71/kg 
I 7 7 /lb 

' 

UA-f 
LETTUCE 

;:BROCCOLI 
PROCUCT OF U.S.A. 

CANADA NO. 1 

·,39 
SllDLESS 

,{ .UCUMBIRS 
PRODUCT OF CANADA 

CANADA N0. 1 

PRODUCT OF 
U.S.A' 

.1111 
MUSH
ROOMS 

-PRODUCT OF CANADA 
SNOW WHITE 

8 OZ. PKG. 

·•18 .!)II 
CELERY 
S-TALKS 

PRODUCT OF U.S.A. 
CANADA NO. 1 

··.78 
ROMAINE 
LETTUCE. • ',l' 

PRODUCT OF 
U.S.A. 

ea. 

t 
GRfE·N 

ONJONS 
PRODUCT OF 

U.S.A. 

ea ' I# 
,BEAN 

SPROUTS 
P-RODUCT 
OF U.S.A. 

I.II/kg 
•"' /lb 

ONIONS 
PRODUCT OF CANADA 

CANADA NO. 1 
2 LB BAG 

.!15 
CELLO 

CARROTS 
PRODUCT OF CANADA 

CANADA NO. 1 
2 LB BAG 

.:If) 
GREEN 

CABBAGE 
PRODUCT OF CANADA 

CANADA N0.1 

"'" . - /kg 

. If) /lb 

P.E.I . . 
POTATOES 
PRODUCT OF CANADA 

CANADA N0.1 

• I II 
.C)II 

/kg 

/lb 
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Save-the-hog • • • 1s ga1nmg momenta~ 
by George McKlel 

The furor and future of Alfred 
Bog, some 9,000 acres of wetland 
lying about 15 miles north of 
Alexandria, in Caledonia and 
Alfred Townships will likely be 
decided at an Ontario Municipal 
Board hearing scheduled for April 
27. 

The 0MB will consider an 
appeal by the Save-the-Bog Com
mittee, an offshoot of the Vank
leek Hill Nature Society, to 
rescind the change in zoning 
granted Hardee Farms Inter
national of Toronto last spring. 

of the Save-the-Bog group and 
"we know the bog contains six 
provincially rare species of plants 
of which two occur in no other site 
in Ontario, while the rare Spotted 
Turtle is found in Alfred Bog and 
the bog may be one of the last 
major refu_ges for this species." 

"There a·re several rare species 
of insects discovered in the bog, 
including one butterfly species, 
the Bog Elfin, which is found only 
in three other locations in all of 
North America" said Mike Ecker
sley, biologist with Ontario Mini
stry of Natural Resources. 

The MNR has also been 
monitoring the largest moose 
herd in Southern Ontario which is 
in the Alfred Bog. 

" But the really important as
pect of Alfred Bog is the 
hydrological functions which are 
not well understood and we need 
to not only preserve the bog but 
study the role of such an area in 
terms of flood storage," said Leo 
Durocher, chairman of Vankleek 
Hill Nature Society. A zoning 
change and subsequent draining 
of part of the bog could affect the 
water table for extensive areas 
around the bog so that many wells 
could go dry according to advice 
from hydrological engineers talk
ing with Ernie Beauchesne. 

Recently a number of con
servation-minded groups have 
aligned themselves with the 
Save-the-Bog-the 3,000 mem-

hers of the Ottawa Field Natural
ists. the 20,000 members of the 
Ontario Federation of Naturalists, 
the 29.000 members of the 
Ontario Anglers and Hunters, 
and even out-of-province groups 
such as the Catharine Trail 
Naturalists of Quebec. 

As a result a Nature Preserve 
Trust has been set up with the 
aim of raising funds to buy the 
bog. 

"Our objective is to make the 
whole bog area a nature sanc
tuary" said Beauchesne, and "we 
invite, especially, local people 
from Glengarry, Prescott and 
Caledonia who are interested in 
preserving wetlands." 

The Alfred Bog Nature Pre
serve Trust has the following 

specific objectives: 
I) The goal is to raise funds for 

the purchase of the Alfred Bog 
and its retention as a Nature 
Preserve. 

2) The Trust is controlled and 
administered by the Vankleek Hill 
Nature Society's "Save-the-Bog" 
committee. 

3) Supporters are asked for a SS 
one-time only subscription. It is 
also intended to request funding 
from conservation-minded organ
izations and government agen
cies. 

At that time Hardee Farms 
applied for and got a property 
rezoning from conservation to 
agriculture status. Hardee Farms 
owns almost half of the Alfred 
Bog having acquired it for SO 
cents an acre (unpaid back taxes) 
some 25 years ago. 

Robert Franklin, spokesman for 
Hardee Farms, said the property 
"is now useless to us." He added 
that the company had hoped the 
soil would be conducive to 
high-yield market gardening. 
"But we bought it for future 
rather than immediate develop
ment." 

Nyland named chairman 

4) A time is foreseen when the 
Vankleek Hill Nature Society 
would, perhaps, hand over con
trol of the Trust to a group such as 
the Ottawa Field Naturalists, the 
Nature Conservancy of Canada or 
the Federation of Ontario Natur
alists, for its administration. The 
Ontario Ministry of Natural Re
sources could also be a candidate. 

5) A registered tax receipt for 
donations exceeding $5 will be 
made if cheques are made out to 
the Ottawa Field Naturalists-in
trust-for-Alfred Bog. 

EMPLOYEES HONORED-Four employees 
of the Alexandria IGA were honored for 
length of service recently. Receiving pins for 
10 years or more service were (from left) 
Henri Dore (13 years), Rita Carriere (13 years) 

and Richard Lacombe (13 years). At far right 
is Wayne MacDonald who received 10 and 
15-year pins for his 19 years of service. 

Staff Photo-Bob Roth 

The company has been con
cerned with vegetable growing, 
freezing and canning operations 
in Southern Ontario. When Har
dee bought the property, Franklin 
said, it was zoned for agriculture 
use and "was rezoned without 
our knowledge." 

In fact the property was 
designated for conservation in 
1978 by the South Nation Plan
ning Board. Notices about the 
official plan were published only 
in the local weekly newspapers. 

"If this zoning change is to be 
agriculture rather than conserva
tion, it'll result in an environ
mental disaster," said Ernie 
Beauchesne, chairman of Save
the-Bog, a dedicated group of 
more than SO naturalists who are 
determined to preserve the bog. 

"It's such a unique natural 
resource, the largest dome bog 
left in Southern Ontario" said Dr. 
Valerie Harrison, co-chairperson 

Anne Latimer Nyland. Corn
wall. director and chief librarian 
of the Seaway Valley Libraries. 
has been elected chairman of the 

Group meets 
by Marguerite Seger 

The annual World Day of 
Prayer was held at I :30 p.m. on 
Fridav. March 4. with the ladies 
of the Church on the Hill. 
Alexandria, hosting the ladies of 
St. Finnan's Cathedral and the 
Sacred Heart Parish. 

The theme was "New Persons 
in Christ," as prepared by the 
Women of the Carribean. 

Mrs. Jean Humphries was th e 
convener and welcomed the 
guests. 

The guest speakers were: Jean 
Humphries and Bessie Clingen 
for the Church on the Hill, Marion 
McDonald and Elsie Maclean for 
St. Fin nan's and Annette Des
rosiers and Pierrette Laflamme 
for Sacred Heart Church. 

Helen Upton was organist and 
~pecial hymns in English and 
French were sung by the congre
gation and choir. 

Bl -NGO 
GLENGARRY SPORTS PALACE 

Bingo starts at 8 p.m. 
Doors open at 6:30 p.m. 

Thurs ay, March 17 
15 Regular Games at $25 

6 Specials - 50-50 
1 Winner Takes All 

Door Prizes $25 - $15 - $10 
Last Bingo of the Month 
3x$25 Extra Door Prizes 

JACKPOT $1,125 
in 5 numbers 

Admission SOC per person 

-e hate 
to nag 
·you 
but 

IT'S TIME TO TACK UP AND DRESS UP 
FOR THE COMING SHOW SEASON! 

AT 

The Horseman Shop 
Complete Outfitters for Horse and Rider 

Located 6 mi. west of W:lliamstown 
on South·Branch Road 

Mrs. Catherine B. Miller, Prop. 
R.R. 1, Williamstown Tel. 931-188.3.. 

9 5c 

.. 
DEEP IN THE HEART OF TAXES 

* That's where I' ll be for the next few months, trying * 
to save you money by making sure that your * 

income tax return is done correctly. 
I will be specializing in personal, small 

)f. business and farm returns. 

* . At Your Service 
from 9 a.m. to 9 p.m.* 

* Every Dav 
Comptabilite 
Maurice Lemieux 

Bookkeeping 
63 Main St. N. 

525-1666 or 
525-2008 

Eastern Ontario Regional Library 
Svstem's Board of Trustees for 
1983. 

At the Board's annual meeting 
held in Ottawa, March 2. other 
trustees elected to the executive 
were: Vice-Chairman, Marilyn 
Ala-Kantti. Cumberland Town
ship Public Library: Chairman of 
Finance. Hugh Bates , Brockville 
Public Library: Chairman of Per
sonnel. Robert Carmichael. Pem
broke Public Library. 

The new chairman has served 
on the 10-member Board of 
Eastern Ontario Regional Library 
System for four years. In 1982, 
she was named "Librarian of the 
Year" bv the Ontario Lihrarv 

Trustees' Association. 
Born in Lvn. Ontario, Anne 

Nvland has b~en chief librarian of 
the Cornwall Public Library since 
1964 and has also held the ·post of 
chief librarian of the Stormont, 
Dundas and Glengarry County 
Librarv from the time of its 
formation in 1970. 

6) The intention of this Nature 
Preserve would include co
operation with neighbors regard
ing drainage. 

WMS discusses llllssionaiies 

The Eastern Ontario Regional 
Librarv System is a consultative. 
co-ordinating agency of the Mini
strv of Citizenship and Culture for 
all Eastern Ontario public lib
raries serving some 25 public 
libraries outlets in the 10 eastern 
counties of Ontario. 

7) Failure of this project will 
result in the re-donation of 
subscriptions to a recognized 
conservation group for the pur
chase of endangered wetlands. 

8) Members' names will be 
enrolled in the Alfred Bog Nature 
Preserve Trust. 

9) Donations should be sent to 
Dr. George McKiel, RR2, Alex
andria, KOC I AO for delivery to 
Save-the-Bog. 

The March meeting of the 
members of the Women's Mis
sionary Society of Knox Presby
terian Church , Moose Creek, was 

held in the home of Mrs . Lynden 
Campbell, on Tuesday evening, 
March 8. 

Mrs. Angus · Bethune opened 
the meeting with prayer. Mrs. 
Kerry McIntyre gave the Scrip
ture lesson and the meditation 
entitled "The Greatness of Mos
es." Mrs. W. E. Wright read 

Psalm 23. followed by prayer by 
Mrs. Angus Bethune. 

The members continued with 
the Studies Series led by Mrs. 
Bethune by a tape entitled "The 
Moderator in New Hebrides ." 

Mrs. J. Vari der Wal spoke on 
rhe work of our missionaries in 
Nigeria, especially Rev. Richard 
Fee who will be in Canada for one 
year beginning in March. A word 
of prayer for Rev. Fee at each 
meeting would help to remind us 
of the work of our missionary. 

H~re is where Canadians get into 

ACADIANS 

Mrs. Van der Wall gave a 
report on the May Rally (Presby-

terial celebrating 100th Anniver
sary) which will be held in Moose 
Creek on May 25, 1983. After-

noon Session opening at 1 p.m., 
supper at S p.m. and the evening 
session to begin at 6:30 o .m. 

The next meeting will be held 
in the home of Mrs. Archie 
MacGregor on Thursday, April 14 
at 7:45 p .m. 

For· Lowest 
Manufacturer's Suggested Retail Prices 

of any car built in North America 

$5,812 

Scooter Hatchback Coupe 

Provincial and local taxes (where applicable), freight and registration charges extra. 

Prices are subject to change 

WE'RE DR.IVIN' A BARGAIN 
YOU CAN DRIVE HOME TODAY! 

New stock arriving daily 

Fine selection on all models 

See the lady or boys at: 

GREEN VALLEY, ONT. We treat you (<gf ally TEL. 525-2300 

PONTIA 

• 
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